
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OCTOBER 19, 2017 • Page 1 of 6 

 
 
 
 
 
 

MEETING OF THE 
 

TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL 
 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
 

2 NORTH MAIN STREET 
 

3rd FLOOR – CONFERENCE ROOM 
 

THURSDAY, OCTOBER 19, 2017 
 

3:15 P.M. 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Discuss, as may be needed, Regular Meeting agenda items for the meeting posted for Thursday, 
October 19, 2017. 
 

2. Receive an I-35 update from TXDOT. 
 

3. Discuss the status of right-of-way acquisition for the Research Parkway project which includes the 
expansion of Moore’s Mill Road and Old Howard Road and discuss the status of pending eminent 
domain litigation involving property required for the project.   
 
Executive Session – Pursuant to Chapter 551, Government Code Section 551.071 – Consultations 
with Attorney – The City Council may meet in executive session to consult with its attorney on 
pending or contemplated litigation or settlement offers.  
 
Executive Session – Pursuant to Chapter 551, Government Code Section 551.072 – Real Property 
– The City Council may meet in executive session to discuss the purchase, exchange, lease or 
value of real property relating to City projects, the public discussion of which would have a 
detrimental effect on negotiations with a third party. 
 

4. Discuss the hiring process, appointment, employment, and duties of the City Manager. 
 
Texas Government Code § 551.074 – The City Council will meet in executive session to discuss 
the hiring process, appointment, employment, and duties of the City Manager. No final action will 
be taken. 

  
 

  



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OCTOBER 19, 2017 • Page 2 of 6 

5:00 P.M. 
 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
 

2 NORTH MAIN STREET 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS – 2ND FLOOR 

TEMPLE, TX 
 

TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
1. Invocation        
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance   
 
II. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may sign up to do so prior to this meeting.  
Public comments will be received during this portion of the meeting. Please limit comments to three 
minutes. No discussion or final action will be taken by the City Council. 
 
III. PROCLAMATIONS & SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS 
 
3. (A) Czech Heritage Month   October 2017 
 (B) National Colonial Heritage Month  October 2017 
 
IV. BOND ITEMS 
 
4. 2017-4875: FIRST & FINAL READING - PUBLIC HEARING: Consider adopting an ordinance 
 authorizing the issuance of $35,000,000* City of Temple, Texas Combination Tax and Revenue 
 Certificates of Obligation, Series 2017; Authorizing the Levy of an Ad Valorem Tax and the 
 Pledge of Certain Revenues in Support of the Certificates; Approving an Official Statement and 
 a Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement; Awarding the Sale of the Certificates; and Authorizing 
 Other Matters Related to the Issuance of the Certificates. 
 
5. 2017-4876: FIRST & FINAL READING-PUBLIC HEARING-Consider adopting an ordinance 
 authorizing the issuance of City of Temple, Texas General Obligation Refunding Bonds in one 
 or more series; Approving Official Statements, agreements related to the sale and issuance of 
 the bonds, and the forms of paying agent/registrar agreements and escrow agreements; 
 Establishing the procedures for selling and delivering one or more series of the bonds; and 
 Authorizing other matters relating to the bonds. 
 
 
 
 
 



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OCTOBER 19, 2017 • Page 3 of 6 

V. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
All items listed under this section, Consent Agenda, are considered to be routine by the City Council 
and may be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be removed 
from the Consent Agenda at the request of any Councilmember and will be considered separately. 
 
6. Consider adopting a resolution approving the Consent Agenda items and the appropriate 
 resolutions and ordinances for each of the following: 
  

Minutes 
 

(A) October 5, 2017 Special and Regular Meeting 
 
Contracts, Leases, & Bids 
 
(B) 2017-8904-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of CityWorks AMS 

software and implementation services from SHI Government Solutions, Inc. of Austin, in 
the amount of $117,483. 
 

(C) 2017-8905-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a sole source maintenance 
contract for 2017-2018 with Intergraph Corporation, dba Hexagon Safety & Infrastructure, 
in the amount of $80,789. 
 

(D) 2017-8906-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of 80 Motorola 
P25 Portable Radios for the Fire Department from Motorola Solutions, Inc. of Atlanta, 
Georgia, in the amount of $346,340. 
 

(E) 2017-8907-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a sole source maintenance 
contract for 2017-2018 with Superion, LLC of Chicago, Illinois, in the estimated amount 
of $148,000. 
 

(F) 2017-8908-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of one Toro 
Greensmaster 3250-D tri-plex mower, in the amount of $35,358.08 from Professional Turf 
Products, L.P. of Selma. 
 

(G) 2017-8909-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of 1,272 plastic 
96-gallon garbage and recycling containers from Toter, Inc., of Statesville, NC, in the 
amount of $58,577.40.   
 

(H) 2017-8910-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of four Solid 
Waste Collection CNG-powered refuse trucks from various vendors at an estimated 
amount of $834,347.94. 
 

(I) 2017-8911-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a renewal to the contract with 
the Greater Temple-Belton Foundation for Animal Care to administer a spay and neuter 
voucher program for the City of Temple Animal Shelter. 
 

(J) 2017-8912-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction contract with 
Choice Builders, LLC of Temple, in the amount of $1,480,485 for the construction of a 
hangar at the Draughon-Miller Central Texas Regional Airport.   
 



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OCTOBER 19, 2017 • Page 4 of 6 

(K) 2017-8913-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services 
agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP, in an amount not to exceed $211,600 
to develop a concept design for North 31st Street from West Nugent Avenue to Central 
Avenue. 
 

(L) 2017-8914-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services 
agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP, in an amount not to exceed $129,840 
to develop a concept design for South 31st Street (Loop 363 to West Avenue M) and West 
Avenue R (South 31st Street to South 25th Street). 
 

(M) 2017-8915-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services 
agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP, in the amount of $295,260 for design 
of South 1st Street from Avenue A to Central Avenue and a concept design for Avenue A 
from South 3rd Street to South 2nd Street. 
 

(N) 2017-8916-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services 
agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP, in an amount not to exceed $884,200 
for final design of Phase 4 of the Outer Loop. 
 

(O) 2017-8917-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services 
agreement with Stateside Right of Way Services, Inc., in an amount not to exceed 
$45,100 for securing rights of entry for Phase 4 of the Outer Loop. 
 

(P) 2017-8918-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an amendment to the 
professional services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP, in a deductive 
amount of $38,030 for engineering services required for final design and bidding for 
Phase 3 of the 31st Street Intersection Improvements from Loop 363 to Scott Boulevard. 
 

(Q) 2017-8919-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing amending an agreement with 
Kasberg, Patrick, & Associates, LP, in the amount of $437,180 for professional services 
required for final design of Kegley Road Phases 3 and 4. 
 

(R) 2017-8920-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services 
agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP, in the amount of $118,860 for 
developing a concept design for a new Airport general aviation terminal building and 
supporting appurtenances at the Draughon-Miller Central Texas Regional Airport.  
 

(S) 2017-8921-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an Airport Hangar Lease 
Agreement with Wilsonart, LLC. 
 

(T) 2017-8922-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a one year lease extension to 
JR Aviation, LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of Paradise Helicopters located in Kailia-
Kona, Hawaii, for aviation services through September 1, 2018 at the Draughon-Miller 
Central Texas Regional Airport.   
 

(U) 2017-8923-R:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing acceptance of the FY18 Texas 
Department of Transportation, Aviation Division, Routine Airport Maintenance (RAMP) 
Grant, in the amount of $100,000 (City match of $50,000), to help assist with Airport 
improvements at the Draughon-Miller Central Texas Regional Airport.   
 

 



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OCTOBER 19, 2017 • Page 5 of 6 

Ordinances – Second & Final Reading 
 

(V) 2017-4871: SECOND READING: Consider adopting an ordinance authorizing an 
amendment to the Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Financing and 
Project Plans to align with the 2022 Master Plan which includes appropriating bond 
proceeds, adjusting tax revenues and allocating expenditures for public improvements for 
years FY 2017-2062. 
 

(W) 2017-4873: SECOND READING - Z-FY-17-42: Consider adopting an ordinance 
authorizing a rezoning from Agricultural zoning district to Planned Development - General 
Retail zoning district with Development/ Site Plan approval, on 5.058 +/- acres, located 
on the north side of FM 2305, approximately 290 feet west of its intersection with Morgan's 
Point Road (FM 2271), addressed 12000 and 11934 FM 2305. 
 

(X) 2017-4874: SECOND READING – Z-FY-17-43: Consider adopting an ordinance 
authorizing a rezoning from Two Family zoning district to Planned Development Temple 
Medical Educational District T5-E, with a Development/Site Plan for two parking lots, 
located on the north 50 feet of Lot 7 and the south 50 feet of Lot 8, HP Robertson Addition, 
addressed as 1214 and 1218 South Main Street, Temple. 
 

VI. REGULAR AGENDA 
 
RESOLUTIONS 
 
7. 2017-8924-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction contract with T 
 Construction, LLC, of Houston for a lump sum price of $2,891,120 to construct the Old Town 
 Wastewater and Water Replacement Project. 
 
8. 2017-8925-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services agreement 
 with Stateside Right of Way Services, Inc., in an amount not to exceed $280,500, for acquisition 
 and relocation services for the Poison Oak Road Expansion Project from State Highway 317 to 
 Old Waco Road. 
 
ORDINANCES – SECOND READING/PUBLIC HEARING 
 
9. (A) 2017-4872: SECOND READING – PUBLIC HEARING: Consider adopting an ordinance 

 designating a tract of land consisting of approximately 143.21 acres and located at 251 
 Berger Road, Temple, Texas, as City of Temple Tax Abatement Reinvestment Zone 
 Number 35 for commercial/industrial tax abatement. 
 
(B) 2017-8926-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an Economic Development  
 Agreement with Cargill, Inc., to contribute $500,000 towards the construction of public 
 improvements to Berger Road. 
 
(C) 2017-8927-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a Tax Abatement Agreement 
 with Cargill, Inc. which will cover increases in the taxable value of real property for a 
 143.21 acre tract of land located in Tax Abatement Reinvestment Zone Number 35. 

 
 
 
 



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OCTOBER 19, 2017 • Page 6 of 6 

ORDINANCES – FIRST READING/PUBLIC HEARING  
 
10. 2017-4877: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING: Consider adopting an ordinance to 
 include a language certification pay for officers in the Police Department. 
 
11. 2017-4878: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-17-39: Consider adopting an 
 ordinance authorizing amendments to Article 3, Unified Development Code, to remove the 
 requirement to include construction plans in final plat applications for single family subdivisions; 
 to extend the time limit for recordation of plats from 120 days to 12 months; and to modify media 
 used for filing of subdivision construction plans (eliminating Mylars). 
 
12. 2017-4879: FIRST READING - PUBLIC HEARING – Z-FY-17-46: Consider adopting an 
 ordinance authorizing rezoning of five tracts of land totaling approximately 168 + acres: 
 

(A)  114.5 ± acres located at the southwest corner of NE H.K. Dodgen Loop and MKT 
 railroad—from PD-C, C, MF-2, and 2F zoning districts to LI zoning district; 

(B)  The following properties within the Industrial sub-district of the I-35 Corridor Overlay: 
1.  7.9 ± acres located west of I-35, east of Pegasus Drive, and north of Industrial 

 Boulevard—from 2F and GR zoning districts to LI zoning district; 
2.  7 ± acres located west of I-35, east of Pegasus Drive, and north of Industrial 

 Boulevard—from 2F and GR zoning districts to LI zoning district; 
3.  1 ± acre tract abutting the southeast corner of the 29.6 + acre tract owned by Buc-

 ee’s—from PD-C zoning district to LI zoning district;  
(C)  The following properties within the Gateway sub-district of the I-35 Corridor Overlay: 

1.  11.3 ± acres located at the northeast corner of NE H.K. Dodgen Loop and North 
 General Bruce Drive—from AG zoning district to C zoning district; and 

2.  27.1 ± acres located at the northwest corner of NE H.K. Dodgen Loop and MKT 
 railroad—from AG zoning district to LI zoning district. 

 
13. 2017-4880: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING – Z-FY-17-47: Consider adopting an 

ordinance authorizing an amendment to Ordinance No. 2016-4812 to allow utility trailer 
sales/rentals on Lot 2, Block 1, Tranum Subdivision Phase VIII, addressed as 5806 South 
General Bruce Drive and zoned I-35-Retail-PD-C. 

 

The City Council reserves the right to discuss any items in executive (closed) session whenever permitted by the 
Texas Open Meetings Act. 
 
I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of this Notice of Meeting was posted in a public place at 
3:30 pm, on Friday, October 13, 2017. 
 
 
_________________________ 
City Secretary, TRMC 
 
SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS: Persons with disabilities who have special communication or 
accommodation needs and desire to attend this meeting should notify the City Secretary's Office by 
mail or telephone 48 hours prior to the meeting date. 
 
I certify that this Notice of Meeting Agenda was removed by me from the outside bulletin board in front 
of the City Municipal Building on ________________ day of _____________2017. 
 
________________________________Title____________________________ 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/19/17 
Item #4 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 3 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Traci L. Barnard, Director of Finance   
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: FIRST & FINAL READING - PUBLIC HEARING: Consider adopting an ordinance 
authorizing the issuance of $35,000,000* City of Temple, Texas Combination Tax and Revenue 
Certificates of Obligation, Series 2017; Authorizing the Levy of an Ad Valorem Tax and the Pledge of 
Certain Revenues in Support of the Certificates; Approving an Official Statement and a Paying 
Agent/Registrar Agreement; Awarding the Sale of the Certificates; and Authorizing Other Matters 
Related to the Issuance of the Certificates. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Conduct public hearing and adopt ordinance as presented in item 
description, on first and final reading.  
 
ITEM SUMMARY: This item is to award the sale of $35,000,000* to the lowest responsible bidder of 
this series of bonds. 
 
The FY 2018 Adopted Budget includes the sixth year of a multi-year Transportation Capital 
Improvement Program (TCIP) and recommends expansion of the program from the original scope of 
work to include funding for additional projects that have been identified as high-priority needs since the 
original program began. The project areas identified in the TCIP are intended to address both the need 
to improve our existing transportation infrastructure and provide new capacity and connectivity. These 
additions will expand the TCIP from the existing $126,700,000 effort to a $140,258,343 program. The 
FY 2018 Budget also includes an allocation to fund a Drainage Capital Improvement Program (DCIP), 
the purchase of sanitation equipment and the purchase of new public safety radios system based on 
P25 interoperability standards.   

The proceeds can be used for the purpose of paying contractual obligations incurred or to be incurred 
by the City for: 

• Constructing, improving, extending, expanding, upgrading and/or developing streets, roads, 
bridges, trails, sidewalks, intersections, traffic signalization and other transportation improvement 
projects including related water, wastewater and drainage improvements, signage, landscaping, 
irrigation, purchasing any necessary rights-of-way, other related transportation costs and improving, 
expanding, and upgrading the City's park and recreational facilities;       
    



10/19/17 
Item #4 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 3  

 
• Purchasing sanitation equipment and vehicles;  
• Purchasing public safety equipment, including radio communications equipment; 
• Costs related to drainage improvements, including a drainage master plan for the City;  
• Professional services including fiscal, engineering, architectural and legal fees and other such costs 

incurred including cost associated with the issuing of the Certificates. 
 
The Bonds are scheduled for Council consideration and award to the lowest bidder on Thursday, 
October 19, 2017. 
 
Standard & Poor's Ratings Services assigned its 'AA' rating and stable outlook to Temple, Texas' series 
2017 combination tax and revenue certificates of obligation. The ratings were published October 12, 
2017. 
 
The bonds will be sold through a competitive sale.  Pricing will be received on the morning of October 
19, 2017. The pricing will be held until the meeting on Thursday evening when Council considers the 
lowest responsible bidder.  
 
The City’s financial advisor, Specialized Public Finance Inc., and bond counsel, McCall, Parkhurst & 
Horton, L.L.P, will be present at the meeting to review details of the bids and recommended award with 
Council. The Council will consider the offers and award based on the recommendation. 
 
Funds will be delivered to our depository on November 8, 2017. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



10/19/17 
Item #4 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 3  

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
 
*The issue size is preliminary and will be sized at the time of pricing. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Ordinance 
  

Public
Safety Sanitation

TCIP DCIP Radios Equipment Total

Source of Funds
Par Amount of Bonds 27,470,000$ 3,720,000$    1,140,000$  1,445,000$  33,775,000$ 
Reoffering Prenium 2,088,248     31,073           73,264         119,755       2,312,340     

Total Sources 29,558,248$ 3,751,073$    1,213,264$  1,564,755$  36,087,340$ 

Use of Funds

Total Underwriters Discount 192,290$      26,040$         7,980$         10,115$       236,425$      
Cost of Issuance 117,932        15,970           4,894           6,204           145,000        
Deposit to Construction Fund 29,243,000   4,000,000      1,200,000    1,550,000    35,993,000   
Deposit to Debt Service Fund 5,026            (937)              390              (1,563)          2,915            

Total Uses 29,558,248   4,041,073      1,213,264    1,564,755    36,377,340   

Certificate (Bond) Data
Term of Bonds (years) 20.00            20.00             5.00             6.00             

Estimated Interest cost 3.43% 3.29% 1.83% 1.89%

Source of Repayment I&S Fund Drainage Fund General Fund General Fund



 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/19/17 
Item #5 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Traci L. Barnard, Director of Finance   
  
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST & FINAL READING-PUBLIC HEARING-Consider adopting an ordinance 
authorizing the issuance of City of Temple, Texas General Obligation Refunding Bonds in one or more 
series; Approving Official Statements, agreements related to the sale and issuance of the bonds, and 
the forms of paying agent/registrar agreements and escrow agreements; Establishing the procedures 
for selling and delivering one or more series of the bonds; and Authorizing other matters relating to the 
bonds. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Conduct public hearing and adopt resolution as presented in item 
description on first and final reading. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: This item is to delegate authority to the Director of Finance or in her absence, the 
City Manager to issue certificates and finalize pricing within parameters defined in the attached 
ordinance in a par amount not to exceed $65,000,000*. This delegation of authority will allow the City 
to obtain the most advantageous terms on the bonds in order to achieve maximum debt service savings. 

 
Potential refunding candidates include all or a portion of the following outstanding bond issues: 
 

• Pass-Through Revenue & Limited Tax Bonds, Series 2012  
• Combination Tax & Revenue Certificates of Obligations, Series 2012  
• Combination Tax & Revenue Certificates of Obligations, Taxable Series 2012  
• Combination Tax & Revenue Certificates of Obligations, Series 2013  
• Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2010  

 
*All bonds that are to be considered for refunding are listed. Market conditions will determine 
which bonds will actually be refunded on the day of pricing.   
 
Ratings for the bonds will be applied for with Standard & Poors.  The ratings will be published prior to 
the pricing and sale of the bonds.  The date and method by which the refunded obligations will be 
issued, sold, and delivered will be determined to achieve the most advantageous borrowing costs for 
the City.  

 
 



10/19/17 
Item #5 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
The City’s Financial Advisor, Specialized Public Finance Inc., and bond council, McCall, Parkhurst & 
Horton, L.L.P, will be present at the meeting to review the parameters and details of the ordinance with 
Council.  
 
Specialized Public Finance Inc, will return at a date to be determined to brief City Council on the sales 
results.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Refunded Obligations will be refunded, all or a portion, in order to achieve a net 
present value debt service savings of not less than 3% of the principal amount of the Refunded 
Obligations net of any City contribution. Other parameters included in the ordinance are a maximum 
par amount not to exceed $65 million and maximum maturity date of August 1, 2036 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 
  



 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/19/17 

Item #6(A) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Lacy Borgeson, City Secretary   
  
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Approve Minutes: 
  

(A) October 5, 2017 Special and Regular Meetings 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve minutes as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Copies of minutes are enclosed for Council review. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: N/A 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
October 5, 2017 Special and Regular Meetings 
  



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/19/17 

Item #6(B) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Alan DeLoera, Information Technology Director 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of CityWorks AMS 
software and implementation services from SHI Government Solutions, Inc. of Austin, in the amount of 
$117,483. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The City has been using a HTE Work Orders and Asset Management software from 
Sungard for the Public Works department for the past twelve years but the software has become 
inefficient for Public Works staff since staff relies on GIS integration which Sungard does not currently 
support. 
 
At the core of a true asset management system is an asset inventory. Cityworks is uniquely designed 
to utilize the GIS geodatabase as the asset inventory. Though other approaches may interface with a 
GIS – generally for map visualization – Cityworks truly utilizes the GIS geodatabase as the asset 
inventory. Cityworks leverages the inherent value of a GIS-centric, enterprise asset inventory by not 
only managing the assets and their associated attributes (type, condition, installation date, etc.), but 
also the work done to care for assets. The linkage between assets and work orders is maintained such 
that the history of completed work orders against a specific asset is viewable and is easily retrieved. 
 
This software will enable a more efficient workflow, easier navigation and a fully integrated GIS-Centric 
process. The software will allow staff to create a customized workflow that will best fit the needs of our 
Public works staff. The software Call center,  Service requests, Work orders, including cyclical work 
Inspections, tests, and condition assessments, Resources, storerooms, projects, and contracts,  
Reports and dashboards Mobile workforce Interfacing to other systems (accounting, billing, etc.) 
 
A Review group made up of the Public Works Director, Streets Director, City Engineer, Assistant City 
Engineer, IT Director, IT Project Manager, and other public works staff reviewed two vendors and the 
CityWorks software was determined to provide the best solution. This software solution is also used by 
30 of the 40 largest cities in Texas which provides the City a strong regional user base to share 
information, ideas and suggestions. The software subscription and services are being purchased 
through Choice Partners purchasing cooperative Contract # 15/006MP-20. 
 
 

 
 



10/19/17 
Item #6(B) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funding for the purchase of CityWorks AMS Software and Implementation services 
with SHI Government Solutions, Inc. in the amount of $117,483 is available as shown below:  
 

Description Account # Amount 

CityWorks Enterprise License Agreement 
Subscription (Water/Sewer Fund 75%)  520-5000-535-2515 $30,346 

CityWorks Enterprise License Agreement 
Subscription (General Fund 20%) 110-1900-519-2515 $8,092 

CityWorks Enterprise License Agreement 
Subscription (Drainage Fund 5%) 292-2900-534-2515 $2,023 

CityWorks Enterprise License Agreement 
Implementation (Water/Sewer Fund 75%) 

520-5000-535-6221, 
project 101640 $57,766 

CityWorks Enterprise License Agreement 
Implementation (General Fund 20%) 

110-5919-519-6221, 
project 101640 $15,404 

CityWorks Enterprise License Agreement 
Implementation (Drainage Fund 5%) 

292-2900-534-6221, 
project 101640 $3,852 

Total Funds Available $ 117,483 

 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution  
  



1 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO.     

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF CITYWORKS AMS 
SOFTWARE AND IMPLEMENTATION SERVICES IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$117,483, FROM SHI GOVERNMENT SOLUTIONS, INC. OF AUSTIN, 
TEXAS; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 Whereas, the City has been using HTE work order and asset management software 
from Sungard for the past twelve years - the software has become inefficient for Public Works 
staff since staff relies on GIS integration which Sungard does not currently support; 
 

Whereas, CityWorks software is uniquely designed to utilize the GIS geodatabase as 
the asset inventory and utilizes the GIS geodatabase as the asset inventory leveraging the 
inherent value of a GIS-centric, enterprise asset inventory by not only managing the assets 
and their associated attributes (type, condition, installation date, etc.), but also the work done 
to care for assets; 

 
Whereas, this software will enable a more efficient workflow, easier navigation and a 

fully integrated GIS-Centric process which will allow Staff to create a customized workflow 
that will best fit the needs of our Public Works Department; 
 

Whereas, a Staff committee reviewed two vendors and Staff determined the 
CityWorks software to provide the best solution - this software subscription and service will 
be purchased through a Choice Partners Purchasing Cooperative contract; 
 

Whereas, funding for this software has been budgeted in the following accounts: 
 
Account No: 520-5000-535-2515  
Account No: 110-1900-519-2515 
Account No: 292-2900-534-2515 
Account No: 520-5000-535-6221, Project No: 101640 
Account No: 110-5919-519-6221, Project No: 101640 
Account No: 292-2900-534-6221, Project No: 101640 
  

 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their 
entirety. 
 
 



2 
 

 
 
 
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the purchase of a CityWorks AMS software and 
implementation services in the amount of $117,483, from SHI Government Solutions, Inc. of 
Austin, Texas. 
 
 Part 3: The City Council authorizes the Acting City Manager, or her designee, after 
approval as to form by the City Attorney, to execute any documents that may be necessary for 
this purchase. 
 
 Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of October, 2017. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Charla Thomas 
City Secretary      Deputy City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/19/17 

Item #6(C) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Alan DeLoera, Information Technology Director 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a sole source maintenance contract 
for 2017-2018 with Intergraph Corporation, dba Hexagon Safety & Infrastructure, in the amount of 
$80,789. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The Police and Fire Departments currently use Records Management Software from 
Intergraph Corporation, dba Hexagon Safety & Infrastructure, for the following public safety applications 
in helping the City to conduct management of Public Safety records and analysis: 
 
SunPro Fire RMS      
WebRMS (Arrests, warrants, citations, evidence, calls for service, etc…)   
CAD Interface Software    
Microsoft Software     
 
Hexagon Safety & Infrastructure is the sole provider of maintenance for the software. This is the 17th 
consecutive year of support for the software. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: The Information Technology Department currently has funds budgeted in account 
110-1900-519-23-38 for FY 2018 in the amount of $80,789 for continued annual support of these 
applications.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 
 
  



 
RESOLUTION NO.     

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A YEARLY SOLE SOURCE MAINTENANCE 
CONTRACT IN THE AMOUNT OF $80,789, WITH INTERGRAPH 
CORPORATION, DBA HEXAGON SAFETY & INFRASTRUCTURE, FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2018; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 Whereas, the Police and Fire Departments currently use Records Management Software 
(RMS) from Intergraph Corporation, dba Hexagon Safety & Infrastructure, for multiple public 
safety applications which assist the City in conducting management of Public Safety records and 
analysis; 
 

Whereas, Intergraph Corporation, dba Hexagon Safety & Infrastructure, is the sole 
provider of this software and Staff recommends Council authorize an annual maintenance 
contract in the amount of $80,789 – this is the 17th consecutive year of support for this software; 
 

Whereas, funds have been budgeted in Account No. 110-1900-519-2338 for the 
continued annual support of these applications for fiscal year 2018; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the Acting City Manager, or her designee, after 
approval as to form by the City Attorney, to execute a sole source yearly maintenance contract in 
the amount of $80,789, with Intergraph Corporation, dba Hexagon Safety & Infrastructure, for 
fiscal year 2018. 
 
 Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of October, 2017. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Charla Thomas 
City Secretary      Deputy City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/19/17 

Item #6(D) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Alan DeLoera, Information Technology Director 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of 80 Motorola P25 
Portable Radios for the Fire Department from Motorola Solutions, Inc. of Atlanta, Georgia, in the amount 
of $346,340. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Bell County Communications has made the transition this year from the traditional 
analog radio system to a wholly digital radio system based on P25 interoperability standards. P25 is a 
suite of standards for digital radio communications for use by federal, state and local public safety 
agencies. Bell County Communications still supports the analog radio system but this support will stop 
in 2020 for member agencies. 
 
The City Police, Fire, Public Works and Parks Departments use approximately 280 portable radios that 
are not P25 compliant. Interoperable emergency communication is integral to initial response, public 
health, community safety, national security and economic stability. Of all the problems experienced 
during disaster events, one of the most serious, is poor communication due to lack of appropriate and 
efficient means to collect, process and timely transmit important information. In some cases, radio 
communication systems are incompatible and inoperable not just within a jurisdiction but within 
departments or agencies in the same community, thus the reason for the national P25 digital standard. 
Project 25 (P25 or APCO-25) is a suite of standards for digital mobile radio communications designed 
for use by public safety organizations in North America.  
 
A committee consisting of representatives from FPIC (Department of Homeland Security Federal 
Partnership for Interoperable Communication), Coast Guard and the Department of Commerce's 
National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST), Office of Law Enforcement Standards was 
established to decide the priorities and scope of technical development of P25. 
 
The Fire Department is the first phase in the replacement of all portable radios within the City, while 
Police and Public Works being part of a second phase. A total of $1,200,000 was approved in the 2018 
budget for the replacement of all portable radios. These radios will be purchased through the Houston-
Galveston Area Council (HGAC) Contract RA05-15. 

 
 
 



 
10/19/17 

Item #6(D) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 2 of 2 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: The purchase of the 80 Motorola P25 Radios for the Fire Department are being 
funded with the issuance of the 2017 Certificate of Obligation Bonds. Funding will be appropriated for 
the purchase of the radios in the amount of $346,340 in account 365-2200-522-6803, project 101671, 
as shown below: 
 

Project Budget  $    1,200,000  
Encumbered/Committed to Date                       -    

Motorola Solutions, Inc - P25 Radios          (346,340) 
Remaining Project Funds Available  $        853,660  

 
The remaining project funds available are for the second phase of the replacement of all portable radios 
within the City. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 
 
  



1 
 

  
 

RESOLUTION NO.     
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF 80 MOTOROLA P25 PORTABLE RADIOS 
IN THE AMOUNT OF $346,340, FROM MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS, INC. OF 
ATLANTA, GEORGIA; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Whereas, Bell County Communications has transitioned from the traditional analog radio 

system to a wholly digital radio system based on P25 interoperability standards - P25 is a suite of 
standards for digital radio communications for use by federal, state and local public safety 
agencies; 

 
Whereas, currently, Bell County Communications supports the analog radio system but will 

stop supporting them in 2020 for member agencies; 
 

Whereas, the Police, Fire, Public Works and Parks Departments use approximately 280 
portable radios that are not P25 compliant and interoperable emergency communication is 
important to initial response, public health, community safety, national security and economic 
stability; 
 

Whereas, this purchase will be made using a Houston-Galveston Area Council (HGAC) 
Contract - contracts awarded through the Houston-Galveston Area Council have been 
competitively procured and meet the statutory procurement requirements for Texas municipalities;   

 
Whereas, this purchase is being funded with the issuance of the 2017 Certificate of 

Obligation Bonds to allocate funds in Account No. 365-2200-522-6803, Project No. 101671; and 
 
Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 

authorize this action. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 

TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 

legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 

 
Part 2: The City Council authorizes the purchase of 80 Motorola P25 Portable Radios in 

the amount of $346,340, from Motorola Solutions, Inc. of Atlanta, Georgia utilizing a Houston-
Galveston Area Council contract. 

 
Part 3: The City Council authorizes the Acting City Manager, or her designee, after 

approval as to form by the City Attorney, to execute any documents that may be necessary for this 
purchase. 

 
 



2 
 

 
 
 
 
Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of October, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
  
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
    
Lacy Borgeson      Charla Thomas 
City Secretary      Deputy City Attorney 
 



 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/19/17 

Item #6(E) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Alan DeLoera, Information Technology Director 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a sole source maintenance contract 
for 2017-2018 with Superion, LLC of Chicago, Illinois, in the estimated amount of $148,000. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The City currently uses a Sungard HTE enterprise software for the following 
business applications in helping the City to conduct financial transactions: 
 
General Ledger   Accounts Payable   Accounts Receivables   
Fixed Assets    Inventory    Purchasing 
Cash Receipts   Budgeting    Fleet Management     
Work Orders    Payroll    Human Resources 
Utility Billing    Permitting    Code Enforcement     
Inspections    Zoning    Business Licenses 
Municipal Court   Project Accounting   QREP 
Looking Glass   HELP Pass    OnLine Business 
 
Superion, LLC (previously known as Sungard Public Sector) is the sole provider of maintenance for the 
Sungard HTE application software. FY2018 will be the 13th year of support for the software 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: The Information Technology Department currently has funds budgeted in account 
110-1900-519-2338 for FY 2018 in the amount of $148,000 for continued annual support of these 
applications 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 
 
  



 
RESOLUTION NO.     

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A YEARLY SOLE SOURCE MAINTENANCE 
CONTRACT IN THE AMOUNT OF $148,000, WITH SUPERION, LLC OF 
CHICAGO, ILLINOIS, FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 Whereas, the City currently uses Sungard enterprise software for multiple business 
applications which assists the City in conducting financial transactions – fiscal year 2018 will be 
the 13th year of support for this software; 
 

Whereas, Superion, LLC, previously known as Sungard Section, is the sole provider of 
maintenance for the Sungard HTE application software and Staff recommends Council authorize 
the purchase of an annual maintenance contract in the amount of $148,000; 
 

Whereas, funds have been budgeted in Account No. 110-1900-519-2338 for the continued 
annual support of these applications for fiscal year 2018; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the Acting City Manager, or her designee, after 
approval as to form by the City Attorney, to execute a yearly maintenance contract in the amount 
of $148,000, with Superion, LLC of Chicago, Illinois, for fiscal year 2018. 
 
 Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of October, 2017. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Charla Thomas 
City Secretary      Deputy City Attorney 



   
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/19/17 

Item #6(F) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Kevin Beavers, CPRP, Parks and Recreation Director 
Jeff Ward, Director of Golf 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of one Toro 
Greensmaster 3250-D tri-plex mower, in the amount of $35,358.08 from Professional Turf Products, L.P. 
of Selma. 
  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Currently, Sammons Golf Course has a 2006 Toro Greensmaster tri-plex mower 
that has been identified for replacement. This piece of equipment is used to cut the finest textured turf 
areas on the golf course which are the greens.  This mower is used daily throughout the entire year. 
 
Professional Turf Products has been awarded contract #529-17 by BuyBoard, which this proposed 
purchase is being made under . Contracts awarded through BuyBoard have been competitively procured 
and meet the statutory procurement rules for Texas municipalities.    
 
Staff has used Professional Turf Products in the past and finds them to be a responsive and responsible 
vendor.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funding for the purchase of the Toro Greensmaster tri-plex mower from Professional 
Turf Products, L.P. is available in account 110-5931-551-6222, project #101669 as follows: 
 

Project Budget  $          36,500  
Encumbered/Committed to Date                       -    
Professional Turf Products, L.P.             (35,358) 

Remaining Project Funds Available  $            1,142  
 
  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 
 
 

 



1 
 

  
 

RESOLUTION NO.    
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF ONE TORO GREENSMASTER 
3250-D TRI-PLEX MOWER, IN THE AMOUNT OF $35,358.08 FROM 
PROFESSIONAL TURF PRODUCTS, L.P. OF SELMA, TEXAS; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Whereas, Sammons Golf Course currently has a 2006 Toro Greensmaster tri-plex mower 

that has been identified for replacement; 
 
Whereas, this mower is used daily throughout the year and cuts the finest textured turf 

areas on the golf course which are the greens; 
 
Whereas, Professional Turf Products has been awarded a BuyBoard contract which will be 

utilized for this purchase - contracts awarded through BuyBoard have been competitively procured 
and meet the statutory procurement rules for Texas municipalities;    

 
Whereas, Staff has used Professional Turf Products in the past and finds them to be a 

responsive and responsible vendor;   
 
Whereas, funding is available for this purchase in Account No. 110-5931-551-6222, 

Project No. 101669; and 
 
Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 

authorize this action. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 

TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 

legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 

 
Part 2: The City Council authorizes the purchase of one Toro Greensmaster 3250-D tri-

plex mower in the amount of $35,358.08, from Professional Turf Products, L.P. of Selma, Texas 
utilizing a BuyBoard contract. 

 
Part 3: The City Council authorizes the Acting City Manager, or her designee, after 

approval as to form by the City Attorney, to execute any documents that may be necessary for this 
purchase. 

 
Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 



2 
 

 
 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of October, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
  
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
    
Lacy Borgeson      Charla Thomas 
City Secretary      Deputy City Attorney 
 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/19/17 

Item #6(G) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva, Public Works Director 
Lisa Sebek, Solid Waste Services Director    
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of 1,272 plastic 96-
gallon garbage and recycling containers from Toter, Inc., of Statesville, NC, in the amount of 
$58,577.40.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Each year the Solid Waste Division purchases new 96-gallon residential refuse 
containers both for new service and for regular container replacement, for both garbage and recycling 
services. This container purchase will provide for routine growth and normal container replacement.  
The recommended purchase is for 318 recycling containers with a hot stamp recycling symbol at a cost 
of $45.65 per container, and 954 garbage containers at a cost of $45.40 per container, plus $749.10 
for freight to Temple. The pricing is comparable to pricing obtained in recent years, and staff believes 
this to be a good value. 
  
Toter, Inc. has been awarded National IPA Contract No. 120576-01 as awarded by the City of Tucson 
on January 31, 2013.  Contracts awarded through National IPA have been competitively procured and 
meet the statutory procurements requirements for Texas municipalities.  Per the terms of the National 
IPA contract, pricing is evaluated every three months for price adjustments based on current commodity 
prices.    
 
The City has done business with Toter, Inc. and finds them to be a responsible vendor.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funding has been appropriated in the FY 2018 Operating Budget in the account as 
shown below: 

 
Description 

 
Account # 

 
Budget 

Proposed 
Expenditure 

 
96 Gallon 

Carts 

 
110-2330-540-2211 

 
$58,578 

 
$58,577.40 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 
  



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO.     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF 1,272 PLASTIC 96-GALLON 
GARBAGE AND RECYCLING CONTAINERS IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$58,577.40, FROM TOTER, INC. OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA; 
AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

               
  
 Whereas, each year, the Solid Waste Division purchases new 96-gallon residential refuse 
containers both for new service and regular container replacement, for both garbage and recycling 
services - this purchase will provide for routine growth and normal container replacement; 
 
 Whereas, the recommended purchase is for 318 recycling containers with a hot stamp 
recycling symbol at a cost of $45.65 per container, and the purchase of 954 garbage containers at a 
cost of $45.40 per container, plus $749.10 for freight - Staff believes this to be a good cost per 
container and recommends Council authorize this purchase; 
 
 Whereas, Toter, Inc. has been awarded National IPA Contract No. 120576-01 by the City 
of Tucson on January 31, 2013 - contracts awarded through National IPA have been competitively 
procured and meet the statutory procurement requirements for Texas municipalities; 
  
 Whereas, the City has done business with Toter, Inc. in the past and finds it to be a 
responsible vendor – this purchase will be made utilizing a National IPA Cooperative Purchasing 
contract which satisfies the competitive bid requirements; 
 

Whereas, funding for this purchase is available in Account No. 110-2330-540-2211; and 
 

 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the purchase of 1,272 plastic 96-gallon garbage and 
recycling containers in the amount of $58,577.40, from Toter, Inc., of Statesville, North Carolina, 
utilizing the National IPA Cooperative Contract. 
 
 Part 3: The City Council authorizes the Acting City Manager, or her designee, after 
approval as to form by the City Attorney, to execute any documents that may be necessary for this 
purchase. 



2 
 

 
 
 Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of October, 2017. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Charla Thomas 
City Secretary      Deputy City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/19/17 

Item #6(H) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva, P.E., Public Works Director 
Kirk Scopac, Fleet Services Director 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of four Solid Waste 
Collection CNG-powered refuse trucks from various vendors at an estimated amount of $834,347.94. 
 

(1) One 2018 Freightliner M2-112 cab-chassis from Houston Freightliner, Inc. of Houston in the 
amount of $140,161.; one Roll Offs USA roll off body from BTE Body Company in the amount 
of $38,650; for a total truck cost of $178,811. 

 
(2) Two 2018 Freightliner M2-112 cab-chassis from Houston Freightliner, Inc. of Houston in the 

amount of  $272,304; two Hood Model 7000 knuckle boom loaders from Industrial Disposal 
Supply Company of Plano in the amount of $175,860; for a total truck cost of $448,164. 

 
(3) One 2018 Freightliner M2-112 cab-chassis from Houston Freightliner of Houston in the 

amount of $136,152; one Petersen Lightning Loader body from Petersen Industries of Florida 
in the amount of $71,220.94; for a total truck cost of $207,372.94. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Currently the Public Works Solid Waste Services Division has four automated trucks 
that have been identified for routine replacement by the Fleet Services Director in the annual vehicle 
replacement review.  These trucks are used daily in the pickup and disposal of refuse on a routine basis 
throughout the City. 
 
The roll-off truck that will be purchased will replace an existing 11 year old front line truck and then will 
be moved into a backup status for two additional years. The brush trucks that will be purchased will 
replace existing 10 year old front line brush trucks that will be moved into a backup status for two 
additional years.  
 
The proposed purchase will use contracts procured by Houston-Galveston Area Cooperative (H-GAC) 
(all purchases from Houston Freightliner), BuyBoard (purchase from Industrial Disposal Supply 
Company) and NJPA (purchase from Kinloch Equipment).  All contracts awarded by H-GAC, BuyBoard 
and NJPA have been competitively procured and meet the statutory procurement requirements for 
Texas municipalities. 

 



10/19/17 
Item #6(H) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT:  Each vehicle scheduled for replacement has been evaluated to ensure 
the most sustainable and fuel efficient vehicle that will meet the needs of the department is being 
purchased.  The evaluation for these vehicles focused on fuel type. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: The purchase of four Solid Waste Collection CNG-powered refuse trucks are being 
funded with the issuance of the 2017 Certificate of Obligation Bonds.  Funding will be appropriated for 
the purchase of the refuse trucks in the amount of $834,347.94 in account 365-2300-540-6987 as 
shown below: 
 

    
 101695  101697  101698  101700  Total 

Project Budget  $ 183,000    $ 233,264    $ 233,264    $ 233,264    $  882,792  
Encumbered/Committed to Date -                    -                    -                    -                      -    

(4) Solid Waste Trucks  (178,811)    (224,082)    (224,082)    (207,373)      (834,348) 

Remaining Project Funds  $     4,189    $     9,182    $     9,182    $   25,891    $    48,444  
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 
  



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO.     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF FOUR CNG-POWERED SOLID WASTE 
COLLECTION TRUCKS IN THE AMOUNT OF $834,347.94, FROM VARIOUS 
VENDORS; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

  
 
 Whereas, the Public Works Solid Waste Division has four automated trucks that have been 
identified for routine replacement by the Fleet Services Director in the annual vehicle replacement 
review which are used daily in the pickup and disposal of refuse on a routine basis throughout the 
City; 
 
 Whereas, the vehicles Staff recommends purchasing are as follows: 
 

(a) One 2018 Freightliner M2-112 cab-chassis from Houston Freightliner, Inc. of Houston, 
Texas, in the amount of $140,161.00 which includes one Roll Offs USA roll off body 
from BTE Body Company in the amount of $38,650.00; for a total truck cost of 
$178,811.00; 

 
(b) Two 2018 Freightliner M2-112 cab-chassis from Houston Freightliner, Inc. of Houston, 

Texas, in the amount of  $272,304.00 which includes two Hood Model 7000 knuckle 
boom loaders from Industrial Disposal Supply Company of Plano in the amount of 
$175,860.00; for a total truck cost of $448,164.00; and 

 
(c) One 2018 Freightliner M2-112 cab-chassis from Houston Freightliner of Houston, 

Texas, in the amount of $136,152.00 which includes one Petersen Lightning Loader 
body from Petersen Industries of Florida in the amount of $71,220.94; for a total truck 
cost of $207,372.94; 

 
 Whereas, the roll-off truck purchase will replace an existing 11-year-old front line truck 
which will then be moved into backup status for two additional years; 
 
 Whereas, the brush truck purchases will replace existing 10-year-old front line brush 
trucks that will also be moved into backup status for two additional years;  
 
 Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize the purchase of four Solid Waste CNG-
powered refuse trucks in the amount of $834,347.94, from various vendors - the purchase will 
utilize a Houston-Galveston Area Cooperative Contract, a BuyBoard Contract, and an NJPA 
Contract; 
  
 Whereas, all contracts awarded by Houston-Galveston Area Cooperative, BuyBoard and 
NJPA have been competitively procured and meet the statutory procurement requirements for 
Texas municipalities; 
 
 Whereas, funding for the purchase of four Solid Waste collection CNG-powered refuse 
trucks are being funded with the issuance of the 2017 Certificate of Obligation Bonds; 
 
 Whereas, funding will be appropriated for the purchase of the refuse trucks in Account No. 
365-2300-540-6987; and  



2 
 

 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.
  

Part 2: The City Council authorizes the purchase of four Solid Waste Collection CNG-
powered refuse trucks, in the amount of $834,347.94, from various vendors utilizing a Houston-
Galveston Area Cooperative Contract, a BuyBoard Contract, and an NJPA Contract as outlined 
below: 

 
(a) One 2018 Freightliner M2-112 cab-chassis from Houston Freightliner, Inc. of Houston, 

Texas, in the amount of $140,161.00 which includes one Roll Offs USA roll off body 
from BTE Body Company in the amount of $38,650.00; for a total truck cost of 
$178,811.00; 

 
(b) Two 2018 Freightliner M2-112 cab-chassis from Houston Freightliner, Inc. of Houston, 

Texas, in the amount of  $272,304.00 which includes two Hood Model 7000 knuckle 
boom loaders from Industrial Disposal Supply Company of Plano in the amount of 
$175,860.00; for a total truck cost of $448,164.00; and 

 
(c) One 2018 Freightliner M2-112 cab-chassis from Houston Freightliner of Houston, 

Texas, in the amount of $136,152.00 which includes one Petersen Lightning Loader 
body from Petersen Industries of Florida in the amount of $71,220.94; for a total truck 
cost of $207,372.94; 

 
Part 3: The City Council authorizes the Acting City Manager, or her designee, after 

approval as to form by the City Attorney, to execute any documents that may be necessary for 
these purchases. 
 

Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of October, 2017. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Charla Thomas 
City Secretary      Deputy City Attorney 



sh 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/19/17 

Item #6(I) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
Walter Hetzel, Animal Services Manager 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a renewal to the contract with the 
Greater Temple-Belton Foundation for Animal Care to administer a spay and neuter voucher program 
for the City of Temple Animal Shelter. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item discussion. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Since 2005, the City of Temple Animal Shelter has participated in a spay and neuter 
program administered by the Ida Ollife Foundation. In 2014, the Ida Ollife Foundation disbanded and a 
new foundation was established, the Greater Temple-Belton Foundation for Animal Care 
(“Foundation”). The Foundation desired to continue the spay and neuter voucher program and in 
November of 2014, the City Council authorized an agreement with the Foundation to administer the 
program.  

Under the agreement, the City of Temple collects $45.00 for each adopted animal which has either 
already been spayed or neutered by the Foundation or for which a spay and neuter voucher is 
purchased at the time of adoption and passes those funds through to the Foundation on a quarterly 
basis. The Foundation uses these funds for reasonable and necessary expenses for the purposes of 
administering the spay and neuter voucher program. The Foundation enters into a contract with one or 
more qualified veterinarians to perform spay and neuter services for animals adopted from the City of 
Temple Animal Shelter in exchange for a voucher purchased at the time of adoption. 

The Foundation desires to continue the spay and neuter voucher program and Staff recommends 
renewing the agreement. The previous agreement expired on September 30, 2017. The term of the 
proposed renewal is one year and will begin retroactively on October 1, 2017 and continue through 
September 30, 2018.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: The City collected $16,015 in fees during FY 2017. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Resolution 
  



1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO.     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A RENEWAL TO THE CONTRACT WITH THE 
GREATER TEMPLE-BELTON FOUNDATION FOR ANIMAL CARE TO 
ADMINISTER A SPAY AND NEUTER VOUCHER PROGRAM FOR THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE ANIMAL SHELTER; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, since 2005, the City of Temple Animal Shelter has participated in a spay and 
neuter program administered by the Ida Ollife Foundation; 
 

Whereas, in 2014, the Ida Ollife Foundation disbanded and a new foundation was 
established called the Greater Temple-Belton Foundation for Animal Care (the “Foundation”)  - 
Council authorized the continuation of this spay and neuter voucher program in November, 
2015; 

 
 Whereas, under this agreement, the City of Temple collects $45 for each adopted animal 
which has either already been spayed or neutered by the Foundation or for which a spay and 
neuter voucher is purchased at the time of adoption – these funds will pass through to the 
Foundation on a quarterly basis and the Foundation will use the funds for reasonable and 
necessary expenses of administering the spay and neuter voucher program; 

 Whereas, the Foundation will enter into a contract with one or more qualified 
veterinarians to perform spay and neuter services for those animals adopted from the City of 
Temple Animal Shelter in exchange for a voucher purchased at the time of adoption; 

 Whereas, the Foundation desires to continue the spay and neuter voucher program and 
Staff recommends Council renew the contract with the Greater Temple-Belton Foundation for 
Animal Care, beginning retroactively on October 1, 2017 and continuing through September 30, 
2018; and  

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 

 
Part 2: The City Council authorizes the Acting City Manager, or her designee, after 

approval as to form by the City Attorney, to execute a contract renewal with the Greater Temple-
Belton Foundation for Animal Care, to administer a spay and neuter program for the City of 
Temple Animal Shelter. 



2 
 

 
 
 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of October, 2017. 

 
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Charla Thomas 
City Secretary      Deputy City Attorney 
 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/19/17 

Item #6(J) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Belinda Mattke, Director of Purchasing 
Sharon Rostovich, Airport Director 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction contract with Choice 
Builders, LLC of Temple, in the amount of $1,480,485 for the construction of a hangar at the Draughon-
Miller Central Texas Regional Airport.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  This project consists of the construction of (1) an approximate 13,000 square foot 
hangar with a 90-foot sliding door opening and (2) an affixed approximate 1,500 square foot office 
space. The project is being constructed per a lease agreement between the City and Wilsonart, which 
is also on this Council Agenda.     
 
Per Council authorization on July 20, 2017, this project was procured utilizing the Competitive Sealed 
Proposal (CSP) project delivery method as allowed by Texas Government Code Chapter 2269. As 
shown on the attached bid tabulation, on August 24, 2017, the City received 5 competitive sealed 
proposals for the construction of the project. 
 
Based on the CSP method being used, a Staff evaluation committee was formed to score the proposals 
using the following criteria:  60%, price to construct; 10%, contractor’s experience in constructing like-
kind projects (including the experience of assigned project team); 10%, contractor’s reputation in 
successfully completing like-kind projects on-time and on-budget; 10%, compatibility of proposed pre-
engineered metal building to City’s desired specifications; and 10%, proposed timeline. It was the 
committee’s recommendation to award the construction contract to RM Rodriguez Construction, LP 
based on their high scores related to reputation and experience.  However, based on the limited funding 
available for this project, and RM Rodriguez’s proposed pricing being almost $160,000 higher than 
Choice Builders’ non-negotiated proposed pricing, the Interim City Manager is making the 
recommendation to award the construction contract to the 2nd highest ranked proposer, Choice 
Builders, LLC.   
 
Under the CSP method, Staff is able to negotiate with the selected contractor.  Accordingly, the current 
negotiated contracted price with Choice Builders is $1,480,485, $107,000 under their original offer of 
$1,587,485.  The $107,000 contract reduction is reflective of the following adjustments: elimination of 
the epoxy floor coating in the hangar, elimination of the automatic hangar door opener, and several 
finish changes in the office space.    
 



10/19/17 
Item #6(J) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
The construction contract with Choice Builders, LLC in the amount of $1,480,485 consists of a hangar 
and office space for the tenant.  The breakdown is shown below: 
 

 
 
The office space portion of the project is being funded through a 10-year lease with Wilsonart.   
 
It is expected that construction of the project will commence in November with the hangar portion of 
the project complete by March 31, 2018, and the office portion of the project complete by May 15, 2018.   
 
On September 27, 2017, the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Board approved to recommend that Council to 
award a construction contract to Choice Builders, LLC for the construction of a hangar at the Draughon-
Miller Central Texas Regional Airport. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: The second and final reading of a Financing and Project Plan amendment is being 
presented to the City Council, with this project being included in the line items of adjustments. Once 
the Plans are amended, funding will be available in Line 510, Corporate Hangar, account 795-9500-
531-6523, project 101586, for the construction contract in the amount of $1,480,485. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Bid Tabulation 
Resolution 
  

Hangar 1,162,385$        
Office Space 318,100             
Total Project 1,480,485$        











1 
 

RESOLUTION NO.     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH 
CHOICE BUILDERS, LLC OF TEMPLE, TEXAS IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$1,480,485, FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF A HANGAR AT THE 
DRAUGHON-MILLER CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL AIRPORT; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, this project consists of the construction of (1) an approximately 13,000 square 
foot hangar with a 90-foot sliding door, and (2) an affixed approximately 1,500 square foot office 
space – this project is being constructed per a lease agreement between the City and Wilsonart, 
LLC;     
 
 Whereas, on July 20, 2017, Council authorized this project utilizing the Competitive 
Sealed Proposal (CSP) project delivery method as allowed by Texas Government Code Chapter 
2269; 
 
 Whereas, on August 24, 2017, the City received 5 competitive sealed proposals for the 
project and based on the CSP method, a Staff committee was formed to review and score the 
proposals received; 
 
 Whereas, based on the proposal reviews, Staff recommended to award the construction 
contract to RM Rodriguez Construction, LP based on their high scores related to reputation and 
experience, however, based on limited funding available for this project, and RM Rodriguez’s 
proposed pricing being higher than Choice Builders’ non-negotiated proposed pricing, the 
Interim City Manager recommends that Council award the construction contract to the 2nd 
highest ranked proposer, Choice Builders, LLC of Temple, Texas;   
 
 Whereas, under the CSP method, Staff is able to negotiate with the contractor and 
according to the current negotiated contracted price with Choice Builders, there is a $107,000 
reduction under their original offer of $1,587,485 – this reduction amount reflects adjustment of 
the elimination of the epoxy floor coating in the hangar, elimination of the automatic hangar door 
opener, and several finish changes in the office space; 
 

Whereas, funding for this construction contact will be made available in Account No. 
795-9500-531-6523, Project No. 101586; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 



2 
 

 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 
 

Part 2: The City Council authorizes the Acting City Manager, or her designee, after 
approval as to form by the City Attorney, to execute a construction contract with Choice 
Builders, LLC of Temple, Texas in the amount of $1,480,485, for the construction of a hangar at 
the Draughon-Miller Central Texas Regional Airport. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of October, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 

       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Charla Thomas 
City Secretary      Deputy City Attorney 
 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/19/17 

Item #6(K) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Brian Chandler, Director of Planning 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services agreement 
with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP, in an amount not to exceed $211,600 to develop a concept 
design for North 31st Street from West Nugent Avenue to Central Avenue. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The project scope consists of the development of a Concept Design for North 31st 
Street from West Nugent to Central Avenue, which will include marketing renderings and cost 
estimates. The work to be performed by KPA under this contract consists of providing study area 
research and mapping, streetscape design, lighting, pedestrian access, enhanced vertical design, 
modeling, marketing renderings and estimates. 
 
The following tasks and costs are recommended for authorization: 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Data Collection    $ 18,900 
Develop Mapping, Property, Zoning, etc.    $ 36,300 
Initial Concept Design    $ 28,600 
I-35 Frontage Road to North 31st Connection 
Concept Design 

   $ 28,200 

   West Houston – Calhoun Concept Design    $ 39,600 
Lighting and Landscape Concept Design    $ 13,800 
Pedestrian and Bike Mobility    $ 12,200 
Project Phasing and Cost Estimates    $ 17,200 
Renderings and Deliverables 
TOTAL 

   $ 16,800 
$  211,600 

 



10/19/17 
Item #6(K) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
On September 27, 2017, the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Board approved to recommend that Council 
authorize this professional services agreement. 
 
The timeframe for design of the project is ten months from the Notice to Proceed. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Funding of the professional services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, 
LP for the North 31st Street (Nugent Avenue to Central Avenue) Concept Design in the amount of 
$211,600 is available in the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Financing and Project Plans, Line 407, in 
account. 795-9500-531-6571, project 101798, as follows: 
 

Project Budget  $        212,000  
Encumbered/Committed to Date                       -    

KPA, Professional Services Agreement          (211,600) 
Remaining Project Funds Available  $               400  

 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Proposal 
Map 
Resolution 
 
  















1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO.     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
WITH KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, LP OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
IN THE AMOUNT OF $211,600, TO DEVELOP A CONCEPT DESIGN 
FOR NORTH 31ST STREET FROM WEST NUGENT AVENUE TO 
CENTRAL AVENUE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, this project will consist of the development of a Concept Design for North 
31st Street from West Nugent to Central Avenue, which will include marketing renderings 
and cost estimates; 
 
 Whereas, Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP will provide study area research and 
mapping, streetscape design, lighting, pedestrian access, enhanced vertical design, modeling, 
marketing renderings and estimates for the project; 
 

Whereas, funds are available for this agreement in the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 
Financing and Project Plans, Line 407, Account No. 795-9500-531-6571, Project No. 
101798; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the Acting City Manager, or her designee, after 
approval as to form by the City Attorney, to execute a professional services agreement with 
Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP of Temple, Texas, in the amount of $211,600, to develop 
a concept design for North 31st Street from West Nugent Avenue to Central Avenue. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



2 
 

 
 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of October, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Charla Thomas 
City Secretary     Deputy City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/19/17 

Item #6(L) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Brian Chandler, Director of Planning 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services agreement 
with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP, in an amount not to exceed $129,840 to develop a concept 
design for South 31st Street (Loop 363 to West Avenue M) and West Avenue R (South 31st Street to 
South 25th Street). 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
REINVESTMENT ZONE BOARD RECOMMENDATION: At their September 27, 2017 meeting, the RZ 
Board recommended approval. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The project scope consists of the development of a Concept Design for South 31st 
Street from Loop 363 to West Avenue M and West Avenue R from South 31st Street to South 25th 
Street, which will include marketing renderings and cost estimates. The work to be performed by KPA 
under this contract consists of providing planning and engineering services for design of the project 
described above to include streetscape design, lighting, pedestrian access, enhanced vertical design, 
modeling, marketing renderings and estimates. The following tasks and costs are recommended for 
authorization: 
 

 
   
On September 27, 2017, the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Board approved to recommend that Council 
authorize this professional services agreement. 

 

Data Collection     $ 3,400 

Initial Concept Design   $ 18,200 
31st Street Concept Design   $ 21,400 
Vertical Design Elements   $ 19,200 
Pedestrian and Bike Facilities   $ 27,300 
Avenue R Concept Design 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  $ 16,800 
Project Phasing and Cost Estimates   $ 12,600 
Renderings and Deliverables   $ 10,940 
TOTAL $ 129,840 
 



10/19/17 
Item #6(L) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
The timeframe for design of the project is seven months from the Notice to Proceed. 
 
This project would complement a proposed $1,660,000 project extending along South 31st Street from 
West Adams Avenue south to the Bentwood subdivision, which fills in sidewalk gaps and includes a 
new pedestrian bridge across the railroad near Avenue H.  TXDOT recently informed the City of Temple 
that they would incorporate this project, which was submitted for a statewide Transportation 
Alternatives Program grant, into their planned South 31st Street resurfacing project. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Funding of the professional services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, 
LP, for the 31st Street (Loop 363 to Avenue M) and Avenue R (31st to 25th Street) Concept Design in 
the amount of $129,840 is available in Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Financing and Project Plans, Line 
460, in account 795-9500-531-6572, project 101799, as follows: 
 

Project Budget  $        130,000  
Encumbered/Committed to Date                       -    

KPA, Professional Services Agreement          (129,840) 
Remaining Project Funds Available  $               160  

 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Proposal 
Map 
Resolution 
 
  















1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO.     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
WITH KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, LP OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
IN THE AMOUNT OF $129,840, TO DEVELOP A CONCEPT DESIGN 
FOR SOUTH 31ST STREET (LOOP 363 TO WEST AVENUE M) AND 
WEST AVENUE R (SOUTH 31ST STREET TO SOUTH 25TH STREET); 
AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, this project will consist of the development of a Concept Design for South 
31st Street from Loop 363 to West Avenue M and West Avenue R from South 31st Street to 
South 25th Street, which will also include marketing renderings and cost estimates; 
 
 Whereas, Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP will provide planning and engineering 
services for design of the project to include streetscape design, lighting, pedestrian access, 
enhanced vertical design, modeling, marketing renderings and estimates; 
 

Whereas, funds are available for this agreement in the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 
Financing and Project Plans, Line 460, Account No. 795-9500-531-6572, Project No. 
101799; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the Acting City Manager, or her designee, after 
approval as to form by the City Attorney, to execute a professional services agreement with 
Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP of Temple, Texas, in the amount of $129,840, to develop 
a concept design for South 31st Street (Loop 363 to West Avenue M) and West Avenue R 
(South 31st Street to South 25th Street). 
 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



2 
 

 
 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of October, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Charla Thomas 
City Secretary     Deputy City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/19/17 

Item #6(M) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva, P.E., Public Works Director 
Don Bond, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services agreement 
with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP, in the amount of $295,260 for design of South 1st Street from 
Avenue A to Central Avenue and a concept design for Avenue A from South 3rd Street to South 2nd 
Street. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: This project will follow the concepts of the Downtown Masterplan to reconstruct the 
street and streetscape, including applicable utilities, for the referenced section of South 1st Street and 
similarly provide a conceptual design for the indicated portion of Avenue A. The consultant services 
recommended in this item comprise the following tasks and costs: 

  
 1st Street Design 
  Surveys      $     5,500 
  Geotech      $     6,200 
  Environmental     $     5,300 
  Electrical      $   16,900 
  Civil Design      $ 102,520 
  Landscape Design     $   44,000 
      SUBTOTAL  $ 180,420 
  
 Ave A Concept Design 
  Preliminary Concept    $   18,600 
  Final Concept     $   69,840 
  Phasing & Cost Estimates    $   12,800 
  Renderings & Deliverables    $   13,600 
 
      SUBTOTAL  $ 114,840 
 
   
     TOTAL   $ 295,260 

 



10/19/17 
Item #6(M) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 
On September 27, 2017, the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Board approved to recommend that Council 
authorize the professional services agreement. 
 
Time required for design is 270 calendar days.  Please see the attached project maps for illustrations 
of the projects. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funding for the professional services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, 
LP for 1st Street (Avenue B to Central Avenue) Final Design and Avenue A (North 3rd to South 2nd) 
Concept Design in the amount of $295,260 is available in Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Financing and 
Project Plans, line 406, in account 795-9500-531-6561, project 101797, as follows: 
  

Project Budget  $        296,000  
Encumbered/Committed to Date                       -    

KPA Professional Services Agreement          (295,260) 
Remaining Project Funds Available  $               740  

 
 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
Engineer’s Proposal 
South 1st Street Map 
Avenue A Map 
Resolution 
  





















 RESOLUTION NO.     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH 
KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, LP OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $295,260, FOR DESIGN OF SOUTH 1ST STREET FROM AVENUE 
A TO CENTRAL AVENUE AND FOR A CONCEPT DESIGN FOR AVENUE A 
FROM SOUTH 3RD STREET TO SOUTH 2ND STREET; AND PROVIDING AN 
OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the concepts of the Downtown Masterplan involve the reconstruction of streets and 
streetscapes which include applicable utilities for a portion of South 1st Street from Avenue A to 
Central Avenue, as well as a conceptual design for Avenue A from South 3rd Street to South 2nd 
Street;  
 
 Whereas, On September 27, 2017, the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Board approved this project 
and recommends Council award a professional services agreement to Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, 
LP in the amount of $295,260; 
 
 Whereas, funds are available for this agreement in the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Financing 
and Project Plan, Line 406, Account No. 795-9500-531-6561, Project No. 101797; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative and 
factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved and 
incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the Acting City Manager, or her designee, after approval 
as to form by the City Attorney, to execute a professional services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick 
& Associates, LP of Temple, Texas, in the amount of $295,260, for professional services related to 
the design of South 1st Street from Avenue A to Central Avenue, as well as a concept design for 
Avenue A from South 3rd Street to South 2nd Street. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Resolution 
was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose 
of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of October, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Charla Thomas 
City Secretary      Deputy City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/19/17 

Item #6(N) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva, P.E., Public Works Director 
Don Bond, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services agreement 
with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP, in an amount not to exceed $884,200 for final design of Phase 
4 of the Outer Loop. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The Outer Loop south of FM 2305 is an important north-south arterial that will 
connect the Adams Avenue growth corridor to IH 35.  Phase 3A at Adams Avenue has recently been 
constructed, with ROW currently being acquired for the next phase (3B) to extend the Outer Loop just 
south of Jupiter Drive. Phase 4 will consist of 6,100 linear feet of arterial roadway between Jupiter Road 
and just south of the future connection of Poison Oak Road (see Project Map).  
  
The following tasks and costs are recommended for authorization: 
 
  Route & Design Studies    $   30,900 
  Surveying      $   47,200 
  Metes & Bounds     $   40,800 
  Road Design      $ 298,800 
  Drainage      $ 218,000 
  Signage      $   44,800 
  Utility Design      $   84,000 
  Environmental     $   32,600 
  Geotech      $   25,600 
  Misc. Design      $   26,000 
  Management & Coordination   $   27,500 
  Bidding      $     8,000 
 
     TOTAL           $   884,200  
 
Design will be completed within 360 calendar days from the notice to proceed and receipt of all 
necessary rights-of-entry. The OPC for construction of this project is $12,150,000. Funding for 
construction is currently scheduled to be available in FY 2019. 

 



10/19/17 
Item #6(N) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: A budget adjustment is being presented to Council to appropriate funding for the 
utility portion of the professional services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP for the 
final design of Phase 4 of the Outer Loop. Funding in the amount of $884,200 will be available in  project 
101714, as follows: 
 

 365-3400-531-6813  561-5200-535-6813  Total 

    
Project Budget  $               2,400,000    $                            -    $         2,400,000  

Budget Adjustment                              -                           84,000                    84,000  
Encumbered/Committed to Date                              -                                  -                            -    

KPA Professional Services Agreement                    (800,200)                        (84,000)                 (884,200) 

Remaining Project Funds  $               1,599,800    $                            -    $         1,599,800  
 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Engineer’s Proposal 
Project Map 
Budget Adjustment 
Resolution 
  

























P
E

A
 
R

I
D

G
E

 
R

D
.

P

E

P

P

E

R

 

C

R

E

E

K

ADAMS AVE. WEST

O
L
D

 
W

A
C

O
 
R

D
.

O
L
D

 
W

A
C

O
 
R

D
.

P
E

A
 
R

I
D

G
E

 
R

D
.

P
A

R
K

S
I
D

E
 
R

D
.

C

H

A

R

T

E

R

 

O

A

K

 

D

R

.

T
W

I
N

 
C

I
T

Y
 
B

L
V

D

R
I
V

E
R

S
I
D

E
 
T

R
.

T
E

M
-
B

E
L
L

S
H

A
L
L
O

W
 
F

O
R

D
 
W

E
S

T
 
R

D
.

P

A

T

 
C

O

L

E

K
ID

D
IE

L
A

N
D

PEA RIDGE RD.

POISON OAK RD

POISON O
AK RD

P
E

A
 
R

I
D

G
E

 
R

D
.

P
E

A
 
R

I
D

G
E

 
R

D
.

JUPITER RD.

VENUS D
R.

OLD W
ACO LN

HOLY TRINITY

CATHOLIC

SCHOOL

BELTON

I.S.D.

L

E

O

N

 

R

I

V

E

R

R
I
D

G
E

W
A

Y
 
D

R
.

K
E

G
E

L
Y

 
R

O
A

D

P
:
\
T

e
m

p
l
e
 
R

e
i
n
v
e
s
t
m

e
n
t
\
2
0
1
7
\
D

e
v
e
l
o
p
m

e
n
t
\
O

U
T

E
R

 
L
O

O
P

 
2
0
1
7
\
o
u
t
e
r
l
o
o
p
 
2
0
1
7
.
d
w

g

Printed :  Sep 29,  2017 - 11:17am

SOUTH OUTERLOOP/RESEARCH PKWY.

N

O

R

T

H

PHASE V

PHASE VI

PHASE IIIA

(Constructed)

PHASE IIIB

(Designed)

POISON OAK ROAD

PROPOSED RE-ALIGNMENT

PROPOSED PHASE IV - 2017

PROPOSED TARVER RD.

(CONSTRUCTED)

C

I

T

Y

 

L

I

M

I

T

S

C

I

T

Y

 

L

I

M

I

T

S

C
I
T

Y
 
L
I
M

I
T

S

C
IT

Y
 L

IM
IT

S

C
I
T

Y
 
L
I
M

I
T

S

PROPOSED

PHASE IV

NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS

AutoCAD SHX Text
564.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOG PEN CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOG PEN CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOG PEN CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOG PEN CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEPPER'S CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEPPER'S CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOG PEN CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOG PEN CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEPPER'S CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEPPER'S CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEPPER'S CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOG PEN CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS

AutoCAD SHX Text
522.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS

AutoCAD SHX Text
537.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS

AutoCAD SHX Text
510.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS

AutoCAD SHX Text
490.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS

AutoCAD SHX Text
510.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS

AutoCAD SHX Text
492.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS

AutoCAD SHX Text
495.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drying Beds

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS

AutoCAD SHX Text
510.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS

AutoCAD SHX Text
498.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS

AutoCAD SHX Text
490.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS

AutoCAD SHX Text
526.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS

AutoCAD SHX Text
497.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS

AutoCAD SHX Text
548.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS

AutoCAD SHX Text
524.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS

AutoCAD SHX Text
533.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS

AutoCAD SHX Text
547.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS

AutoCAD SHX Text
546.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS

AutoCAD SHX Text
547.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS

AutoCAD SHX Text
548.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS

AutoCAD SHX Text
500.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS

AutoCAD SHX Text
526.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS

AutoCAD SHX Text
536.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS

AutoCAD SHX Text
532.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS

AutoCAD SHX Text
538.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS

AutoCAD SHX Text
542.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS

AutoCAD SHX Text
546.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS

AutoCAD SHX Text
555.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS

AutoCAD SHX Text
564.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
Golf Course

AutoCAD SHX Text
Golf Course

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS

AutoCAD SHX Text
522.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
?

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS

AutoCAD SHX Text
576.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS

AutoCAD SHX Text
589.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS

AutoCAD SHX Text
595.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
?

AutoCAD SHX Text
Golf Course

AutoCAD SHX Text
Golf Course

AutoCAD SHX Text
Golf Course

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS

AutoCAD SHX Text
490.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
Golf Course

AutoCAD SHX Text
Golf Course

AutoCAD SHX Text
Golf Course

AutoCAD SHX Text
Golf Course

AutoCAD SHX Text
Golf Course

AutoCAD SHX Text
Golf Course

AutoCAD SHX Text
Golf Course

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS

AutoCAD SHX Text
491.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS

AutoCAD SHX Text
491.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS

AutoCAD SHX Text
489.6



Revised form - 10/27/06

FY 2018
BUDGET ADJUSTMENT FORM

Use this form to make adjustments to your budget.  All adjustments must balance within a Department.
Adjustments should be rounded to the nearest $1. 

+ -

ACCOUNT NUMBER PROJECT # DECREASE

561-5200-535-68-13 101714
561-5000-535-65-32 84,000        

TOTAL……………………………………………………………………………………… 84,000$      

DOES THIS REQUEST REQUIRE COUNCIL APPROVAL? X Yes No

DATE OF COUNCIL MEETING

WITH AGENDA ITEM? X Yes No

Approved
Disapproved

Approved
Disapproved

Approved
DisapprovedCity Manager

Department Head/Division Director

Finance

Date

Date

Date

INCREASE

84,000$      
ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

Capital - Bonds / Outer Loop
Capital Special Projects/Contingency

84,000$      

To appropriate funding needed in the amount of $84,000 for the utility portion of the professional services agreement with Kasberg, 
Patrick & Associates for the final design of Phase 4 of the Outer Loop. The professional services agreement with KPA is being 
presented to Council for authorization in the amount of $884,200.

10/19/2017

EXPLANATION OF ADJUSTMENT REQUEST- Include justification for increases AND reason why funds in decreased 
account are available.



1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO.     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
WITH KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, LP OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
IN THE AMOUNT OF $884,200, FOR FINAL DESIGN OF PHASE 4 OF 
THE OUTER LOOP; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the Outer Loop south of FM 2305, is an important north-south arterial that 
will connect the Adams Avenue growth corridor to IH 35; 
 
 Whereas, Phase 3A at Adams Avenue has recently been constructed, with right of 
way currently being acquired for the next phase (3B) to extend the Outer Loop just south of 
Jupiter Drive - Phase 4 will consist of approximately 6,100 linear feet of arterial roadway 
between Jupiter Road and just south of the future connection of Poison Oak Road; 
 

Whereas, funds are available for this agreement, but an amendment to the fiscal year 
2018 budget needs to be approved to transfer the funds to Account Nos. 365-3400-531-6813 
and 561-5200-535-6813, Project No. 101714; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the Acting City Manager, or her designee, after 
approval as to form by the City Attorney, to execute a professional services agreement with 
Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP of Temple, Texas, in the amount of $884,200, for final 
design of Phase 4 of the Outer Loop. 
 

Part 3: The City Council authorizes an amendment to the fiscal year 2018 budget, 
substantially in the form of the copy attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A.’ 
 

Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



2 
 

 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of October, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Charla Thomas 
City Secretary     Deputy City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/19/17 

Item #6(O) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1  
 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
Christina Demirs, Deputy City Attorney 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services agreement 
with Stateside Right of Way Services, Inc., in an amount not to exceed $45,100 for securing rights of 
entry for Phase 4 of the Outer Loop. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The Outer Loop south of FM 2305 is an important north-south arterial that will 
connect the Adams Avenue growth corridor to IH 35.  Phase 3A at Adams Avenue has recently been 
constructed, with ROW currently being acquired for the next phase (3B) to extend the Outer Loop just 
south of Jupiter Drive.  Phase 4 will consist of 6,100 linear feet of arterial roadway between Jupiter 
Road and just south of the future connection of Poison Oak Road.  
 
At this time, Staff anticipates rights of entry will be needed from approximately 82 tracts of land.  Rights 
of entry are needed for City consultants to access private land for activities such as surveying, 
environmental studies, and appraisal studies.   
 
Stateside will contact property owners to secure the rights of entry needed to finalize design plans.  
 
Staff recommends Council authorize a professional services agreement with Stateside, in an amount 
not to exceed $45,100 for securing rights of entry for Phase 4 of the Outer Loop. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: The professional services agreement with Stateside Right of Way Services, Inc. for 
securing rights of entry for Phase 4 of the Outer Loop Project in the amount of $45,100 is being funded 
with the issuance of the 2017 Certificate of Obligation Bonds.  Funds will be appropriated in account 
365-3400-531-6813, project 101714. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Stateside Proposal  
Resolution  
 
  







1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO.     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
WITH STATESIDE RIGHT OF WAY SERVICES, INC. OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $45,100, FOR THE SECURING OF 
RIGHTS OF ENTRY FOR PHASE 4 OF THE OUTER LOOP; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the Outer Loop, south of FM 2305, is an important north-south arterial that will 
connect the Adams Avenue growth corridor to IH 35; 
 
 Whereas, Phase 3A at Adams Avenue has recently been constructed, with right of way 
currently being acquired for the next phase (3B) to extend the Outer Loop just south of Jupiter 
Drive - Phase 4 will consist of approximately 6,100 linear feet of arterial roadway between 
Jupiter Road and just south of the future connection of Poison Oak Road;  
 
 Whereas, Staff anticipates rights of entry will be needed from approximately 82 tracts of 
land, which are needed for City consultants to access private land for activities such as 
surveying, environmental studies, and appraisal studies;   
 
 Whereas, Stateside Right of Way Services will contact property owners to secure the 
rights of entry needed to finalize design plans;  
 
 Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize a professional services agreement with 
Stateside Right of Way Services, Inc. in an amount not to exceed $45,100 for securing rights of 
entry needed for Phase 4 of the Outer Loop; 
 
 Whereas, this agreement will be funded with the issuance of the 2017 Certificate of 
Obligation Bonds and funds will be appropriated in Account No. 365-3400-531-6813, Project 
No. 101714; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the Acting City Manager, or her designee, after 
approval as to form by the City Attorney, to execute a professional services agreement with 
Stateside Right of Way Services, Inc. of Temple, Texas, in an amount not to exceed $45,100, for 
the securing rights of entry needed for Phase 4 of the Outer Loop. 
 



2 
 

 
 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of October, 2017. 

 
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Charla Thomas 
City Secretary      Deputy City Attorney 
 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/19/17 

Item #6(P) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
DEPT. /DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva, P.E., Public Works Director 
Don Bond, P.E., City Engineer 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an amendment to the professional 
services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP, in a deductive amount of $38,030 for 
engineering services required for final design and bidding for Phase 3 of the 31st Street Intersection 
Improvements from Loop 363 to Scott Boulevard. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Engineering services in the amount of $149,980 were authorized by City Council on 
December 4, 2014, including intersection improvements consisting of concrete paver bands, concrete 
paver crosswalks, a traffic signal and pedestrian signals. Certain portions of paver improvements will 
not be implemented at this time. This contract amendment reflects the deletion of final design and 
bidding services associated with the deleted work. 
  
Per the attached contract amendment form, engineering services to be deleted are as follows: 
 

Final Design     ($34,780)      
Bidding       ($3,250) 

 
TOTAL       ($38,030) 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: The savings from the deductive contract amendment from Kasberg, Patrick & 
Associates, LP, in the amount of $38,030 will be realized in account 795-9800-531-6873, project 
101011, as follows: 
 

Project Budget  $    1,045,000  
Encumbered/Committed to Date       (1,044,167) 

KPA Contract Amendment #4              38,030  
Remaining Project Funds Available  $          38,863  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Project Map 
Contract Amendment Form 
Resolution 







1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO.     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, LP 
OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, IN A DEDUCTIVE AMOUNT OF $38,030, FOR 
SERVICES REQUIRED FOR FINAL DESIGN AND BIDDING FOR PHASE 3 
OF THE 31ST STREET INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS FROM LOOP 363 
TO SCOTT BOULEVARD; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, on December 4, 2014, Council authorized a professional services agreement 
with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP (KPA) in an amount not to exceed $149,980, for the 
design of the 31st Street Intersection Improvements, which included concrete paver bands, 
concrete paver crosswalks, a traffic signal and pedestrian signals; 
 
 Whereas, certain portions of paver improvements will not be implemented at this time 
and this contract amendment reflects the deletion of certain final design and bidding services 
associated with the deleted work; 
 
 Whereas, savings from the deductive contract amendment will be realized in Account 
No. 795-9800-531-6873, Project No. 101011; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the Acting City Manager, or her designee, after 
approval as to form by the City Attorney, to execute an amendment to the professional services 
agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP of Temple, Texas, in the deductive amount of 
$38,030, for engineering services required for the final design and bidding of Phase 3 of the 31st 
Street Intersection Improvements from Loop 363 to Scott Boulevard. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



2 
 

 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of October, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS  
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Charla Thomas 
City Secretary      Deputy City Attorney 
 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/19/17 

Item #6(Q) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva, P.E., Public Works Director  
Don Bond, P.E., City Engineer 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing amending an agreement with 
Kasberg, Patrick, & Associates, LP, in the amount of $437,180 for professional services required for 
final design of Kegley Road Phases 3 and 4.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: This project consists of roadway improvements to Kegley Road from the end of 
Phase 2, approximately 450 feet south of Wildflower Lane, to the intersection of Charter Oak Drive. 
Improvements include expanded pavement sections with a continuous left turn lane, pedestrian 
facilities, drainage conveyance, utilities, and an elevated bridge structure over Pepper Creek. See 
attached project map for more details and limits of project phasing. 
 
On December 1, 2016, Council authorized a professional services agreement with KPA for 30% design 
of Kegley Road Phases 3 and 4 in the amount of $306,090.  This contract amendment will provide for 
final design and bidding services, in the total amount of $743,270. 
 
Consultant services recommended under this Contract Amendment #1 include: 
 

Project Coordination    $   20,400 
Environmental     $   18,000  
Roadway Design     $ 118,860 
Drainage Design     $   79,300 
Signage and Striping    $   11,400 

  Traffic Control and Phasing   $   29,120 
  Utility Design      $   39,600 
  Structural Design     $ 112,500 
  Bidding      $     8,000 
      
       Total  $ 437,180 
 
Time required for design is 240 calendar days after the notice to proceed. The engineer’s opinion of 
probable cost for construction is $9,300,000. Funding for construction is currently scheduled to be 
available in FY 2019. 



10/19/17 
Item #6(Q) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: A budget adjustment is being presented to Council to appropriate funding for the 
utility portion of the contract amendment to the professional services agreement required for final design 
of Kegley Road Phases 3 and 4 with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP. Funding in the amount of 
$437,180 will be available in project 101607, as follows: 
 

 365-3400-531-6888  561-5200-535-6888  Total 

    
Project Budget  $               1,176,090    $                            -    $         1,176,090  

Budget Adjustment                              -                           39,600                    39,600  
Encumbered/Committed to Date                    (306,090)                               -                   (306,090) 
KPA Contract Amendment #1                    (397,580)                        (39,600)                 (437,180) 

Remaining Project Funds  $                  472,420    $                            -    $            472,420  
 
  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Engineer’s Proposal 
Project Map 
Budget Adjustment 
Resolution 
 

 
  

















Revised form - 10/27/06

FY 2018
BUDGET ADJUSTMENT FORM

Use this form to make adjustments to your budget.  All adjustments must balance within a Department.
Adjustments should be rounded to the nearest $1. 

+ -

ACCOUNT NUMBER PROJECT # DECREASE

561-5200-535-68-88 101607
561-5000-535-65-32 39,600        

TOTAL……………………………………………………………………………………… 39,600$      

DOES THIS REQUEST REQUIRE COUNCIL APPROVAL? x Yes No

DATE OF COUNCIL MEETING

WITH AGENDA ITEM? x Yes No

Approved
Disapproved

Approved
Disapproved

Approved
Disapproved

To appropriate funding needed in the amount of $39,600 for the utility portion of Contralct Amendment #1 for the professional services 
agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates related to the Kegley Road Phases 3 & 4 project. Contract Amendment #1 with KPA is 
being presented to Council for authorization in the amount of $437,180.

10/19/2017

EXPLANATION OF ADJUSTMENT REQUEST- Include justification for increases AND reason why funds in decreased 
account are available.

39,600$      

INCREASE

39,600$      
ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

Capital Bonds / Kegley Road Improvmnts
Capital Special Projects/Contingency

Date

Date

Date

City Manager

Department Head/Division Director

Finance



1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO.     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, LP 
OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, IN THE AMOUNT OF $437,180, FOR SERVICES 
REQUIRED FOR FINAL DESIGN OF PHASES 3 AND 4 OF KEGLEY ROAD; 
AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, on December 1, 2016, Council authorized a professional services agreement 
with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP (KPA) in the amount of $306,090 for 30% design of 
Phases 3 & 4 of Kegley Road;  
 
 Whereas, this project consists of roadway improvements to Kegley Road from the end of 
Phase 2, approximately 450 feet south of Wildflower Lane, to the intersection of Charter Oak 
Drive - improvements include expanded pavement sections with a continuous left turn lane, 
pedestrian facilities, drainage conveyance, utilities, and an elevated bridge structure over Pepper 
Creek; 
 

Whereas, funds are available for this amendment, but an adjustment to the fiscal year 
2018 budget needs to be approved to transfer the funds to Account Nos. 365-3400-531-6888 and 
561-5200-535-6888, Project No. 101607; and  
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the Acting City Manager, or her designee, after 
approval as to form by the City Attorney, to execute an amendment to the professional services 
agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP of Temple, Texas, in the amount of $437,180, 
for services required for final design of Phases 3 & 4 of Kegley Road. 
 

Part 3:  The City Council authorizes an amendment to the fiscal year 2018 budget, 
substantially in the form of the copy attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A.’ 
 

Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
 
 



2 
 

 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of October, 2017. 

 
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS  
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Charla Thomas 
City Secretary      Deputy City Attorney 
 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/19/17 

Item #6(R) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Sharon Rostovich, Airport Director 

 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services agreement 
with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP, in the amount of $118,860 for developing a concept design for 
a new Airport general aviation terminal building and supporting appurtenances at the Draughon-Miller 
Central Texas Regional Airport.     
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description.   
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The Airport’s general aviation terminal facility is undersized to meet current 
operational needs. The old airline terminal facility built in the 1960s is located in the prime location for 
airfield safety viewing and customer access. The concept design will include planning for the demolition 
of the old airline terminal building, modeling a new general aviation facility, parking layout, aircraft ramp 
shade canopy and appurtenances for the support of the proposed Airport general aviation facility. 
Engineering services for the concept design will cost $118,860.   
 
The scope of services provided by KPA include:  
 

 Data Collection:    $    3,280 
 Demolition of airline terminal  $    5,880 
 Brush and tree removal   $    9,700 
 Tower revitalization    $    5,800 
 Concept Design for HQ/Parking  $  61,200 
 Research for increasing air traffic  $    5,600 
 Research for private FBO/ARFF  $    5,600 
 Project phasing & cost estimate  $  11,600  
 Renderings and deliverables  $  10,200 
       $118,860 

 
During the September 27, 2017 meeting, the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Board approved the project and 
recommended the City Council approve the professional services agreement with KPA in the amount 
of $118,860.  
  
 
 
 



10/19/17 
Item #6(R) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funding for the professional services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, 
LP in the amount of $118,860 is available in Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Financing and Project Plans, 
line 511, in account 795-9500-531-6573, project 101801, as follows: 
 

Project Budget  $        119,000  
Encumbered/Committed to Date                       -    

KPA Professional Services Agreement          (118,860) 
Remaining Project Funds Available  $               140  

 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Engineer’s Proposal 
Resolution  
  













1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO.     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
WITH KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, LP OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $118,860, FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF A CONCEPT 
DESIGN FOR A NEW AIRPORT GENERAL AVIATION TERMINAL 
BUILDING AT THE DRAUGHON-MILLER CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL 
AIRPORT; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the Airport’s old general aviation terminal facility which was built in the 1960s 
is located in the prime location for airfield safety viewing and customer access, however, it is too 
small to meet the current operational needs of the Airport; 
 
 Whereas, Staff has asked Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP to develop a concept design 
which will include planning for the demolition of the old airline terminal building, the modeling 
of a new general aviation facility, a parking layout, aircraft ramp shade canopy and 
appurtenances; 
 
 Whereas, on September 27, 2017, the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Board approved this 
project and recommends Council award a professional services agreement to Kasberg, Patrick & 
Associates, LP in the amount of $118,860; 
 
 Whereas, funds are available for this agreement in the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 
Financing and Project Plan, Line 406, Account No. 795-9500-531-6573, Project No. 101801; 
and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the Acting City Manager, or her designee, after 
approval as to form by the City Attorney, to execute a professional services agreement with 
Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP of Temple, Texas, in the amount of $118,860, for the 
development of a concept design for a new Airport general aviation terminal building at the 
Draughon-Miller Central Texas Regional Airport. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



2 
 

 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of October, 2017. 

 
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson      Charla Thomas 
City Secretary      Deputy City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/19/17 

Item #6(S) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
Sharon Rostovich, Airport Director 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an Airport Hangar Lease Agreement 
with Wilsonart, LLC. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The City Council previously awarded a design contract to Kasberg, Patrick, and 
Associates, LP (“KPA”) for the design of a new hangar to be constructed at the Draughon-Miller Central 
Texas Regional Airport (the “Airport”). The project was released through a Competitive Sealed Proposal 
process on July 20, 2017 and proposals were opened on August 24, 2017. On this same agenda, Staff 
is asking Council to authorize a construction contract with Choice Builders, LLC for construction of the 
hangar. Wilsonart, LLC (“Wilsonart”) has asked to rent the hangar after it is constructed.  
 
The proposed Lease would be for a term of 20 years with the option to renew for an additional 10 years 
upon agreement of the parties and approval of the City Council. Wilsonart will only have the right to use 
the hangar for aircraft hangar purposes and operations associated with operation and storage of the 
aircraft. Any aircraft stored in the hangar must be owned and/or operated by Wilsonart.  
 
Wilsonart will pay to the City, monthly, a rental rate of $0.15/square foot for the hangar space which is 
approximately 13,000 square feet. The construction cost of the hangar space is $1,162,385. Wilsonart 
has asked the City to finance the cost of the office space, approximately 1,500 square feet, over the 
first 10 years of the lease. Staff worked with Wilsonart and Choice Builders and has finalized the 
construction cost of the office space.  The final cost for the office space is $318,100. The per square 
foot rental rate which will reimburse the City for the cost of the space over the first 10 years of the lease 
is $1.77. Wilsonart will also pay the City $0.10 per square foot for the “land lease” for the 1,500 square 
feet of office area. 
 
The City will carry property insurance covering the hangar and office space. Wilsonart will carry general 
liability coverage and insurance coverage on any personal property. Wilsonart will be responsible for 
all utilities. Wilsonart will not be able to assign the Lease or sublet any space in the hangar without the 
prior written consent of the City.  
 
Council previously authorized this Lease Agreement on June 15, 2017, however after this date, 
Wilsonart asked the City to consider financing the construction costs of the office space over the first 
10 years of the lease instead of requiring Wilsonart to make an up-front payment. 



10/19/17 
Item #6(S) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: The lease payment revenue to be received from Wilsonart for the hangar space 
rental will be $1,950 monthly. The lease payment revenue to be received from Wilsonart for the 
amortization of the office space will be $2,650.83 monthly, plus $150 a month for the land lease on the 
office area. The total monthly lease payment will be $4,750.83 for the first ten years of the lease.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 
  



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO.      
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING AN AIRPORT HANGAR LEASE AGREEMENT 
WITH WILSONART, LLC AT THE DRAUGHON-MILLER CENTRAL 
TEXAS REGIONAL AIRPORT; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, Council previously awarded a design contract to Kasberg, Patrick, and 
Associates, LP (KPA) for the design of a new hangar to be constructed at the Draughon-
Miller Central Texas Regional Airport (Airport); 
 
 Whereas, on July 20, 2017, Council authorized this project utilizing the Competitive 
Sealed Proposal (CSP) project delivery method as allowed by Texas Government Code 
Chapter 2269 and Choice Builders, LLC of Temple, Texas was awarded a construction 
contract for the construction of an approximately 13,000 square foot hangar with a 90-foot 
sliding door, and affixed approximately 1,500 square foot office space; 
 
 Whereas, the Lease will be for a term of 20 years a monthly rental rate of $0.15 per 
square foot with the option to renew for an additional 10 years upon agreement of the parties 
and approval of Council; 
 
 Whereas, Wilsonart will only have the right to use the hangar for aircraft hangar 
purposes and operations associated with operation and storage of the aircraft - any aircraft 
stored in the hangar must be owned and/or operated by Wilsonart; 
 
 Whereas, the City will carry property insurance covering the hangar and office space 
and Wilsonart will carry general liability coverage and insurance coverage on any personal 
property and will be responsible for all utilities; 
 
 Whereas, Wilsonart will not be able to assign the Lease or sublet any space in the 
hangar without the prior written consent of the City;  
 
 Whereas, the lease payment revenue to be received from Wilsonart for the hangar 
space rental will be $1,950 per month, and $2,650.83 per month for the amortization of 
office space, plus $150 a month for the land lease for a total combined monthly lease amount 
of $4,750.83 for the first ten years of the lease; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 
 
 



2 
 

 
 
 Part 2:  The City Council authorizes the Acting City Manager, or her designee, after 
approval as to form by the City Attorney, to execute an airport hangar lease agreement with 
Wilsonart, LLC at the Draughon-Miller Central Texas Regional Airport, at a rental rate of 
$0.15 per square foot of hangar space per month for 20 years with the option to renew for an 
additional 10 years upon agreement of the parties and approval of Council. 
 
 Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of October, 2017. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Charla Thomas 
City Secretary      Deputy City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/19/17 

Item #6(T) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Sharon Rostovich, Airport Director 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a one year lease extension to JR 
Aviation, LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of Paradise Helicopters located in Kailia-Kona, Hawaii, for 
aviation services through September 1, 2018 at the Draughon-Miller Central Texas Regional Airport.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: On August 15, 2013, JR Aviation was selected from an RFP process for the lease 
of an 8,300 square foot hangar for the purpose of providing rotary wing flight services, aircraft 
maintenance and storage, aerial dispensing, water bucket firefighting and other related aviation 
services for our flying customers at the Draughon-Miller Central Texas Regional Airport.     
 
JR Aviation has demonstrated over the term of the lease, they are capable of operating a professional 
aviation business on the Airport; therefore, staff recommends that a one year extension to the JR 
Aviation lease be approved to run through September 1, 2018.              
 
The rental rate will be $1,200 per month which is a comparable square footage rate to similar aviation 
support businesses on the field providing services to our flying customers. In addition to the rental 
revenue, the Airport will benefit from increased aircraft traffic and fuel sales.      
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Annual lease revenue of $14,400 for rental of the 8,300 square foot hangar will be 
deposited into account 110-0000-446-3026, Private Hangar Rental.       
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 
  



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO.     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A ONE YEAR LEASE EXTENSION TO AN 
AIRPORT HANGAR LEASE WITH JR AVIATION, LLC, A WHOLLY 
OWNED SUBSIDIARY OF PARADISE HELICOPTERS LOCATED IN 
KAILIA-KONA, HAWAII, FOR AVIATION SERVICES AT THE 
DRAUGHON-MILLER CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL AIRPORT; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, on August 15, 2013, JR Aviation was selected for the lease of an 8,300 
square foot hangar for the purpose of providing rotary wing flight services, aircraft 
maintenance and storage, aerial dispensing, water bucket firefighting and other related 
aviation services for flying customers at the Draughon-Miller Central Texas Regional 
Airport; 
 
 Whereas, JR Aviation has demonstrated they are capable of operating a professional 
aviation business at the Airport and Staff recommends Council authorize a one year 
extension to the lease with JR Aviation;              
 
 Whereas, the lease will run through September 1, 2018 and the rental rate will be 
$1,200 per month which is a comparable square footage rate to similar aviation support 
businesses currently leasing at the Airport; 
 
 Whereas, annual lease revenue from JR Aviation will be deposited into Account No. 
110-0000-446-3026; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.
  
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the Acting City Manager, or her designee, after 
approval as to form by the City Attorney, to execute a one-year lease extension with JR 
Aviation, LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of Paradise Helicopters located in Kailia-Kona, 
Hawaii, for aviation services through September 1, 2018 at the Draughon-Miller Central 
Texas Regional Airport, in the amount of $1,200 per month. 
 
 Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



2 
 

 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of October, 2017. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Charla Thomas 
City Secretary      Deputy City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/19/17 

Item #6(U) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:   
  
Sharon Rostovich, Airport Director 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing acceptance of the FY18 Texas 
Department of Transportation, Aviation Division, Routine Airport Maintenance (RAMP) Grant, in the 
amount of $100,000 (City match of $50,000), to help assist with Airport improvements at the Draughon-
Miller Central Texas Regional Airport.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The City of Temple, as part of our Airport Grant Assurance, has participated in the 
yearly RAMP grant program through the Texas Department of Transportation, Aviation Division for 
many years. The RAMP grant is a pro-active, flexible grant program that allows the City to determine 
projects on an as needed basis upon execution of the grant.   
  
TxDOT has approved Temple’s participation for inclusion in the FY18 RAMP Program at the maximum 
level of $100,000 (50-50 share). The City’s matching funds are incorporated into the Reinvestment 
Zone No. 1 Financing Plan.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT: The expenditure of $100,000 (which includes the City’s $50,000 match) was 
approved in the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Financing and Project Plans, line 509, in account 795-9500-
531-6559, project 101800.  TxDOT Aviation will reimburse the City 50% of the total project cost not to 
exceed $50,000. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 
  



1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO.     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING ACCEPTANCE OF A TEXAS DEPARTMENT 
OF TRANSPORTATION, AVIATION DIVISION, ROUTINE AIRPORT 
MAINTENANCE GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $100,000 (CITY MATCH 
OF $50,000) FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018, TO ASSIST WITH AIRPORT 
IMPROVEMENTS AT THE DRAUGHON-MILLER CENTRAL TEXAS 
REGIONAL AIRPORT; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the City of Temple, as part of the Airport Grant Assurance, has participated in 
the yearly Routine Airport Maintenance Grant (RAMP) program through the Texas Department 
of Transportation, Aviation Division for several years; 
 
 Whereas, the RAMP grant is a pro-active, flexible grant program that allows the City to 
determine projects on an as-needed basis upon execution of the grant;      
 
 Whereas, the Texas Department of Transportation Aviation Division has approved 
Temple’s participation for inclusion in the fiscal year 2018 RAMP Program at the maximum 
level of $100,000 (50/50 share);      
 
 Whereas, the expenditure of $100,000 (which includes the City’s $50,000 match) was 
approved in the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Financing Plan, Line 509, in Account No. 795-9500-
531-6559, Project No. 101800 - Texas Department of Transportation Aviation will reimburse the 
City 50% of the total project cost not to exceed $50,000; and  
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  
 
 Part 2: The City Council accepts a Texas Department of Transportation, Aviation Division, 
Routine Airport Maintenance Grant, in the amount of $100,000 (City match of $50,000) for fiscal 
year 2018 for airport improvements at the Draughon-Miller Central Texas Regional Airport.   



2 
 

 
 
Part 3: The Council authorizes the Acting City Manager, or her designee, after approval 

as to form by the City Attorney, to execute any documents which may be necessary for the 
acceptance of this grant, and to accept any and all funds that may be received for this grant. 

 
 Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of October, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Charla Thomas 
City Secretary      Deputy City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/19/17 

Item #6(V) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 3 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Traci L. Barnard, Director of Finance 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: SECOND READING: Consider adopting an ordinance authorizing an 
amendment to the Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Financing and Project Plans to 
align with the 2022 Master Plan which includes appropriating bond proceeds, adjusting tax revenues 
and allocating expenditures for public improvements for years FY 2017-2062. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt ordinance as presented in item description, on second and final 
reading. 
  
ITEM SUMMARY:  On August 09, 2017 and September 13, 2017 the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 (RZ#1) 
Finance and Project Committees held joint meetings. The meetings consisted of reviewing available 
funding sources and aligning funding with project needs. All projects were reviewed for updated cost 
estimates, project scope, and project readiness/delivery. The available funding sources identified were 
from the combination of revised tax increment revenues estimates based on the receipt of certified 
values from the Bell County Appraisal District, reallocation of funding from existing projects, and the 
issuance of TIRZ Revenue Bonds.  
 
The focus of the proposed amendment is for the fiscal years 2017-2019, however, state law requires a 
financing and project plan to span the life of the Zone. The result of the meetings is recommended 
changes to the Financing and Project Plans to continue with the execution of the 2022 Master Plan. 
 
The Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Board approved these amendments at its September 27, 2017 board 
meeting. 
 
Below are highlights of selected line items: 
 
Tax Increment Revenues: FY 2018 - Taxable values were revised to reflect the certified tax roll 
received from the Bell County Appraisal District. Total anticipated revenues are $17,793,995 from all 
participating taxing entities which is an increase of $1,528,874 from the current Financing Plan. Future 
revenues were adjusted using FY 2018 revenues as a base. Assumptions for forecasting future 
revenues included decreasing the value of Panda I and II valuations to reflect current operational factors 
associated with Panda I and II and market trends for power generation plants. The future annual 
valuations were adjusted equally to reach approximately 40% of replacement cost in FY 2023. In 
addition, revenue forecast were adjusted for expiring tax abatements and future real property 
expansions, a growth factor was applied to the adjusted projected values and adjustments were made 
for changes to existing future real property improvements/expansions to the applicable years. 
Assumptions are reviewed annually upon receipt of certified tax rolls and will be adjusted as necessary.   
 



10/19/17 
Item #6(V) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 3 

 
TIRZ Revenue Bonds In FY 2017, $19,000,000 of bond proceeds were removed from the Financing 
Plan to reflect a revised issue date based on timing of the projects.  In FY 2018, $22,000,000 of bond 
proceeds were added to fund projects shown in the 2022 Master Plan Project Funding Schedule. The 
increase in the bond issue amount was based on project needs and is within the parameters for 
maintaining a two times coverage for future debt service. The projects to be funded with the bond 
proceeds are as follows:  
 

 
The amendment also includes an allocation for annual debt service for the TIRZ Revenue bonds 
beginning in FY 2019 through FY 2038 (20 year amortization). The average annual debt service on the 
proposed issue is approximately $1,640,900. 
 
Corporate Hangar: The proposed amendment includes an adjustment to reflect funding the 
administrative office space for the Wilsonart corporate hangar of $341,600. Of this amount, $235,000 
of cost will be recovered over the next 10 years through a monthly lease payment. The remaining 
amount of $106,600 will be reimbursed in lump sum amount by Wilsonart. 
 
The amendment for FY 2018 also allocates funding new projects as shown below: 
 

 
 

Public Improvements: Beginning in FY 2021 through 2062, the balance of funding for general “non-
project specific” improvements is allocated to this line item. The amount was determined based on the 
remaining funds available after amounts were allocated for operating expenditures, debt service, 
projects and maintaining an amount of fund balance of no less than $2,000,000.  
 
 

Research Pkwy (IH35 to Wendland At Grade) Construction 14,100,000$          
Research Pkwy (IH35 to Wendland At Grade) Design 550,000                  
Outer Loop (I35 South) ROW 2,300,000               
Outer Loop (I35 South) Design 800,000                  
Intersection improvements at Central and N. 4th Street 750,000                  
East Outer Loop Construction 500,000                  
East Outer Loop Design 406,600                  
31st Street Monumentation Construction 450,000                  
Receiving & Delivery Tracks ROW 400,000                  
Contingency 1,743,400               

Total Bond Projects 22,000,000$          

Strategic Investment Zones - Grants 425,000$                
1st Street (Ave B to Central Ave) Final Design/Ave A (N 3rd to S 2nd) Concept Design 296,000                  
North 31st Street (Nugent to Central) Concept Design 212,000                  
31st Street (Loop 363 to Ave R)/Ave R (31st Street to 25th St) Concept Design 130,000                  
Draughon-Miller Regional Airport FBO Center & Parking Visioning 119,000                  
Avenue U Public Art 75,000                    
RAMP Grant Match 50,000                    

Total New Projects 1,307,000$             



10/19/17 
Item #6(V) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 3 of 3 

 
The following is a summary of funding for the 2022 Master Plan projects: 
 

 
 
See the attached “TRZ Master Plan Project Funding (2017-2025)” schedule for more detail on the 
projects.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Below is a table summarizing the Source and Use of funds included in the Financing 
and Project Plans.  
 

 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Financing Plan 
Summary Financing Plan with Detailed Project Plan 
Summary - TRZ Master Plan Project Funding (2017 - 2025) 
TRZ Master Plan Project Funding (2017 - 2025) 
TRZ Schedule of Outstanding Bonds with Proposed Issue 
Budget Adjustment 
Ordinance 
  

Bond Issue
2017 2018 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 TOTAL

Temple Industrial Park 336,509$         400,000$       -$               -$                   -$               -$               -$                736,509$          
Corporate Campus Park 1,651,520        -                  -                 -                     -                 -                 -                   1,651,520         
Bioscience Park/Crossroads Park 5,564,692        -                  -                 -                     -                 -                 -                   5,564,692         
Research Parkway/Outer Loop 5,639,812        18,656,600    525,000         -                     10,750,000   -                 -                   35,571,412       
Synergy Park 76,701              -                  -                 -                     -                 -                 -                   76,701               
Downtown 14,486,895      750,000         14,003,000   450,000            450,000        450,000        450,000          31,039,895       
TMED 6,104,095        2,193,400      305,000         2,488,000         -                 -                 -                   11,090,495       
Airport Park 1,796,924        -                  560,600         -                     -                 -                 -                   2,357,524         
Public Improvements -                    -                  -                 -                     -                 5,500,000     7,000,000       12,500,000       
 MASTER PLAN PROJECT FUNDING 35,657,148$    22,000,000$ 15,393,600$ 2,938,000$       11,200,000$ 5,950,000$   7,450,000$    100,588,748$   

 Description 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 Future Years
Available FB @ October 1 (1)

27,838,651$       5,557,758$      1,831,930$      7,513,799$         4,266,052$     5,868,120$     5,907,456$       
Total Source of Funds 20,336,878         40,369,686      16,990,273      16,415,960         15,787,729     15,657,049     775,012,895     
Total Debt & Operating Exp. 6,960,623           6,701,914        8,370,404        8,463,707           8,235,661       8,167,713       84,134,294       
Total Planned Project Exp. 35,657,148         37,393,600      2,938,000        11,200,000         5,950,000       7,450,000       696,786,057     
Available FB(1) @ September 30(2)

5,557,758$         1,831,930$      7,513,799$      4,266,052$         5,868,120$     5,907,456$     -$                      

(1) - Beginning of Year
(2) - End of Year



City of Temple, Texas

TIF Reinvestment Zone #1 Financing Plan

Financing Plan - 09/27/17 to Zone Board Page 1 of 5
Revised

Y/E 9/30/17 Y/E 9/30/18 Y/E 9/30/19 Y/E 9/30/20 Y/E 9/30/21 Y/E 9/30/22

DESCRIPTION Year 35 Year 36 Year 37 Year 38 Year 39 Year 40

1 "Taxable Increment" 435,256,703$        426,069,294$        415,287,167$        409,874,095$        397,412,766$        426,871,090$        

1 FUND BALANCE, Begin 27,838,651$       5,557,758$         1,831,930$         7,513,799$         4,266,052$         5,868,120$         

2     Adjustments to Debt Service Reserve -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          

3    Fund Balance Available for Appropriation 27,838,651$       5,557,758$         1,831,930$         7,513,799$         4,266,052$         5,868,120$         

SOURCES OF FUNDS:

4 Tax Revenues 19,371,450         17,793,995         17,171,851         16,588,792         15,961,146         15,848,781         

6 Allowance for Uncollected Taxes [1.5% of Tax Revenues] (290,572)             (266,910)             (257,578)             (248,832)             (239,417)             (237,732)             

8 Interest Income-Other 50,000                50,000                40,000                40,000                30,000                10,000                

10 Grant Funds 1,170,000           50,000                -                      -                      -                      -                      

12 License Fee - Central Texas Railway 36,000                36,000                36,000                36,000                36,000                36,000                

14 Other Revenues -                      106,600              -                      -                      -                      -                      

15 Sale of land -                      600,000              -                      -                      -                      -                      

17 Bond Proceeds -                      22,000,000         -                      -                      -                      -                      

20    Total Sources of Funds 20,336,878$       40,369,685$       16,990,273$       16,415,960$       15,787,729$       15,657,049$       

25 TOTAL AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION 48,175,529$       45,927,443$       18,822,203$       23,929,759$       20,053,781$       21,525,169$       

USE OF FUNDS:

DEBT SERVICE

27 2009 Bond Refunding 1,510,150           1,488,750           1,485,000           -                      -                      -                      

28 2008 Bond Issue-Taxable {$10.365 mil} 1,240,096           1,241,957           1,241,173           1,237,744           1,241,670           1,242,422           

29 Debt Service - 2011A Issue {Refunding} 912,200              908,350              915,950              2,497,800           2,497,550           2,494,950           

30 Debt Service - 2012 Issue {Refunding} 76,400                79,600                77,650                80,050                77,250                78,750                

31 Debt Service - 2013 Issue {$25.260 mil} 2,034,894           2,047,694           2,048,344           2,047,944           2,046,494           2,031,494           

32 Debt Service - 2018 Issue {$22 mil} -                      -                      1,666,724           1,664,606           1,435,756           1,383,056           

35 Paying Agent Services 1,700                  1,700                  1,700                  1,700                  1,700                  1,700                  

40      Subtotal-Debt Service 5,775,440           5,768,051           7,436,541           7,529,844           7,300,420           7,232,372           

OPERATING EXPENDITURES

50 Prof Svcs/Proj Mgmt 175,000              175,000              175,000              175,000              175,000              175,000              

52 Legal/Audit 1,300                  1,300                  1,300                  1,300                  1,300                  1,400                  

54 Zone Park Maintenance [mowing, utilities, botanical supplies] 330,000              330,000              330,000              330,000              330,000              330,000              

56 Rail Maintenance 214,390              100,000              100,000              100,000              100,000              100,000              

58 Road/Signage Maintenance 238,243              100,000              100,000              100,000              100,000              100,000              

60 Contractual Payments [TEDC - Marketing] 200,000              200,000              200,000              200,000              200,000              200,000              

62 TISD-Reimbursement [per contract] 26,250                27,563                27,563                27,563                28,941                28,941                

65      Subtotal-Operating Expenditures 1,185,183           933,863              933,863              933,863              935,241              935,341              

70 TOTAL DEBT & OPERATING EXPENDITURES 6,960,623$         6,701,914$         8,370,404$         8,463,707$         8,235,661$         8,167,713$         

80 Funds Available for Projects 41,214,906$       39,225,530$       10,451,799$       15,466,052$       11,818,120$       13,357,456$       

PROJECTS

150 Temple Industrial Park 336,509              400,000              -                      -                      -                      -                      

200 Corporate Campus Park 1,651,520           -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

250 Bioscience Park/Crossroads Park 5,564,692           -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

350 Research Parkway/Outer Loop 5,639,812           19,181,600         -                      10,750,000         -                      -                      

400 Synergy Park 76,701                -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

450 Downtown 14,486,895         14,753,000         450,000              450,000              450,000              450,000              

500 TMED 6,104,095           2,498,400           2,488,000           -                      -                      -                      

550 Airport Park 1,796,924           560,600              -                      -                      -                      -                      

610 Public Improvements -                      -                      -                      -                      5,500,000           7,000,000           

     Subtotal-Projects 35,657,148         37,393,600         2,938,000           11,200,000         5,950,000           7,450,000           

TOTAL USE OF FUNDS 42,617,771$       44,095,514$       11,308,404$       19,663,707$       14,185,661$       15,617,713$       

700 FUND BALANCE, End 5,557,758$         1,831,930$         7,513,799$         4,266,052$         5,868,120$         5,907,456$         

FINANCING PLAN

G:\Traci's Files\RZ # 1 (TIF)\!Financing & Project Plans\Financing & Project Plan 09-27-17 



City of Temple, Texas

TIF Reinvestment Zone #1 Financing Plan

Financing Plan - 09/27/17 to Zone Board

DESCRIPTION

1 "Taxable Increment"

1 FUND BALANCE, Begin

2     Adjustments to Debt Service Reserve

3    Fund Balance Available for Appropriation

SOURCES OF FUNDS:

4 Tax Revenues

6 Allowance for Uncollected Taxes [1.5% of Tax Revenues]

8 Interest Income-Other

10 Grant Funds

12 License Fee - Central Texas Railway

14 Other Revenues

15 Sale of land

17 Bond Proceeds

20    Total Sources of Funds

25 TOTAL AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION

USE OF FUNDS:

DEBT SERVICE

27 2009 Bond Refunding

28 2008 Bond Issue-Taxable {$10.365 mil}

29 Debt Service - 2011A Issue {Refunding}

30 Debt Service - 2012 Issue {Refunding}

31 Debt Service - 2013 Issue {$25.260 mil}

32 Debt Service - 2018 Issue {$22 mil}

35 Paying Agent Services

40      Subtotal-Debt Service

OPERATING EXPENDITURES

50 Prof Svcs/Proj Mgmt

52 Legal/Audit

54 Zone Park Maintenance [mowing, utilities, botanical supplies]

56 Rail Maintenance

58 Road/Signage Maintenance

60 Contractual Payments [TEDC - Marketing]

62 TISD-Reimbursement [per contract]

65      Subtotal-Operating Expenditures

70 TOTAL DEBT & OPERATING EXPENDITURES

80 Funds Available for Projects

PROJECTS

150 Temple Industrial Park

200 Corporate Campus Park

250 Bioscience Park/Crossroads Park

350 Research Parkway/Outer Loop

400 Synergy Park

450 Downtown

500 TMED

550 Airport Park

610 Public Improvements

     Subtotal-Projects

TOTAL USE OF FUNDS

700 FUND BALANCE, End

Page 2 of 5

2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032

41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50

430,495,341$          473,225,671$          510,957,928$          603,517,507$          632,140,107$          638,461,508$          644,846,123$          651,294,584$          657,807,530$          664,385,606$          

5,907,456$          3,034,302$          2,307,135$          2,650,494$          2,514,011$          2,571,597$          2,307,833$          2,223,728$          2,318,919$          2,592,855$          

-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

5,907,456$          3,034,302$          2,307,135$          2,650,494$          2,514,011$          2,571,597$          2,307,833$          2,223,728$          2,318,919$          2,592,855$          

15,394,809          16,049,463          16,639,966          17,945,912          18,402,247          18,586,255          18,772,103          18,959,809          19,149,392          19,340,871          

(230,922)              (240,742)              (249,599)              (269,189)              (276,034)              (278,794)              (281,582)              (284,397)              (287,241)              (290,113)              

10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

15,209,887$        15,854,721$        16,436,367$        17,722,723$        18,172,213$        18,353,461$        18,536,521$        18,721,412$        18,908,151$        19,096,758$        

21,117,343$        18,889,023$        18,743,501$        20,373,218$        20,686,224$        20,925,059$        20,844,354$        20,945,140$        21,227,070$        21,689,613$        

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

2,030,094            2,026,694            2,038,413            2,051,613            2,059,113            2,061,713            2,061,713            2,069,113            2,073,513            2,084,913            

1,666,406            1,667,206            1,666,606            1,669,606            1,666,006            1,666,006            1,669,406            1,666,006            1,669,600            1,664,663            

1,200                   1,200                   1,200                   1,200                   1,200                   1,200                   1,200                   1,200                   1,200                   1,200                   

3,697,700            3,695,100            3,706,219            3,722,419            3,726,319            3,728,919            3,732,319            3,736,319            3,744,313            3,750,776            

175,000               175,000               175,000               175,000               175,000               175,000               175,000               175,000               175,000               175,000               

1,400                   1,400                   1,400                   1,400                   1,400                   1,400                   1,400                   1,400                   1,400                   1,400                   

330,000               330,000               330,000               330,000               330,000               330,000               330,000               330,000               330,000               330,000               

100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               

100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               

200,000               200,000               200,000               200,000               200,000               200,000               200,000               200,000               200,000               200,000               

28,941                 30,388                 30,388                 30,388                 31,907                 31,907                 31,907                 33,502                 33,502                 33,502                 

935,341               936,788               936,788               936,788               938,307               938,307               938,307               939,902               939,902               939,902               

4,633,041$          4,631,888$          4,643,007$          4,659,207$          4,664,626$          4,667,226$          4,670,626$          4,676,221$          4,684,215$          4,690,678$          

16,484,302$        14,257,135$        14,100,494$        15,714,011$        16,021,597$        16,257,833$        16,173,728$        16,268,919$        16,542,855$        16,998,935$        

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

450,000               450,000               450,000               450,000               450,000               450,000               450,000               450,000               450,000               450,000               

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

13,000,000          11,500,000          11,000,000          12,750,000          13,000,000          13,500,000          13,500,000          13,500,000          13,500,000          14,000,000          

13,450,000          11,950,000          11,450,000          13,200,000          13,450,000          13,950,000          13,950,000          13,950,000          13,950,000          14,450,000          

18,083,041$        16,581,888$        16,093,007$        17,859,207$        18,114,626$        18,617,226$        18,620,626$        18,626,221$        18,634,215$        19,140,678$        

3,034,302$          2,307,135$          2,650,494$          2,514,011$          2,571,597$          2,307,833$          2,223,728$          2,318,919$          2,592,855$          2,548,935$          

FINANCING PLAN

G:\Traci's Files\RZ # 1 (TIF)\!Financing & Project Plans\Financing & Project Plan 09-27-17 



City of Temple, Texas

TIF Reinvestment Zone #1 Financing Plan

Financing Plan - 09/27/17 to Zone Board

DESCRIPTION

1 "Taxable Increment"

1 FUND BALANCE, Begin

2     Adjustments to Debt Service Reserve

3    Fund Balance Available for Appropriation

SOURCES OF FUNDS:

4 Tax Revenues

6 Allowance for Uncollected Taxes [1.5% of Tax Revenues]

8 Interest Income-Other

10 Grant Funds

12 License Fee - Central Texas Railway

14 Other Revenues

15 Sale of land

17 Bond Proceeds

20    Total Sources of Funds

25 TOTAL AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION

USE OF FUNDS:

DEBT SERVICE

27 2009 Bond Refunding

28 2008 Bond Issue-Taxable {$10.365 mil}

29 Debt Service - 2011A Issue {Refunding}

30 Debt Service - 2012 Issue {Refunding}

31 Debt Service - 2013 Issue {$25.260 mil}

32 Debt Service - 2018 Issue {$22 mil}

35 Paying Agent Services

40      Subtotal-Debt Service

OPERATING EXPENDITURES

50 Prof Svcs/Proj Mgmt

52 Legal/Audit

54 Zone Park Maintenance [mowing, utilities, botanical supplies]

56 Rail Maintenance

58 Road/Signage Maintenance

60 Contractual Payments [TEDC - Marketing]

62 TISD-Reimbursement [per contract]

65      Subtotal-Operating Expenditures

70 TOTAL DEBT & OPERATING EXPENDITURES

80 Funds Available for Projects

PROJECTS

150 Temple Industrial Park

200 Corporate Campus Park

250 Bioscience Park/Crossroads Park

350 Research Parkway/Outer Loop

400 Synergy Park

450 Downtown

500 TMED

550 Airport Park

610 Public Improvements

     Subtotal-Projects

TOTAL USE OF FUNDS

700 FUND BALANCE, End

Page 3 of 5

2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038 2039 2040 2041 2042

51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 60

671,029,462$          677,739,756$          684,517,154$          691,362,325$          698,275,949$          705,258,708$          712,311,295$          719,434,408$          726,628,752$          733,895,040$          

2,548,935$          2,185,733$          2,605,217$          2,719,099$          2,275,262$          3,036,552$          2,748,353$          3,324,057$          3,103,996$          2,590,212$          

-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

2,548,935$          2,185,733$          2,605,217$          2,719,099$          2,275,262$          3,036,552$          2,748,353$          3,324,057$          3,103,996$          2,590,212$          

19,534,265          19,729,593          19,926,875          20,126,129          20,327,375          20,530,634          20,735,926          20,943,271          21,152,689          21,364,201          

(293,014)              (295,944)              (298,903)              (301,892)              (304,911)              (307,960)              (311,039)              (314,149)              (317,290)              (320,463)              

10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

19,287,251$        19,479,649$        19,673,972$        19,870,237$        20,068,464$        20,268,674$        20,470,887$        20,675,122$        20,881,399$        21,089,738$        

21,836,186$        21,665,382$        22,279,189$        22,589,336$        22,343,726$        23,305,227$        23,219,240$        23,999,179$        23,985,395$        23,679,950$        

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

2,092,913            -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

1,664,763            1,667,388            1,667,313            1,669,538            1,663,838            1,663,538            -                       -                       -                       -                       

1,200                   1,200                   1,200                   1,200                   -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

3,758,876            1,668,588            1,668,513            1,670,738            1,663,838            1,663,538            -                       -                       -                       -                       

175,000               175,000               175,000               175,000               175,000               175,000               175,000               175,000               175,000               175,000               

1,400                   1,400                   1,400                   1,400                   1,400                   1,400                   1,400                   1,400                   1,400                   1,400                   

330,000               330,000               330,000               330,000               330,000               330,000               330,000               330,000               330,000               330,000               

100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               

100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               

200,000               200,000               200,000               200,000               200,000               200,000               200,000               200,000               200,000               200,000               

35,177                 35,177                 35,177                 36,936                 36,936                 36,936                 38,783                 38,783                 38,783                 40,722                 

941,577               941,577               941,577               943,336               943,336               943,336               945,183               945,183               945,183               947,122               

4,700,453$          2,610,165$          2,610,090$          2,614,074$          2,607,174$          2,606,874$          945,183$             945,183$             945,183$             947,122$             

17,135,733$        19,055,217$        19,669,099$        19,975,262$        19,736,552$        20,698,353$        22,274,057$        23,053,996$        23,040,212$        22,732,827$        

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

450,000               450,000               450,000               450,000               450,000               450,000               450,000               450,000               450,000               450,000               

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

14,500,000          16,000,000          16,500,000          17,250,000          16,250,000          17,500,000          18,500,000          19,500,000          20,000,000          20,000,000          

14,950,000          16,450,000          16,950,000          17,700,000          16,700,000          17,950,000          18,950,000          19,950,000          20,450,000          20,450,000          

19,650,453$        19,060,165$        19,560,090$        20,314,074$        19,307,174$        20,556,874$        19,895,183$        20,895,183$        21,395,183$        21,397,122$        

2,185,733$          2,605,217$          2,719,099$          2,275,262$          3,036,552$          2,748,353$          3,324,057$          3,103,996$          2,590,212$          2,282,827$          

FINANCING PLAN

G:\Traci's Files\RZ # 1 (TIF)\!Financing & Project Plans\Financing & Project Plan 09-27-17 



City of Temple, Texas

TIF Reinvestment Zone #1 Financing Plan

Financing Plan - 09/27/17 to Zone Board

DESCRIPTION

1 "Taxable Increment"

1 FUND BALANCE, Begin

2     Adjustments to Debt Service Reserve

3    Fund Balance Available for Appropriation

SOURCES OF FUNDS:

4 Tax Revenues

6 Allowance for Uncollected Taxes [1.5% of Tax Revenues]

8 Interest Income-Other

10 Grant Funds

12 License Fee - Central Texas Railway

14 Other Revenues

15 Sale of land

17 Bond Proceeds

20    Total Sources of Funds

25 TOTAL AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION

USE OF FUNDS:

DEBT SERVICE

27 2009 Bond Refunding

28 2008 Bond Issue-Taxable {$10.365 mil}

29 Debt Service - 2011A Issue {Refunding}

30 Debt Service - 2012 Issue {Refunding}

31 Debt Service - 2013 Issue {$25.260 mil}

32 Debt Service - 2018 Issue {$22 mil}

35 Paying Agent Services

40      Subtotal-Debt Service

OPERATING EXPENDITURES

50 Prof Svcs/Proj Mgmt

52 Legal/Audit

54 Zone Park Maintenance [mowing, utilities, botanical supplies]

56 Rail Maintenance

58 Road/Signage Maintenance

60 Contractual Payments [TEDC - Marketing]

62 TISD-Reimbursement [per contract]

65      Subtotal-Operating Expenditures

70 TOTAL DEBT & OPERATING EXPENDITURES

80 Funds Available for Projects

PROJECTS

150 Temple Industrial Park

200 Corporate Campus Park

250 Bioscience Park/Crossroads Park

350 Research Parkway/Outer Loop

400 Synergy Park

450 Downtown

500 TMED

550 Airport Park

610 Public Improvements

     Subtotal-Projects

TOTAL USE OF FUNDS

700 FUND BALANCE, End

Page 4 of 5

2043 2044 2045 2046 2047 2048 2049 2050 2051 2052

61 62 63 64 65 66 67 68 69 70

741,233,990$          748,646,330$          756,132,793$          763,694,121$          771,331,062$          779,044,373$          786,834,817$          794,703,165$          802,650,197$          810,676,699$          

2,282,827$          2,540,107$          2,477,006$          2,593,186$          2,392,494$          2,376,762$          2,545,702$          2,403,320$          2,451,503$          2,689,911$          

-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

2,282,827$          2,540,107$          2,477,006$          2,593,186$          2,392,494$          2,376,762$          2,545,702$          2,403,320$          2,451,503$          2,689,911$          

18,226,905          18,409,159          18,593,236          18,779,153          18,966,930          19,156,585          19,348,136          19,541,603          19,737,004          19,934,359          

(273,404)              (276,137)              (278,899)              (281,687)              (284,504)              (287,349)              (290,222)              (293,124)              (296,055)              (299,015)              

10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

17,999,501$        18,179,022$        18,360,337$        18,543,466$        18,728,426$        18,915,236$        19,103,914$        19,294,479$        19,486,949$        19,681,344$        

20,282,329$        20,719,128$        20,837,344$        21,136,652$        21,120,920$        21,291,998$        21,649,616$        21,697,799$        21,938,452$        22,371,255$        

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

175,100               175,000               175,000               175,000               175,000               175,000               175,000               175,000               175,000               175,000               

1,400                   1,400                   1,400                   1,400                   1,400                   1,400                   1,400                   1,400                   1,400                   1,400                   

150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               

100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               

100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               

200,000               200,000               200,000               200,000               200,000               200,000               200,000               200,000               200,000               200,000               

40,722                 40,722                 42,758                 42,758                 42,758                 44,896                 44,896                 44,896                 47,141                 47,141                 

792,222               792,122               794,158               794,158               794,158               796,296               796,296               796,296               798,541               798,541               

792,222$             792,122$             794,158$             794,158$             794,158$             796,296$             796,296$             796,296$             798,541$             798,541$             

19,490,107$        19,927,006$        20,043,186$        20,342,494$        20,326,762$        20,495,702$        20,853,320$        20,901,503$        21,139,911$        21,572,714$        

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

450,000               450,000               450,000               450,000               450,000               450,000               450,000               450,000               450,000               450,000               

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

16,500,000          17,000,000          17,000,000          17,500,000          17,500,000          17,500,000          18,000,000          18,000,000          18,000,000          18,500,000          

16,950,000          17,450,000          17,450,000          17,950,000          17,950,000          17,950,000          18,450,000          18,450,000          18,450,000          18,950,000          

17,742,222$        18,242,122$        18,244,158$        18,744,158$        18,744,158$        18,746,296$        19,246,296$        19,246,296$        19,248,541$        19,748,541$        

2,540,107$          2,477,006$          2,593,186$          2,392,494$          2,376,762$          2,545,702$          2,403,320$          2,451,503$          2,689,911$          2,622,714$          

FINANCING PLAN

G:\Traci's Files\RZ # 1 (TIF)\!Financing & Project Plans\Financing & Project Plan 09-27-17 



City of Temple, Texas

TIF Reinvestment Zone #1 Financing Plan

Financing Plan - 09/27/17 to Zone Board

DESCRIPTION

1 "Taxable Increment"

1 FUND BALANCE, Begin

2     Adjustments to Debt Service Reserve

3    Fund Balance Available for Appropriation

SOURCES OF FUNDS:

4 Tax Revenues

6 Allowance for Uncollected Taxes [1.5% of Tax Revenues]

8 Interest Income-Other

10 Grant Funds

12 License Fee - Central Texas Railway

14 Other Revenues

15 Sale of land

17 Bond Proceeds

20    Total Sources of Funds

25 TOTAL AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION

USE OF FUNDS:

DEBT SERVICE

27 2009 Bond Refunding

28 2008 Bond Issue-Taxable {$10.365 mil}

29 Debt Service - 2011A Issue {Refunding}

30 Debt Service - 2012 Issue {Refunding}

31 Debt Service - 2013 Issue {$25.260 mil}

32 Debt Service - 2018 Issue {$22 mil}

35 Paying Agent Services

40      Subtotal-Debt Service

OPERATING EXPENDITURES

50 Prof Svcs/Proj Mgmt

52 Legal/Audit

54 Zone Park Maintenance [mowing, utilities, botanical supplies]

56 Rail Maintenance

58 Road/Signage Maintenance

60 Contractual Payments [TEDC - Marketing]

62 TISD-Reimbursement [per contract]

65      Subtotal-Operating Expenditures

70 TOTAL DEBT & OPERATING EXPENDITURES

80 Funds Available for Projects

PROJECTS

150 Temple Industrial Park

200 Corporate Campus Park

250 Bioscience Park/Crossroads Park

350 Research Parkway/Outer Loop

400 Synergy Park

450 Downtown

500 TMED

550 Airport Park

610 Public Improvements

     Subtotal-Projects

TOTAL USE OF FUNDS

700 FUND BALANCE, End

Page 5 of 5

2053 2054 2055 2056 2057 2058 2059 2060 2061 2062

71 72 73 74 75 76 77 78 79 80

818,783,466$          826,971,300$          835,241,013$          843,593,423$          852,029,358$          860,549,651$          869,155,148$          877,846,699$          886,625,166$          895,491,418$          

2,622,714$          2,251,855$          2,576,942$          2,602,315$          2,829,976$          2,259,473$          2,395,325$          2,739,593$          2,791,766$          2,556,545$          

-                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

2,622,714$          2,251,855$          2,576,942$          2,602,315$          2,829,976$          2,259,473$          2,395,325$          2,739,593$          2,791,766$          2,556,545$          

20,133,688          20,335,010          20,538,346          20,743,715          20,951,137          21,160,634          21,372,225          21,585,933          21,801,778          22,019,781          

(302,005)              (305,025)              (308,075)              (311,156)              (314,267)              (317,410)              (320,583)              (323,789)              (327,027)              (330,297)              

10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 10,000                 

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 36,000                 

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

19,877,683$        20,075,985$        20,276,271$        20,478,559$        20,682,870$        20,889,224$        21,097,642$        21,308,144$        21,520,751$        21,735,484$        

22,500,396$        22,327,840$        22,853,213$        23,080,874$        23,512,846$        23,148,698$        23,492,966$        24,047,737$        24,312,517$        24,292,029$        

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

175,000               175,000               175,000               175,000               175,000               175,000               175,000               175,000               175,000               175,000               

1,400                   1,400                   1,400                   1,400                   1,400                   1,400                   1,400                   1,400                   1,400                   1,400                   

150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               150,000               

100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               

100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               100,000               

200,000               200,000               200,000               200,000               200,000               200,000               200,000               200,000               200,000               200,000               

47,141                 49,498                 49,498                 49,498                 51,973                 51,973                 51,973                 54,572                 54,572                 54,572                 

798,541               800,898               800,898               800,898               803,373               803,373               803,373               805,972               805,972               805,972               

798,541$             800,898$             800,898$             800,898$             803,373$             803,373$             803,373$             805,972$             805,972$             805,972$             

21,701,855$        21,526,942$        22,052,315$        22,279,976$        22,709,473$        22,345,325$        22,689,593$        23,241,766$        23,506,545$        23,486,057$        

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

450,000               450,000               450,000               450,000               450,000               450,000               450,000               450,000               450,000               450,000               

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

19,000,000          18,500,000          19,000,000          19,000,000          20,000,000          19,500,000          19,500,000          20,000,000          20,500,000          23,036,057          

19,450,000          18,950,000          19,450,000          19,450,000          20,450,000          19,950,000          19,950,000          20,450,000          20,950,000          23,486,057          

20,248,541$        19,750,898$        20,250,898$        20,250,898$        21,253,373$        20,753,373$        20,753,373$        21,255,972$        21,755,972$        24,292,029$        

2,251,855$          2,576,942$          2,602,315$          2,829,976$          2,259,473$          2,395,325$          2,739,593$          2,791,766$          2,556,545$          0$                        

FINANCING PLAN

G:\Traci's Files\RZ # 1 (TIF)\!Financing & Project Plans\Financing & Project Plan 09-27-17 



TIF Reinvestment Zone #1

Summary Financing Plan with Detailed Project Plan

Project Plan -  09/27/17 - to Zone Board 22,000,000$            

Bond Proceeds

Revised 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

1 Beginning Available Fund Balance, Oct 1 27,838,651$       5,557,758$              1,831,930$             7,513,799$           4,266,052$                 5,868,120$         

20 Total Sources of Funds 20,336,878         40,369,685              16,990,273             16,415,960           15,787,729                 15,657,049         

2 Adjustments to Debt Service Reserve -                                -                              -                            -                                  -                          

25 Net Available for Appropriation 48,175,529         45,927,443              18,822,203             23,929,759           20,053,781                 21,525,169         

50/52 General Administrative Expenditures 176,300              176,300                    176,300                  176,300                176,300                      176,400              

54 Zone Park Maintenance [mowing, utilities, botanical supplies] 330,000              330,000                    330,000                  330,000                330,000                      330,000              

56 Rail Maintenance 214,390              100,000                    100,000                  100,000                100,000                      100,000              

58 Road/Signage Maintenance 238,243              100,000                    100,000                  100,000                100,000                      100,000              

60 Contractual Payments (TEDC - Marketing) 200,000              200,000                    200,000                  200,000                200,000                      200,000              

62 TISD-Reimbursement [per contract] 26,250                27,563                      27,563                    27,563                  28,941                        28,941                

27 Debt Service - 2009 Issue {Refunding} 1,510,150           1,488,750                1,485,000               -                        -                              -                      

28 Debt Service - 2008 Taxable Issue {$10.365 mil} 1,240,096           1,241,957                1,241,173               1,237,744             1,241,670                   1,242,422           

29 Debt Service - 2011A Issue {Refunding} 912,200              908,350                    915,950                  2,497,800             2,497,550                   2,494,950           

30 Debt Service - 2012 Issue {Refunding} 76,400                79,600                      77,650                    80,050                  77,250                        78,750                

31 Debt Service - 2013 Issue {$25.260 mil} 2,034,894           2,047,694                2,048,344               2,047,944             2,046,494                   2,031,494           

32 Debt Service - 2018 Issue {$22 mil} -                      -                            1,666,724               1,664,606             1,435,756                   1,383,056           

33 Paying Agent Services 1,700                  1,700                        1,700                      1,700                    1,700                          1,700                  

70 Total Debt & Operating Expenditures 6,960,623           6,701,914                8,370,404               8,463,707             8,235,661                   8,167,713           

80 Funds Available for Projects 41,214,906$       39,225,530$            10,451,799$           15,466,052$         11,818,120$               13,357,456$       

Revised 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

TEMPLE INDUSTRIAL PARK:

101 Receiving & Delivery {R&D} Tracks 107,500              -                            -                          -                        -                              -                      

101 Receiving & Delivery {R&D} Tracks {bond funded} 400,000                    -                          -                        -                              -                      

102 North Lucius McCelvey Extension 176,655              -                            -                          -                        -                              -                      

108 31st Street Sidewalks Grant Match 52,354                -                            -                          -                        -                              -                      

150      Total North Zone/Rail Park (including Enterprise Park) 336,509                 400,000                       -                             -                           -                                 -                        

CORPORATE CAMPUS PARK:

155 Pepper Creek Trail Hwy 36 to McLane Parkway 1,651,520           -                            -                          -                        -                              -                      

200      Total Corporate Campus Park 1,651,520              -                              -                             -                           -                                 -                        

BIOSCIENCE PARK/CROSSROADS PARK:

207 Cross Roads Park @ Pepper Creek Trail 5,564,692           -                            -                          -                        -                              -                      

250      Total Bio-Science Park 5,564,692              -                              -                             -                           -                                 -                        

RESEARCH PARKWAY/OUTER LOOP

305 Research Pkwy (IH 35 to Wendland Ultimate) STAG grant {Little Elm Sewer} 1,925,000           275,000                    -                          -                        -                              -                      

305 Research Pkwy (IH 35 to Wendland Ultimate) 1,202,056           250,000                    -                          -                        -                              -                      

305 Research Pkwy (IH 35 to Wendland Ultimate) {bond funded} -                      14,650,000              -                          -                        -                              -                      

310 Research Pkwy (Wendland to McLane Pkwy) 1,081,176           -                              -                             -                           -                                 -                        

315 Research Pkwy (McLane Pkwy to Central Point Pkwy) 1,021,580           -                            -                             -                           -                                 -                        

320 Outer Loop (I35 South) 410,000              -                            -                             10,750,000              -                                 -                        

320 Outer Loop (I35 South) {bond funded} -                      3,100,000                -                             -                           -                                 -                        

321 East Outer Loop -                      906,600                    

350      Total Research Parkway 5,639,812             19,181,600                 -                            10,750,000              -                                 -                        

SYNERGY PARK:

351 Lorraine Drive (Southeast Industrial Park) - [$1.5M total project cost] 13,975                -                            -                          -                        -                              -                      

352 Entry Enhancement 62,726                -                            -                          -                        -                              -                      

400      Total Synergy Park 76,701                   -                              -                             -                           -                                 -                        

DOWNTOWN:

401 Downtown Improvements {Transformation Team} 681,100              450,000                    450,000                  450,000                450,000                      450,000              

402 Santa Fe Plaza 8,039,332           4,075,000                -                          -                        -                              -                      

403 Intersection Improvements at Central & North 4th Street {bond funded} 750,000                    -                          -                        -                              -                      

404 Santa Fe Market 766,463              3,545,000                -                          -                        -                              -                      

405 TISD-Obligation per Contract 5,000,000           5,000,000                -                          -                        -                              -                      

406 1st Street (Avenue B to Central Avenue) and Avenue A (North 3rd to South 2nd) -                      296,000                    -                          -                        -                              -                      

407 North 31st Street (Nugent to Central) Concept Design -                      212,000                    -                          -                        -                              -                      

408 Strategic Investment Zone - Grants -                      425,000                    -                          -                        -                              -                      

450      Total Downtown 14,486,895            14,753,000                  450,000                     450,000                   450,000                          450,000                 

TMED:

458 Loop 363 Frontage Rd (UPRR to 5th TIRZ portion) 182,935              -                            -                          -                        -                              -                      

459 31st Street/Loop 363 Improvements 912,205              -                            -                          -                        -                              -                      

460 31st Street (Loop 363 to Avenue M) and Avenue R (31st to 25th Street) Concept Design -                      130,000                    -                          -                        -                              -                      

461 31st Street Monumentation {bond funded} -                      450,000                    -                          -                        -                              -                      

462 Ave U TMED Ave. to 1st Street 2,884,670           75,000                      -                          -                        -                              -                      

463 TMED Master Plan (Health Care Campus) -                      -                            -                          -                        -                              -                      

464 TMED Master Plan & Thoroughfare Plan -                      -                            -                          -                        -                              -                      

465 Friars Creek Trail Amphitheater -                      -                            -                          -                        -                              -                      

466 Veteran's Memorial Blvd. Phase II 804,285              -                            2,488,000               -                        -                              -                      

467 1st Street @ Temple College Pedestrian Bridge -                      -                            -                          -                        -                              -                      

468 TMED South 1st Street 1,320,000           100,000                    -                          -                        -                              -                      

469 Contingency {bond funded} -                      1,743,400                -                          -                        -                              -                      

500      Total TMED 6,104,095              2,498,400                    2,488,000                  -                           -                                 -                        

AIRPORT PARK:

507 Taxiway for Airport 63,700                -                            -                          -                        -                              -                      

508 Corporate Hangar Phase II 263,224              -                            -                          -                        -                              -                      

509 Airport RAMP Grant -                      100,000                    -                          -                        -                              -                      

510 Corporate Hangar 1,470,000           341,600                    -                          -                        -                              -                      

511 Draughon-Miller Regional Airport FBO Center & Parking Visioning -                      119,000                    -                          -                        -                              -                      

550      Total Airport Park 1,796,924              560,600                       -                             -                           -                                 -                        

610 Public Improvements -                        -                              -                             -                           5,500,000                       7,000,000              

Total Planned Project Expenditures 35,657,148         37,393,600              2,938,000               11,200,000           5,950,000                   7,450,000           

700 Available Fund Balance at Year End 5,557,758$         1,831,930$              7,513,799$             4,266,052$           5,868,120$                 5,907,456$         

SUMMARY FINANCING PLAN

PROJECT PLAN

9/22/2017

G:\Traci's Files\RZ # 1 (TIF)\!Financing & Project Plans\Financing & Project Plan 09-27-17



9/22/2017

SUMMARY TRZ MASTER PLAN PROJECT FUNDING (2017 - 2025)

Available for allocation 41,214,906$     22,000,000$   11,667,772$   8,619,869$        7,952,253$    7,552,068$    7,489,336$      10,576,846$    11,222,833$    11,793,359$    140,089,242$    

Bond Issue

2017 2018 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 TOTAL

Temple Industrial Park 336,509$          400,000$        -$               -$                   -$               -$               -$                -$                -$                -$                736,509$           

Corporate Campus Park 1,651,520         -                  -                 -                     -                 -                 -                  -                  -                  -                  1,651,520          

Bioscience Park/Crossroads Park 5,564,692         -                  -                 -                     -                 -                 -                  -                  -                  -                  5,564,692          
Research Parkway/Outer Loop 5,639,812         18,656,600     525,000         -                     10,750,000    -                 -                  -                  -                  -                  35,571,412        
Synergy Park 76,701              -                  -                 -                     -                 -                 -                  -                  -                  -                  76,701               
Downtown 14,486,895       750,000          14,003,000     450,000             450,000         450,000         450,000           450,000           450,000           450,000           32,389,895        

TMED 6,104,095         2,193,400       305,000         2,488,000          -                 -                 -                  -                  -                  -                  11,090,495        

Airport Park 1,796,924         -                  560,600         -                     -                 -                 -                  -                  -                  -                  2,357,524          

Public Improvements -                    -                  -                 -                     -                 5,500,000      7,000,000        13,000,000      11,500,000      11,000,000      48,000,000        
 MASTER PLAN PROJECT FUNDING 35,657,148$     22,000,000$   15,393,600$   2,938,000$        11,200,000$  5,950,000$    7,450,000$      13,450,000$    11,950,000$    11,450,000$    137,438,748$    

Bond Issue

2017 2018 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 TOTAL

Favorable (Unfavorable) Balance 5,557,758$       -$                    (3,725,828)$   5,681,869$        (3,247,747)$   1,602,068$    39,336$           (2,873,154)$     (727,167)$       343,359$         2,650,494$        

Cumulative Favorable (Unfavorable) 5,557,758$       5,557,758$     1,831,930$     7,513,799$        4,266,052$    5,868,120$    5,907,456$      3,034,302$      2,307,135$      2,650,494$      

G:\Traci's Files\RZ # 1 (TIF)\Finance Committee\August 2017\Master Plan  Project  Funding Schedule (2017-2022) Sept 2017 revised format 1



9/22/2017

 TRZ MASTER PLAN PROJECT FUNDING (2017 - 2025)

Available for allocation 41,214,906$   22,000,000$   11,667,772$     8,619,869$       7,952,253$      7,552,068$      7,489,336$      10,576,846$    11,222,833$    11,793,359$    140,089,242$  

Temple Industrial Park Bond Issue

Line # Project Description 2017 2018 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 TOTAL

1 North Lucius McCelvey Ext. (1/2) Construction 176,655          -                  -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   176,655            

2 Northern Y Design -                  -                  -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                    

3 Northern Y Construction -                  -                  -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                    

4 Receiving & Delivery Tracks Preliminary Design 107,500          -                  -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   107,500            

5 Receiving & Delivery Tracks ROW -                  400,000          -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   400,000            

6 N 31st Street Sidewalks Grant Match 52,354            -                  -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   52,354              

7 N 31st Street Sidewalks Construction -                  -                  -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                    

SUBTOTAL 336,509          400,000          -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   736,509            

Corporate Campus Park Bond Issue

Line # Project Description 2017 2018 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 TOTAL

8 Pepper Creek Trail Hwy 36 to McLane Prkwy Design 115,500          -                  -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   115,500            

9 Pepper Creek Trail Hwy 36 to McLane Prkwy Construction 1,536,020       -                  -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   1,536,020         

SUBTOTAL 1,651,520       -                  -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   1,651,520         

Bioscience Park/Crossroads Park Bond Issue

Line # Project Description 2017 2018 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 TOTAL

10 Crossroads Park @ Pepper Creek Trail Design 100,602          -                  -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   100,602            

11 Crossroads Park @ Pepper Creek Trail Construction 5,464,090       -                  -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   5,464,090         

SUBTOTAL 5,564,692       -                  -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   5,564,692         

Research Parkway/Outer Loop Bond Issue

Line # Project Description 2017 2018 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 TOTAL

12 Research Pkwy (IH35 to Wendland At Grade) Design 131,247          550,000          -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   681,247            

13 Research Pkwy (IH35 to Wendland Ultimate) ROW 1,070,809       -                  250,000             -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   1,320,809         

14 Research Pkwy (IH35 to Wendland At Grade) Grant {Little Elm Sewer} 1,925,000       -                  275,000             -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   2,200,000         

15 Research Pkwy (IH35 to Wendland At Grade) Construction -                  14,100,000     -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   14,100,000       

16 Research Pkwy (Wendland to Central Pt Pkwy) Design -                  -                  -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                    

17 Research Pkwy (Wendland to Central Pt Pkwy) ROW 2,102,756       -                  -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   2,102,756         

18 Research Pkwy (Wendland to Central Pt Pkwy) Construction -                  -                  -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                    

19 Outer Loop (I35 South) Design 410,000          800,000          -                     -                    750,000           -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   1,960,000         

20 Outer Loop (I35 South) ROW -                  2,300,000       -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   2,300,000         

21 Outer Loop (I35 South) Construction -                  -                  -                     -                    10,000,000      -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   10,000,000       

22 East Outer Loop Design -                  406,600          -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   406,600            

23 East Outer Loop Construction 500,000          500,000            

SUBTOTAL 5,639,812       18,656,600     525,000             -                    10,750,000      -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   35,571,412       

Synergy Park Bond Issue

Line # Project Description 2017 2018 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 TOTAL

24 Entry Enhancement Design 62,726            -                  -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   62,726              

25 Entry Enhancement Constr -                  -                  -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                    

26 Lorraine Drive/Panda Drive Service Road Construction 13,975            -                  -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   13,975              

SUBTOTAL 76,701            -                  -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   76,701              

G:\Traci's Files\RZ # 1 (TIF)\Finance Committee\August 2017\Master Plan  Project  Funding Schedule (2017-2022) Sept 2017 revised format 1



9/22/2017

 TRZ MASTER PLAN PROJECT FUNDING (2017 - 2025)

Downtown Bond Issue

Line # Project Description 2017 2018 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 TOTAL

27 Santa Fe Plaza Design 641,969          -                  -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   641,969            

28 Santa Fe Plaza ROW 2,697,363       -                  -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   2,697,363         

29 Santa Fe Plaza Construction 4,700,000       -                  4,075,000          -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   8,775,000         

30 TISD-Obligation per Contract 5,000,000       -                  5,000,000          -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   10,000,000       

31 Intersection Improvements at Central and N. 4th Street -                  750,000          -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   750,000            

32 Santa Fe Market Design 303,400          -                  -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   303,400            

33 Santa Fe Market ROW 463,063          -                  45,000               -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   508,063            

34 Santa Fe Market Construction -                  -                  3,500,000          -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   3,500,000         

35 Downtown Transformation Team 681,100          -                  450,000             450,000            450,000           450,000           450,000           450,000           450,000           450,000           4,281,100         

36 1st Street (Ave B to Central Ave) and Ave A (North 3rd to South 2nd) Design -                  -                  296,000             -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   296,000            

37 1st Street from Avenue B to Central Avenue ROW -                  -                  -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                    

38 1st Street from Avenue B to Central Avenue Construction -                  -                  -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                    

39 Strategic Investment Zone - Grants -                  -                  425,000             -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   425,000            

40 North 31st Street (Nugent to Central) Concept Design -                  -                  212,000             -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   212,000            

SUBTOTAL 14,486,895     750,000          14,003,000        450,000            450,000           450,000           450,000           450,000           450,000           450,000           32,389,895       

TMED Bond Issue

Line # Project Description 2017 2018 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 TOTAL

41 Loop 363 FR  (UPRR to 5th TRZ Portion) Construction 182,935          -                  -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   182,935            

42 31st Street (Loop 363 to Ave M) and Ave R (31st to 25th Street) Concept Design -                  -                  130,000             -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   130,000            

43 31 Street Improvements Design 120,267          -                  -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   120,267            

44 31 Street Improvements Construction 791,938          -                  -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   791,938            

45 31st Street Monumentation Construction -                  450,000          -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   450,000            

46 Ave U TMED Ave. to 1st Construction 2,884,670       -                  75,000               -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   2,959,670         

47 TMED Master Plan (Health Care Campus) Design -                  -                  -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                    

48 TMED Master Plan &Thoroughfare Plan * Design -                  -                  -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                    

49 Friars Creek Trail Amphitheater -                  -                  -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                    

50 Veteran's Memorial Blvd. Phase II Design 554,285          -                  -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   554,285            

51 Veteran's Memorial Blvd. Phase II ROW 250,000          -                  -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   250,000            

52 Veteran's Memorial Blvd. Phase II Construction -                  -                  -                     2,488,000         -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   2,488,000         

53 TMED South 1st Street Design 120,000          -                  -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   120,000            

54 TMED South 1st Street Construction 1,200,000       -                  100,000             -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   1,300,000         

55 Bond Contingency -                  1,743,400       -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   1,743,400         

SUBTOTAL 6,104,095       2,193,400       305,000             2,488,000         -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   11,090,495       

Airport Park Bond Issue

Line # Project Description 2017 2018 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 TOTAL

56 Taxiway for Airport {60 ft. width} 63,700            -                  -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   63,700              

57 Corporate Hangar Phase II 263,224          -                  -                     -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   263,224            

58 Corporate Hangar 1,470,000       -                  341,600             -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   1,811,600         

59 Airport RAMP Grant -                  -                  100,000             -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   100,000            

60 Draughon-Miller Regional Airport FBO Center & Parking Visioning -                  -                  119,000             -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   119,000            

SUBTOTAL 1,796,924       -                  560,600             -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   2,357,524         

Public Improvements Bond Issue

Line # Project Description 2017 2018 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 TOTAL

61 Public Improvements -                  -                  -                     -                    -                   5,500,000        7,000,000        13,000,000      11,500,000      11,000,000      48,000,000       

 MASTER PLAN PROJECT FUNDING 35,657,148$   22,000,000$   15,393,600$     2,938,000$       11,200,000$    5,950,000$      7,450,000$      13,450,000$    11,950,000$    11,450,000$    137,438,748$  

Bond Issue

2017 2018 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 TOTAL

Favorable (Unfavorable) Balance 5,557,758       -                  (3,725,828)        5,681,869         (3,247,747)       1,602,068        39,336             (2,873,154)      (727,167)         343,359           2,650,494         

Cumulative Favorable (Unfavorable) 5,557,758       5,557,758       1,831,930          7,513,799         4,266,052        5,868,120        5,907,456        3,034,302        2,307,135        2,650,494        

G:\Traci's Files\RZ # 1 (TIF)\Finance Committee\August 2017\Master Plan  Project  Funding Schedule (2017-2022) Sept 2017 revised format 2



SCHEDULE OF OUTSTANDING BONDS (PRINCIPAL & INTEREST) - AS OF OCTOBER 1, 2017 WITH PROPOSED ISSUE

Percent of Debt  Retired TIRZ Revenue General General General Combo Tax & TIRZ Revenue

Fiscal Annual Cumulative Bonds, Taxable Obligation Bonds Obligation Bonds Obligation Bonds Revenue Bonds Bonds  

Series 2008 Series 2009 Series 2011A Series 2012 Series 2013 Series 2018

Year % %  {2003 CO} {2008 CO} {2003 CO}  Total

2018 6.82% 6.82% 1,241,957$               1,488,750$               908,350$                  79,600$                 2,047,694$               -$                          5,766,351$               

2019 8.79% 15.61% 1,241,173                 1,485,000                 915,950                    77,650                   2,048,344                 1,666,724                 7,434,841                 

2020 8.90% 24.51% 1,237,744                 -                                2,497,800                 80,050                   2,047,944                 1,664,606                 7,528,144                 

2021 8.63% 33.14% 1,241,670                 -                                2,497,550                 77,250                   2,046,494                 1,435,756                 7,298,720                 

2022 8.55% 41.69% 1,242,422                 -                                2,494,950                 78,750                   2,031,494                 1,383,056                 7,230,672                 

2023 4.37% 46.06% -                                -                                -                                -                             2,030,094                 1,666,406                 3,696,500                 

2024 4.37% 50.43% -                                -                                -                                -                             2,026,694                 1,667,206                 3,693,900                 

2025 4.38% 54.81% -                                -                                -                                -                             2,038,412                 1,666,606                 3,705,018                 

2026 4.40% 59.21% -                                -                                -                                -                             2,051,612                 1,669,606                 3,721,218                 

2027 4.40% 63.61% -                                -                                -                                -                             2,059,112                 1,666,006                 3,725,118                 

2028 4.41% 68.02% -                                -                                -                                -                             2,061,712                 1,666,006                 3,727,718                 

2029 4.41% 72.43% -                                -                                -                                -                             2,061,712                 1,669,406                 3,731,118                 

2030 4.42% 76.85% -                                -                                -                                -                             2,069,112                 1,666,006                 3,735,118                 

2031 4.43% 81.27% -                                -                                -                                -                             2,073,512                 1,669,600                 3,743,112                 

2032 4.43% 85.71% -                                -                                -                                -                             2,084,912                 1,664,663                 3,749,575                 

2033 4.44% 90.15% -                                -                                -                                -                             2,092,913                 1,664,763                 3,757,676                 

2034 1.97% 92.12% -                                -                                -                                -                             -                                1,667,388                 1,667,388                 

2035 1.97% 94.09% -                                -                                -                                -                             -                                1,667,313                 1,667,313                 

2036 1.97% 96.07% -                                -                                -                                -                             -                                1,669,538                 1,669,538                 

2037 1.97% 98.03% -                                -                                -                                -                             -                                1,663,838                 1,663,838                 

2038 1.97% 100.00% -                                -                                -                                -                             -                                1,663,538                 1,663,538                 

Total: 6,204,966$               2,973,750$               9,314,600$               393,300$               32,871,767$             32,818,031$             84,576,414$             

Principal Outstanding 7,105,000$               5,565,000$               9,215,000$               470,000$               25,260,000$             21,245,000$             68,860,000$             

CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS

REINVESTMENT ZONE NO. 1

G:\Traci's Files\RZ # 1 (TIF)\Finance Committee\August 2017\Zone Debt Service 2017 with proposed issue



Revised form - 10/27/06

FY 2017
BUDGET ADJUSTMENT FORM

Use this form to make adjustments to your budget.  All adjustments must balance within a Department.
Adjustments should be rounded to the nearest $1. 

+ -

ACCOUNT NUMBER
PROJECT 

# DECREASE

795-0000-461-08-65 150,000$      
795-9500-531-65-23 101586 150,000$      

795-9500-531-65-57 101585
795-9500-531-65-64 101252 10,000$        

795-9500-531-72-11 344,583$      
795-9500-531-63-15 101458 350,000$      
795-9500-531-68-73 101011 375,000$      
795-9500-531-68-68 101006 425,000$      
795-9500-531-68-75 101013 20,150$        
795-9500-531-68-75 101014 55,000$        
795-0000-358-11-10

795-0000-490-15-16 19,000,000$ 
795-9600-531-65-57 101585 2,100,000$   
796-9600-531-65-66 101262 1,500,000$   
795-9600-531-68-63 101000 13,500,000$ 

795-9600-531-68-70 101008 1,900,000$   

TOTAL……………………………………………………………………………………………………… 39,879,733$ 

DOES THIS REQUEST REQUIRE COUNCIL APPROVAL? x Yes No
DATE OF COUNCIL MEETING

WITH AGENDA ITEM? x Yes No

Approved
Disapproved

Approved
Disapproved

Approved
Disapproved

SYNERGY PARK ENTRY ENHANCEMENTS

BOND INTEREST

City Manager Date

Finance Date

To reallocate funds as recommended by the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Board at its 09.27.17 meeting and as approved on second reading by Council on 
10.19.17.

10/19/2017

Department Head/Division Director Date

EXPLANATION OF ADJUSTMENT REQUEST- Include justification for increases AND reason why funds in decreased account are available.

31ST STREET MONUMENTATION

TMED MASTER PLAN & THOROUGHFARE PLAN
UNALLOCATED FUND BALANCE 1,569,733$    

SANTA FE MARKET

1,579,733$    

RESEARCH PKWY-I35 TO WENDLAND

SANTA FE PLAZA

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION INCREASE

MISCELLANEOUS REIMBURSEMENTS
CORPORATE HANGAR

OUTER LOOP (I35 SOUTH) 10,000$         
N LUCIUS MCCELVEY

31ST STREET SIDEWALKS

BOND PROCEEDS
OUTER LOOP (I35 SOUTH)

TMED MASTER PLAN

DO NOT POST



 
 1 

 
 ORDINANCE NO. 2017-4871 

 
AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE TAX INCREMENT 
FINANCING REINVESTMENT ZONE NO. 1 FINANCING AND PROJECT 
PLANS TO ALIGN WITH THE 2022 MASTER PLAN WHICH INCLUDES 
APPROPRIATING BOND PROCEEDS, ADJUSTING TAX REVENUES AND 
ALLOCATING EXPENDITURES FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FOR 
FISCAL YEARS 2017-2062; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; DECLARING FINDINGS OF FACT; 
AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Whereas, the City Council (the "Council") of the City of Temple, Texas, (the "City") 
created Reinvestment Zone Number One, City of Temple, Texas (the "Zone") by Ordinance No. 
1457 adopted on September 16, 1982; 
 

Whereas, the Council adopted a Project Plan and Reinvestment Zone Financing Plan for 
the Zone by Ordinance No. 1525 adopted on December 22, 1983, and thereafter amended such 
plans by Ordinance No. 1664 adopted on June 20, 1985, Ordinance No. 1719 adopted on 
November 21, 1985, Ordinance No. 1888 adopted on December 21, 1987, Ordinance No. 1945 
adopted on October 20, 1988; Ordinance No. 1961 adopted on December 1, 1988; Ordinance 
No. 2039 adopted on April 19, 1990; Ordinance No. 91-2119 adopted on December 5, 1991; 
Ordinance No. 92-2138 adopted on April 7, 1992; Ordinance No. 94-2260 adopted on March 3, 
1994; Ordinance No. 95-2351 adopted on June 15, 1995; Ordinance No. 98-2542 adopted on 
February 5, 1998;  Ordinance No. 98-2582 adopted on November 19, 1998; Ordinance No. 99-
2619 adopted on March 18, 1999; Ordinance No. 99-2629 adopted on May 6, 1999; Ordinance 
No. 99-2631 adopted on May 20, 1999; Ordinance No. 99-2647 adopted on August 19, 1999; 
Ordinance No. 99-2678 adopted on December 16, 1999; Ordinance No. 2000-2682 adopted on 
January 6, 2000;  Ordinance No. 2000-2729 adopted on October 19, 2000; Ordinance No. 2001-
2772 adopted on June 7, 2001;  Ordinance No. 2001-2782 adopted on July 19, 2001; Ordinance 
No. 2001-2793 adopted on September 20, 2001; Ordinance No. 2001-2807 on November 15, 
2001; Ordinance No. 2001-2813 on December 20, 2001;  Ordinance No. 2002-2833 on March 
21, 2002; Ordinance No. 2002-2838 on April 18, 2002; Ordinance No. 2002-3847 on June 20, 
2002;  Ordinance No. 2002-3848 on June 20, 2002; Ordinance No. 2002-3868 on October 17, 
2002; Ordinance No. 2003- 3888 on February 20, 2003;Ordinance No. 2003-3894 on April 17, 
2003; Ordinance No 2003-3926 on September 18, 2003; Ordinance No. 2004-3695 on July 1, 
2004;  Ordinance No. 2004-3975 on August 19, 2004; Ordinance No. 2004-3981 on September 
16, 2004;  Ordinance No. 2005-4001 on May 5, 2005; Ordinance No. 2005-4038 on September 
15, 2005;  Ordinance No. 2006-4051 on January 5, 2006; Ordinance No. 2006-4076 on the 18th 
day of May, 2006;  Ordinance No. 2006-4118; Ordinance No. 2007-4141 on the 19th day of 
April, 2007;  Ordinance No. 2007-4155 on July 19, 2007; Ordinance No. 2007-4172 on the 20th 
day of September, 2007; Ordinance No. 2007-4173 on October 25, 2007;  Ordinance No. 2008-
4201 on the 21st day of February, 2008; and Ordinance No. 2008-4217 the 15th day of May, 
2008;  Ordinance No. 2008-4242 the 21st day of August, 2008; Ordinance No. 2009-4290 on the 
16th day of April, 2009; Ordinance No. 2009-4294 on the 21st day of May, 2009; Ordinance No. 
2009-4316 on the 17th day of September, 2009; Ordinance No. 2009-4320 on the 15th day of  



 
 2 

 
 
 
 
October, 2009; Ordinance No. 2010-4338 on the 18th day of February, 2010; Ordinance No. 
2010-4373 on the 19th day of August, 2010; Ordinance No. 2010-4405 on November 4, 2010; 
Ordinance No. 2011-4429 on March 17, 2011; Ordinance No. 2011-4455 on July 21, 2011; 
Ordinance No. 2011-4477 on October 20, 2011; Ordinance No. 2012-4540 on June 21, 2012; 
and Ordinance No. 2012-4546 on July 19, 2012; Ordinance No. 2012-4554 on September 20, 
2012; Ordinance No. 2012-4566 on November 15, 2012; Ordinance No. 2013-4595 on June 20, 
2013; Ordinance No. 2014-4665 on May 15, 2014; Ordinance No. 2014-4676 on July 17, 2014; 
Ordinance No. 2014-4683 on September 18, 2014; Ordinance No. 2014-4695 on December 18, 
2014; Ordinance No. 2015-4705 on April 16, 2015; Ordinance No. 2015-4734 on October 17, 
2015; Ordinance No. 2016-4789 on July 21, 2016; Ordinance No. 2016-4809 on October 20, 
2016; Ordinance No. 2017-4838 on April 20, 2017; Ordinance No. 2017-4851 on July 20, 2017; 
Ordinance No. 2017-4871 on October 19, 2017; 
 

Whereas, the Board of Directors of the Zone has adopted an additional amendment to the 
Reinvestment Zone  Financing and Project Plans for the Zone and forwarded such amendment to 
the Council for appropriate action; 
 

Whereas, the Council finds it necessary to amend the Reinvestment Zone Financing and 
Project Plans for the Zone to include financial information as hereinafter set forth;  
 

Whereas, the Council finds that such amendment to the Reinvestment Zone Financing 
and Project Plans is feasible and conforms to the Comprehensive Plan of the City, and that this 
action will promote economic development within the City of Temple; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS THAT: 

 
Part 1: Findings. The statements contained in the preamble of this Ordinance are true 

and correct and are adopted as findings of fact hereby. 
 

Part 2: Reinvestment Zone Financing and Project Plans. The amendment to the Tax 
Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Financing and Project Plans, heretofore adopted 
by the Board of Directors of the Zone and referred to in the preamble of this ordinance, is hereby 
approved and adopted, as set forth in the Amendments to Reinvestment Zone Number 1, City of 
Temple, Texas, attached hereto as Exhibits A and B.  
 

Part 3: Plans Effective. The Financing Plan and Project Plans for the Zone heretofore in 
effect shall remain in full force and effect according to the terms and provisions thereof, except 
as specifically amended hereby. 

 
Part 4: Severability. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 

sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any 
phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the 
final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect  



 
 3 

 
 
 
 
any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this ordinance, since 
the same would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this 
ordinance of any such invalid phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 5: Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its 
passage in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 

 
Part 6: Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 

which this Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the 
time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meeting Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 5th day of 

October, 2017. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 19th day of October, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS     
 

   
               

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 

ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
           
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 

 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

  
 

10/19/17 
Item #6(W) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 4 

DEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Mark Baker, Senior Planner 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  SECOND READING - Z-FY-17-42: Consider adopting an ordinance authorizing 
a rezoning from Agricultural zoning district to Planned Development - General Retail zoning district with 
Development/ Site Plan approval, on 5.058 +/- acres, located on the north side of FM 2305, 
approximately 290 feet west of its intersection with Morgan's Point Road (FM 2271), addressed 12000 
and 11934 FM 2305. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval for a rezoning from Agricultural (AG) district 
to Planned Development-General Retail (PD-GR) district subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Substantial compliance with the Site/ Development Plan (Exhibit A), including a 15-foot tree 
landscape buffer be provided along the perimeter boundary;  

2. That existing trees and other landscape material shall be counted as credit toward meeting the 
overall landscape requirements of UDC Section 7.4.4, subject to review of a Landscape Plan at 
the building review stage of development;   

3. Maximum building height of 25 feet; 
4. Residential appearance to buildings with pitched roofs, windows, foundation plantings and brick 

/ masonry facades; and 
5. Freestanding signage: Maximum 30 feet in height. 

 
Staff recommends approval of Planned Development – General Retail (PD-GR) zoning district, for the 
following reasons: 

1. That the proposed Planned Development demonstrates compliance with the provisions of the 
Planned Development Criteria as required by UDC Section 3.4.5; 

2. The Planned Development-General Retail (PD-GR) zoning meets the intent of the FM 2271 
Corridor Plan and is consistent with Planned Developments approved within the FM 2271 
Corridor; 

3. The Planned Development-General Retail (PD-GR) zoning is compatible with surrounding 
zoning, existing and anticipated uses; 

4. The Planned Development-General Retail (PD-GR) complies with the Thoroughfare Plan; and 
5. Public and on-site facilities are available to serve the subject property.   

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: At their September 5, 2017 meeting, 
the Planning & Zoning Commission voted eight to zero to recommend approval of the proposed 
Planned Development as recommended by staff. 



 
10/19/17 

Item #6(W) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 2 of 4 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The subject property is a 5.058 +/- acre tract, which is being proposed for rezoning 
from Agricultural (AG) zoning district to General Retail (GR) zoning district.  Although the rezoning is 
not being driven by a specific user, the owner intends to market the property for retail and service uses. 
 
The subject property borders 40 Morgan’s Point Road on the east side, which is a 2.485 +/- acre 
property recently rezoned to PD-GR per Ordinance 2017-4847. The subject property is similar in terms 
of existing trees and vegetation availability for use into a perimeter landscape buffer for screening. A 
condition is proposed with this Planned Development for the same type of perimeter landscape buffer. 
 
FM 2271 CORRIDOR PLAN: The City of Temple City Council adopted the FM 2271 Corridor Plan per 
Ordinance 98-2589. The Corridor Plan was intended to be a general guide for development within the 
study area over the course of 10 to 20 years. While it was adopted in 1998, it is still a relevant guideline 
for the defined corridor.  
 
The study area for the Corridor Plan spans one-quarter mile on either side of FM 2271 (Morgan’s Point 
Road), within the corporate boundaries of the City of Temple, bounded by Belton Dam on the south 
and Bonnie Lane on the north, consisting of approximately 438 acres of land. The subject property is 
within those boundaries and is subject to the guidelines of the Corridor Plan.  Further, the plan identifies 
General Retail (GR) as the appropriate zoning district to provide the retail and service uses. The Plan 
also identifies the Planned Development concept to codify the guidelines of the Corridor Plan. 
 
It is noteworthy that this request is the third rezoning within the Corridor boundaries within the last three 
months. Two of the three requests are from the same applicant. The third was approved by Ord. 2017-
4847 in June and is east of the subject property, fronting along FM 2271. 
 
Both the FM 2271 Corridor Plan’s Future Land Use Map and Zoning Map (attached with Maps) identify 
the subject property as within the target area for not only a Planned Development Concept but with an 
underlying zoning district of General Retail. While part of the subject property is not entirely within the 
targeted area for Planned Development or retail uses, proceeding as a Planned Development with a 
base zoning of General Retail, is consistent with the intent of the FM 2271 Corridor Plan. 
 
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT (UDC SEC. 3.4): A Planned Development is a flexible overlay zoning 
district designed to respond to unique development proposals, special design considerations and land 
use transitions by allowing evaluation of land use relationships to surrounding areas through 
development / site plan approval. 
 
As a Planned Development, per UDC Sec.3.4, a Development / Site Plan is binding and subject to 
review and approval by City Council as part of the rezoning. As opposed to a standard rezoning, 
conditions of approval can be included into the rezoning Ordinance.  
 
Further, this Planned Development (PD) concept, will have a base zoning of General Retail (GR) with 
no changes to the allowed uses of the GR district.  Building height however, will be restricted to two-
stories rather than three allowed in GR. At the same time, the PD concept codifies the intent of the FM 
2271 Corridor Plan and utilizes the natural resources to add buffer and screening for the subject 
property. As such, the Development / Site Plan is included as the Exhibit with the Rezoning Ordinance 
and identifies the location and size of the landscape buffers.  



10/19/17 
Item #6(W) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 3 of 4 

 
In determining whether to approve, approve with conditions or deny a Planned Development 
application, the Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council must consider criteria as set forth in 
UDC Section 3.4.5 A-J. The Planned Development Criteria and Compliance Summary is attached. 
 
The uses allowed in GR include but are not limited to those shown in the attached table. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN (CP) COMPLIANCE: Compliance to goals, objectives or maps of the 
Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan are summarized by the attached Comprehensive 
Plan Compliance table but further described below: 
 
Future Land Use Map (CP Map 3.1) 
The subject property is within the Estate Residential land use district. The Estate Residential district is 
for large lot rural development generally on the fringes. The subject property is also with the Suburban 
Commercial land use designation, which is appropriate for office, retail and services uses adjacent to 
and abutting residential neighborhoods and in other areas where the community’s image and aesthetic 
value is to be promoted, such as “Gateways” and high-profile corridor locations. Since the project is 
within both the Estate Residential and the Suburban Commercial land use designations, the requested 
base-zoning of General Retail (GR) is partially consistent with the Future Land Use Map. 
 
Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) 
The subject property takes access from FM 2305, shown on the Thoroughfare Plan as a minor arterial. 
A minor arterial requires a minimum 70 feet of right-of-way (ROW) and 49 feet of pavement. The 
anticipated subdivision plat will address any needed ROW dedication. To date, no dedication issues 
have been identified. No Transportation Capital Improvement Program (TCIP) improvements 
scheduled through FY 2024 have been identified. 
 
Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
Sewer is available from a 12-inch sewer line within FM 2305 (W. Adams Ave) and an eight inch sewer 
line on the west side of the project site. Water is available through a 12-inch water line in FM 2305.   
 
Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance 
On FM 2305, a proposed City-Wide Spine Trail is shown on the Trails Master Plan. In addition, as a 
major arterial, a six foot sidewalk is required along FM 2305. The City may agree to upsize the six foot 
sidewalk. Provisions for the sidewalk will be addressed during the plat review stage.  
 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: The attached table compare and contrast, the current Agricultural 
development standards with the proposed General Retail standards. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Eighteen notices to property owners within 200-feet of the subject property were 
sent notice of  the public hearing as required by State law and City Ordinance. As of Tuesday 
September 26, 2017 at 9:00 AM, five notices in agreement have been received. One notice has been 
returned as undeliverable.  
 
The newspaper printed notice of the public hearing on August 24, 2017, in accordance with state law 
and local ordinance. 
 
SCHOOL DISTRICT:  Belton Independent School District (BISD) 



10/19/17 
Item #6(W) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 4 of 4 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Development / Site Plan (Exhibit A) 
Surveyor Sketch & Field Notes (Exhibit B) 
Planned Development Criteria Compliance Summary (UDC Sec. 3.4.5) 
Photos 
Maps 
Tables 
Returned Property Notices 
P&Z Excerpts (September 5, 2017) 
Ordinance  
 
  



Exhibit A
Buffer for Illustrative Purposes Only 

Not to Scale

1. Substantial compliance with the Site/ Development
Plan (Exhibit A), including a 15-foot tree landscape
buffer be provided along the perimeter boundary;

2. That existing trees and other landscape material
shall be counted as credit toward meeting the
overall landscape requirements of UDC Section
7.4.4, subject to review of a Landscape Plan at the
building review stage of development;

3. Maximum building height of 25 feet;
4. Residential appearance to buildings with pitched

roofs, windows, foundation plantings and brick/
masonry facades; and

5. Freestanding signage: Maximum 30 feet in height.



mbaker
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B





Planned Development Criteria and Compliance Summary

UDC Code Section 3.4.5 (A-J) Yes/No Discussion / Synopsis

I.  Open space areas are designed to ensure that such 
    areas are suitable for intended recreation and 
    conservation uses.

YES Parkland dedication is not required for non-residential development.

J.   Water, drainage, wastewater facilities, garbage disposal
     and other utilities necessary for essential services to 
     residents and occupants are provided.

A.  The Plan Complies with all provisions of the Design and
      Development Standards Manual, this UDC and other
      Ordinances of the City. 

B.  The environmental impact of the development relating 
      to the preservation of existing natural resources on the
      site and the impact on natural resources of the
      surrounding impacts and neighborhood is mitigated.   

D.  Safe and efficient vehicular and pedestrian circulation
      systems are provided.

C.  The development is in harmony with the character, 
      use and design of the surrounding area.

E.  Off-street parking and loading facilities are designed
     to ensure that all such spaces are usable and are safely
     and conveniently arranged.
F.  Streets are designed with sufficient width and suitable
     grade and location to accommodate prospective traffic 
     and to provide access for firefighting and emergency 
     equipment to buildings.

G.  Streets are coordinated so as to compose a convenient 
      system consistent with the Thoroughfare Plan of the 
     City.

H.  Landscaping and screening are integrated into the 
      overall site design: 
       1.  To provide adequate buffers to shield lights, noise, 
            movement or activities from adjacent properties 
            when necessary. 
       2.  To complement the design and location of buildings.              

YES

YES

YES

YES Vehicular circulation will be formally addressed during the review of a more detailed development site plan to be reviewed prior to the 
building plan review stage.  Since no building envelope has been identified with this preliminary development plan, no circulation issues 
have been identified.

The project site is located within the FM2271 Corridor, addressed as 12000 FM 2305.  Corridor Plan standards which have been adopted by 
ordinance for surrounding Planned Developments and require conditions that promote development standards that are in harmony with 
the surrounding area and emphasis a residential charactor.   

Drainage and other related engineering will be addressed at the platting stage.  No issues have been identified related to the preservation 
of existing natural resources on the property.  See Item #H for additional discussion related to preservation of existing trees and other 
landscaping.

It is fully anticipated that the development / site plan attached with the rezoning ordinance will conform to all applicable provisions of the 
UDC as well as to dimensional, developmental and design standards adopted by the City for all new development. 

YES The recommendation of Planned Development, codifies the preservation of the existing trees, primarily Oak, which provide additional 
screening and buffering beyond what is required by UDC Section 7.7.  A  screening & buffer strip of 15 feet along the perimeter boundary is 
proposed as a condition.  Other landscaping requirements in compliance with UDC Section 7.7 will be addressed during the more detailed 
development plan review stage when a user has been identifed.  Additional compliance will be determined with the review at the building 
permit stage as the lot develops.  Compliance to buffering and screening in compliance to UDC Section 7.7 as well as Planned Development 
conditions of approval will be confirmed during the review of the subdivision plat and building permit.                                                                        

YES Water is available from existing City water lines in FM 2305.  Wastewater is available through existing sewer lines in FM 2305.  To date, no 
issues other have been identified.  

YES Parking will be provided for each use in accordance with UDC Section 7.5.

YES Streets will be developed in accordance with the design standards in accordance with UDC Section 8.2 requirements and reviewed during 
the platting stage of development.

YES Compliance and consistancy with the Thoroughfare Plan will be addressed during the subdivision plat stage.  No compliance issues have 
been identified. 



Site & Surrounding Property Photos 
 
 

 
 

Site: Undeveloped (As seen from FM 2305)  
(AG) 

 

 
 

East:  SF Residential Uses & Retail Service Uses (Looking East along FM 2305)  
(PD-GR) 



 
 

East:  SF Residential Uses  
(PD-GR) 

 

 
 

East:  Existing Retail Service Uses  
(PD-GR) 



 
 

West: SF Residential Uses   
(PD-GR) 

 

 
 

South: Mixed SF Uses and Non-Residential Uses 
(AG) 

 



 
 

North (Google Earth Image): Existing SF Residential Use on Acreage 
Note: Location of Property Rezoned per Ordinance 2017-4847.  

(AG) 

N 

S 

W E
 

AG to PD-GR 
Ord. 2017-4847 



Maps 
 

 
 

Location Map 
 

 
 

Aerial Map 



 
 

Zoning Map 
 

 
 

Future Land Use Map 



 

 
 

Thoroughfare & Trails Map 
 

 
 

Utility Map 



 
 
 

 
 

Notification Map 
 
 

 
 
 

FM 2271 Corridor Plan 
 

Future Land Use Map 
& 

Zoning Map 
 
 

SEE NEXT PAGE 



 
 

 FM 2271 Corridor Plan – Future Land Use Map 
Subject Property Area encircled in BLACK 

 
 

 
 

      FM 2271 Corridor Plan – Zoning Map 
   Subject Property Area encircled in BLACK 

FM 2305 

FM 2271 

FM 2271 

FM 2305 



Tables 
 

Permitted & Conditional Uses Table (PD-GR) 
 
 

Permitted & Conditional Use Table - General Retail (PD-GR) 

Agricultural Uses Farm, Ranch or Orchard 

Residential Uses 

Single Family Residence (Detached & Attached)                                                                
Duplex                                                                                   
Townhouse                                                                           
Industrialized Housing                                                      
Family or Group Home                                                        
Home for the Aged 

Retail & Service Uses 
Most Retail & Service Uses                                               
Alcoholic Beverage Sales, off-premise   consumption, 
package Store (CUP) 

Commercial Uses 

Plumbing Shop                                                                               
Upholstery Shop                                                                   
Kennel without Veterinary Hospital (CUP)                     
Indoor Flea Market 

Industrial Uses 
Temporary Asphalt & Concrete Batching Plat (CUP)                                                                                     
Laboratory, medical, dental, scientific or research                                                                      
Recycling collection location  

Recreational Uses 
Park or Playground                                                             
Beer & Wine (On Premise Consumption) < 75% 

Vehicle Service Uses 

Auto Leasing, Rental                                                           
Auto Sales - New & Used (outside Lot)                           
Car Wash                                                                                                                                          
Vehicle Servicing  (Minor) 

Restaurant Uses With & Without Drive-In 

Overnight Accommodations Hotel or Motel 

Transportation Uses Emergency Vehicle Service                                              
Helistop  

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

Surrounding Property Uses 
 

 Surrounding Property & Uses 

Direction FLUP Zoning Current Land Use 

Site Suburban Commercial AG Undeveloped 
North Suburban Commercial AG SF Residence on Acreage 

South Suburban Commercial  PD-GR Existing Retail & Service 
Uses 

East Suburban Commercial PD-GR & 
UE 

Undeveloped,  SF 
Residence on Acreage & 
Existing Retail & Service 
Uses (Office Warehouse)  

West Suburban Commercial AG Undeveloped & Scattered 
SF Uses 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Comprehensive Plan Compliance 
 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Compliance? 
CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use Map PARTIAL 

CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  YES 

CP Goal 4.1 - Growth and development patterns 
should be consistent with the City’s infrastructure 
and public service capacities 

YES 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks 
Ordinance 

YES 

CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Development Standards 
 

 

Current  (AG)  
Residential 

Proposed  
(PD-GR) 
Non-Res 

Minimum Lot Size 1 Acre N/A 
Minimum Lot Width 100 Feet N/A 
Minimum Lot Depth 150 Feet N/A 

Front Setback 50 Feet 15 Feet  

Side Setback 15 Feet 10 Feet 
Side Setback (corner) 15 Feet 10 Feet 

Rear Setback 10 Feet  10 Feet 
Max Building Height 3 Stories 2 Stories 

 
 
 10’ rear setback (Non-residential use abuts a residential zoning district or 

use -  UDC Section 4.4.4.F3 
 
General provisions for buffering and screening for non-residential uses adjacent to 

residential uses are found in UDC Section 7.7, highlighted provisions include but 
not limited to: 

* Landscaping or solid fencing from 6 to 8 feet in height (UDC Section 7.7.4), 
* Refuse containers located in the side or rear of the property (UDC Section 7.7.6), 

and  
* Screened outdoor storage (UDC Section 7.7.8.B1). 

 











mbaker
Text Box
          RECEIVED   BY PLANNING DEPT.         SEPT 5, 2017





EXCERPTS FROM THE 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 5, 2017 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 

Item 2: Z-FY-17-42 – Hold a public hearing to discuss and recommend action on a rezoning 
from Agricultural (AG) zoning district to Planned Development - General Retail (PD-
GR) zoning district with Development/ Site Plan approval, on 5.058 +/- acres, located 
on the north side of FM 2305, approximately 290 feet west of its intersection with 
Morgan's Point Road (FM 2271), addressed 12000 and 11934 FM 2305.  

Mr. Mark Baker, Senior Planner, stated this item was scheduled to go forward to City Council 
for first reading on October 5, 2017 and second reading on October 15, 2017 (correct date is 
actually October 19, 2017). 

The applicant is requesting General Retail (GR) as a base zoning under a Planned 
Development concept (PD-GR). 

No specific use/user has been identified. 

A subdivision plat will be required prior to the development of the property which would 
include the Development Review Committee (DRC) process and may require P&Z 
Commission review. 

The property is located within the boundaries of the FM 2271 Corridor Plan. This is the third 
rezoning request within the Corridor in three months. 

On site photos shown. 

Surrounding properties include single family residential uses on acreage, zoned AG, to the 
north, mixed single family and non-residential uses, zoned AG, to the south, single family 
residential uses, zoned AG, to the west, and existing single family residential use and existing 
retail and service uses, zoned AG and PD-GR, respectively, to the east. 

The FM 2271 Corridor Plan was adopted in 1998 by Ord. No. 98-2589. It is intended as a 
general development guide for both sides of FM 2271. Bonnie Lane lies to the north and 
Belton Dam lies to the south as the boundaries. It identifies GR as the base-zoning to deliver 
retail and service uses and identifies Planned Development Concept as an implementation 
mechanism.  

The 2271 FM Corridor Plan provides guidelines for: 
Use of trees and other landscaping materials for corridor enhancement (flexibility for 
existing material); 
Promotes residential appearance of buildings; 
Pitched roofs; 



Foundation plantings; 
Brick / masonry façades; 
Building / Sign height limitations; and 
Limits on distances between driveways (where applicable). 

The Future Land Use and Character Map for FM 2271 Corridor Plan and the current zoning 
map are shown for comparison. 
A Planned Development per the Unified Development Code (UDC), Sec. 3.4 is defined as 
follows: 

A Planned Development is a flexible overlay zoning district designed to respond to 
unique development proposals, special design considerations and land use transitions 
by allowing evaluation of land use relationships to surrounding areas through 
Development / Site Plan approval. 
Has a binding nature of an Approved Development /Site Plan (Exhibit A shown). 

The current zoning is AG which are areas containing rural land uses or undeveloped acreage, 
and also used as a holding-zone after annexation. 
PD-GR rezoning request is consistent with FM 2271 Corridor Plan and the surrounding zoning 
retail and service uses.  

The Future Land Use and Character Map designates the subject property as both Suburban 
Commercial and Estates Residential. Suburban Commercial is intended for office, retail, and 
services uses adjacent to abutting residential neighborhoods and areas where community 
image and aesthetic value are to be promoted, such as “Gateways” or “Corridors”. Estate 
Residential is for larger rural lot development intended for ½ acre lots (Urban Estates – UE) 
and supports Single Family-One (SF-1). The request is in partial compliance with the Future 
Land Use and Character Map. 

Water and sewer are available to serve the property. 

The Thoroughfare Plan designates FM 2305 (West Adams Avenue) as a Major Arterial and 
any needed right-of-way will be addressed with the forthcoming platting stage. 

A six-foot wide sidewalk along FM 2305 would be required during the platting process. 

A proposed City-Wide Spine Trail will be addressed with the plat. 

Some of the PD-GR Allowed Uses are shown (not an all-inclusive list). 

Proposed Development Standards are given. 

Eighteen notices were mailed in accordance with all state and local regulations with four 
notices returned in agreement and one notice returned in disagreement. 

This request is in compliance with UDC Sec. 3.4.5 (PD Criteria), the FM 2271 Corridor Plan, 
the Thoroughfare Plan, is compatible with surrounding uses and zoning, and has public 
facilities available to serve the property. 



The request is in partial compliance with the Future Land Use and Character Map due to the 
split zoning. 

Staff recommends approval of the request for a rezoning from AG district to PD-GR district, 
subject to the following conditions: 

1. That a 15-foot tree preservation buffer be provided along the perimeter boundary as 
further illustrated by Exhibit A; 

2. That existing trees and other landscape material shall be counted as credit toward 
meeting the overall landscape requirements of UDC Section 7.4.4, subject to review 
of a Landscape Plan at the building permit review stage of development; 

3. Maximum building height of 25 feet; 

4. Residential appearance to buildings with pitched roofs, windows, foundation 
plantings and brick / masonry façades; and 

5. Freestanding signage: maximum 30-feet height. 

Compliance to the Exhibit would be required and will be confirmed during review of the 
building plans and no future public plan review would be required. The Exhibit would be 
attached to the Ordinance and confirmed at Staff level for compliance. 

Chair Fettig opened the public hearing. 

There being no speakers, the public hearing was closed. 

Mr. Baker explained the plat has not been filed yet and it is currently unknown if the plat would 
come before P&Z Commission. Tonight is for the rezoning and the Development/Site Plan as 
presented. 

The P&Z Commissioners may recommend changes to the Development/Site Plan if desired. 

Commissioner Crisp made a motion to approve Item 2, Z-FY-17-42, as presented, and 
Commissioner Alaniz made a second. 

Motion passed:  (8:0) 
Commissioner Marshall absent 

 
 



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2017-4873 
(Z-FY-17-42) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A REZONING FROM AGRICULTURAL ZONING 
DISTRICT TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENT - GENERAL RETAIL ZONING 
DISTRICT WITH DEVELOPMENT/SITE PLAN APPROVAL, ON 
APPROXIMATELY 5.058 ACRES, LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF FM 
2305, APPROXIMATELY 290 FEET WEST OF ITS INTERSECTION WITH 
MORGAN'S POINT ROAD (FM 2271), ADDRESSED AS 12000 AND 11934 
FM 2305; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Whereas, the subject property is an approximately 5.058 acre tract of land, which is 

being proposed for rezoning from Agricultural zoning district to Planned Development - 
General Retail zoning district, although the rezoning is not being driven by a specific user, the 
owner intends to market the property for retail and service uses; 

 
Whereas, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Temple, Texas, after due 

consideration of the conditions, recommends approval of the rezoning and Site Development 
Plan from Agricultural zoning district to Planned Development - General Retail zoning district, 
on approximately 5.058 acres, located on the north side of FM 2305, approximately 290 feet 
west of its intersection with Morgan's Point Road (FM 2271), addressed as 12000 and 11934 
FM 2305; and  

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 

THAT: 
 

 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their entirety.   

 
Part 2: The City Council approves a rezoning from Agricultural zoning district to 

Planned Development - General Retail zoning district, on approximately 5.058 acres, located on 
the north side of FM 2305, approximately 290 feet west of its intersection with Morgan's Point 
Road (FM 2271), addressed as 12000 and 11934 FM 2305, as more thoroughly described by the 
surveyor sketch and field notes attached hereto as Exhibit ‘B’, and depicted  by  the 
development/site plan attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A,’ and made a part hereof for all purposes 
along with the following conditions: 

 
1. Substantial compliance with the Site/Development Plan (Exhibit A), including a 15-

foot tree landscape buffer be provided along the perimeter boundary;  
2. Existing trees and other landscape material shall be counted as credit toward 

meeting the overall landscape requirements of UDC Section 7.4.4, subject to review 
of a Landscape Plan at the building review stage of development;   

3. Maximum building height of 25 feet; 
4. Residential appearance to buildings with pitched roofs, windows, foundation 

plantings and brick/masonry facades; and 
5. Freestanding signage: Maximum 30 feet in height. 

 



2 
 

 
 
 
Part 3: The City Council approves the Site Development Plan attached hereto as Exhibit 

‘A,’ and made a part hereof for all purposes. 
 

Part 4: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary changes 
to the City Zoning Map as defined by the attached Exhibit ‘B.’ 

 
Part 5: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 

paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the final 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of 
the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since the 
same would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance 
of any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 6: This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 

 
Part 7: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 5th day of 

October, 2017. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 19th day of October, 2017. 

     
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
              

____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/19/17 

Item #6(X) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 3 
DEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
 
Lynn Barrett, Assistant Planning Director  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: SECOND READING –Z-FY-17-43: Consider adopting an ordinance authorizing 
a rezoning from Two Family zoning district to Planned Development Temple Medical Educational 
District T5-E, with a Development/Site Plan for two parking lots, located on the north 50 feet of Lot 7 
and the south 50 feet of Lot 8, HP Robertson Addition, addressed as 1214 and 1218 South Main Street, 
Temple. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval of the rezoning from 2F to PD-TMED T5-E 
to add two small parking lots for an adjacent restaurant with the following conditions: 
 
PD Conditions: 

1. A binding site development plan, which includes landscaping and is attached as Exhibit A, will 
govern the development 

2. Parking lots for the adjacent business will be paved and striped per the development site plans 
3. In the event of a conflict between the site development plan and the text of the Planned 

Development ordinance, the stricter, more specific standard applies 
4. If the lot lying between the two lots is purchased and rezoned by the applicant to match T-5E for 

non-residential use, the site plan can be amended administratively by the Planning Director to 
reflect the buffer fence removal 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At their September 5, 2017 meeting, 
the Planning & Zoning Commission voted eight to zero to recommend approval of the rezoning to PD-
TMED T5-E per staff’s recommendation.    

 
ITEM SUMMARY: The Old Jody’s restaurant owner, Joey Franks, is requesting a rezoning from the 2F 
zoning district to the PD-TMED T-5E zoning district on both lots to allow a new parking lot at 1218 
South Main Street. The request is also to improve an existing and non-conforming unpaved lot at 1214 
South Main Street owned by the applicant who also owns and manages a restaurant fronting on Avenue 
M across the alley which is zoned TMED T-5E. The parking lots are for patron parking as well as 
employee parking and are located across the alley behind the Old Jody’s Restaurant at 1219 South 
First Street. A lot that is not under Mr. Franks’ ownership is between the two subject properties; 
however, he is attempting to purchase this one in the future, for non-residential use. A subsequent 
rezoning would be required in that event. Landscaping and buffering would be required as part of the 
project along the Avenue M and South Main Street frontages. In the UDC Sec 6.3.3 the TMED transect 
zone T-5E is characterized as a Neighborhood Edge Zone consisting “of a mid-density mixed use but  
 



10/19/17 
Item #6(X)  

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 3  

 
primarily commercial, retail and office urban fabric” with parking to the rear and “vehicular cross-
connection among adjacent properties.” 
Per UDC, Section 3.4.3 & 3.4.4, a Planned Development requires approval of a Development/Site plan 
that is binding. On August 21, 2017, the DRC discussed the proposal and PD conditions.  
 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: The following table provides the direction from the property, 
Future Land Use Plan (FLUP) designation, existing zoning and current land uses: 
 

 
Direction 

 
FLUP 

7 ac 
Zoning 

 
Current Land Use 

Subject 
Property  

Neighborhood     
Conservation  

  2F    Vacant 

North  Neighborhood 
Conservation  

2F Residential 

South  TMED  PD SF-1  Parking Lot  

East  Neighborhood 
Conservation 

2F Vacant Residential 

West  Neighborhood 
Commercial 

TMED Restaurant  

 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 
 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map 

 

Compliant? 

CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use and Character (FLUP) Partially 

CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  Yes 

CP 
Goal 4.1 - Growth and development patterns should be 
consistent with the City’s infrastructure and public service 
capacities 

Yes 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance Yes 

CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 
 



10/19/17 
Item #6(X)  

Consent Agenda 
Page 3 of 3 

 
Future Land Use and Character Plan (FLUP) (CP Map 3.1) 
Neighborhood Conservation is the future land use for the subject properties, which are separated from 
Auto Urban Commercial by the alley. The Choices ’08 City of Temple Comprehensive Plan shows 
TMED as the FLUP directly across Avenue M, as well. The proposed rezoning minimizes the impact 
on the surrounding residential properties to contain parking adjacent to the business. 
 
Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) and Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalk Ordinance 
The subject property does not front on any trails. Avenue M is a Collector and South Main Street is a 
local street.  
 
Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
Water and wastewater are available to the subject property.  
 
UDC, Section 3.4 Planned Development  
A Planned Development is defined as: 

“A flexible overlay zoning district designed to respond to unique development proposals, special 
design considerations and land use transitions by allowing evaluation of land use relationships 
to surrounding areas through development plan approval.”  

 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: The development site plan will provide the development and 
dimensional standards for the parking lot development.  
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: 17  notices of the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing along with the 
PD site plans were sent out to property owners within 200-feet of the subject property as required by 
State law and City Ordinance. As of September 24, 2017, two notices have been returned in favor of 
the proposed rezoning (property owners) and zero notices have been returned in opposition to the 
proposed rezoning. The newspaper printed the notice of the Planning and Zoning Commission public 
hearing on August 24, 2017, in accordance with state law and local ordinance. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Location Map 
Zoning Map 
Future Land Use Map 
Thoroughfare and Trails Map 
Site and Surrounding Property Photos 
Development Site Plans  
Utility Map 
Notification Map 
Returned Property Notices 
P&Z Excerpts (September 5, 2017)  
Ordinance  
  



W AVE M

E AVE M

S 
M
A
IN

 S
T

1219

1219

1208

1216

1218

1214

1215

1207

1203

1301

1302

1203

1217

1204

Ü

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-17-43

2F TO PD TMED 5-E

Address :
1218 & 1214 S MAIN ST

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

LOCATION MAP

 lrbarrett
Date: 8/16/2017

Streets

EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Railroad

Temple Municipal Boundary

Parcels

ETJ Parcels

CaseArea



Zoning Map

 



Date: 8/16/2017

1119

1120
110

1115

1119

1114

1118

1107

1109

1113

1117

1203

1205

1209

1215

1217

1208

1220

1203

1219

1204

1208

1214

1216

1218

1203

1207

1215

1217

1219

105

1307

1309

1302

1304

1314 1301

1307

1313

1320
1313

1301

1318

1310

1302

1111

1115

102

1301

1303

1307

1102

1110

1114

1204

1212

1218

1302

1306
1317

1202

1301

1118

W AVE M

S 
1S

T 
ST

 (
SP

U
R
 2
90

)

S 
1S

T 
ST

 (
SP

U
R
 2
90

)

WAVEL

S 
2N

D
 S
T

S 
M
A
IN

 S
T

E AVE L

E AVE M

S 
2N

D
 S
T

E AVE M

W AVE M

Ü
Zoning Case :
Z-FY-17-43

2F TO PD-TMED T5-E

Address :
1218 & 1214 S Main St

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

Date: 8/16/2017
 lrbarrett

FUTURE LAND
USE MAP

EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Parcels

Future LUP

Agricultural/Rural

Auto-Urban Commercial

Auto-Urban Mixed Use

Auto-Urban Multi-Family

Auto-Urban Residential

Business Park

Estate Residential

Industrial

Neighborhood Conservation

Parks & Open Space

Public Institutional

Suburban Commercial

Suburban Residential

Temple Medical Education District

Urban Center

CaseArea



Date: 8/16/2017

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[

1119

1120
110

1115

1119

1114

1118

1107

1109

1113

1117

1203

1205

1209

1215

1217

1208

1220

1203

1219

1204

1208

1214

1216

1218

1203

1207

1215

1217

1219

105

1307

1309

1302

1304

1314 1301

1307

1313

1320
1313

1301

1318

1310

1302

1111

1115

102

1301

1303

1307

1102

1110

1114

1204

1212

1218

1302

1306
1317

1202

1301

1118

W AVE M

S 
1S

T 
ST

 (
SP

U
R
 2
90

)

S 
1S

T 
ST

 (
SP

U
R
 2
90

)

WAVEL

S 
2N

D
 S
T

S 
M
A
IN

 S
T

E AVE L

E AVE M

S 
2N

D
 S
T

E AVE M

W AVE M

Ü
Zoning Case :
Z-FY-17-43

2F TO PD-TMED T5-E

Address :
1218 & 1214 S Main St

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

Date: 8/16/2017
 lrbarrett

Parcels

Thoroughfare Plan

Expressway

Major Arterial

Proposed Major
Arterial

Minor Arterial

Proposed Minor
Arterial

Collector

Proposed
Collector

Trails Master Plan

[ EXISTING, CITY
WIDE SPINE

! EXISTING,
COMMUNITY
WIDE
CONNECTOR

EXISTING,
LOCAL
CONNECTOR

[ PROPOSED,
CITY WIDE
SPINE

! PROPOSED,
COMMUNITY
WIDE
CONNECTOR

PROPOSED,
LOCAL
CONNECTOR

CaseArea

THOROUGHFARE
AND TRAILS MAP



SITE PHOTOS 
1218 S Main Site 

 

 



1214 S Main Site 

 

Adjacent lot 

 



Old Jody’s Restaurant on S First Street and Ave M 

 

View North down S Main Street 

 



New Privacy Fence

1214 S Main PD TMED T5e 
Site Development Plan

Paved Parking lot



1218 S Main PD TMED T5e 
Site Development Plan

Paved Parking lot



6

2

22
W AVE M

E AVE M

S 
M
A
IN

 S
T

1219

1219

1208

1215

1216

1218

1214

1207

1302

1203

1301

1203

1217

1204

Ü

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-17-43

2F TO PD TMED T5-E

Address :
1218 & 1214 S Main St

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

UTILITY MAP

 lrbarrett
Date: 8/16/2017

Manhole

Gravity Main

GF Hydrant

Main

Parcels

CaseArea



1120
PropID:
106772

110
PropID:
106773

1115
PropID:
128989

1119
PropID:
49964

1114
PropID:
100209

1118
PropID:
100328

1107
PropID:
799331109

PropID:
33024

1113
PropID:
26710

1117
PropID:
102540

1203
PropID:
13415

1205
PropID:
76229

1209
PropID:
33821

1215
PropID:
79949

1217
PropID:
102501

1208
PropID:
97570

1220
PropID:
57072

1203
PropID:
129729

1219
PropID:
37669

1204
PropID:
104565

1208
PropID:
100472

1214
PropID:
41745

1216
PropID:
100315

1218
PropID:
125165

1203
PropID:
75290

1207
PropID:
94387

1215
PropID:
75288

1217
PropID:
24697

1219
PropID:
24698

105
PropID:
32907

1307
PropID:
58080

1302
PropID:
29564

1304
PropID:
55569

1314
PropID:
116260

1301
PropID:
94326

1307
PropID:
28398

1313
PropID:
3087

1315
PropID:
66174

1320
PropID:
116261

1320
PropID:
79457

1313
PropID:
30590

1301
PropID:
37670

1318
PropID:
79456

1310
PropID:
110148

1302
PropID:
130200

1307
PropID:
44478

1313
PropID:
48380

1114
PropID:
47529

1204
PropID:
36258

1212
PropID:
105621

1218
PropID:
14316

1302
PropID:
79054

1306
PropID:
103019

1314
PropID:
17769

1317
PropID:
689

1202
PropID:
68631

1118
PropID:
96563

W AVE M

S 
1S

T 
ST

 (
SP

U
R
 2
90

)

W AVE N

S 
M
A
IN

 S
T

S 
2N

D
 S
T

E AVE L

WAVEL

E AVE M

W AVE M

MF-2

T5-E SF-1

GR

T5-E

GR

GR

T5-E

2F

SF-1

Ü

Date: 8/16/2017
 lrbarrett

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-17-43

2F TO PD-TMED T5-E

Address :
1218 & 1214 S Main St

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

200'
NOTIFICATION MAP

CurrentZoning

HI - CUP

UE

UE - PD

SF-1

SF-1 - CUP

SF-1 - PD

SF-2

SF-2 - PD

SF-3

SF-3 - PD

SF-3 - CUP, PD

SFA

SFA-2

SFA-2 - PD

SFA-3

SFA-3 - PD

2F

2F - CUP

2F - PD

MF-1

MF-1 - CUP

MF-1 - PD

MF-2

MF-2 - CUP

MF-2 - PD

MF-3 - PD

O-1

O-1 - CUP

O-1 - PD

O-2

O-2 - CUP

O-2 - PD

NS

NS - CUP

NS - PD

GR

GR - CUP

GR - PD

GR - CUP, PD

CA

CA - CUP

CA - PD

C

C - CUP

C - PD

C - CUP, PD

LI

LI - CUP

LI - PD

LI - CUP, PD

HI

HI - PD

AG

AG - CUP

MH

MH - CUP

MH - PD

MU

MU - CUP

SD-C

SD-C - CUP

SD-H

SD-H - CUP

SD-T

SD-V

T4

T4 - PD

T4 - CUP

T5-C

T5-C - CUP

T5-C - PD

T5-E

T5-E - CUP

T5-E - PD

NO BASE

CUP

PD

CaseArea

Buffer







EXCERPTS FROM THE 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 5, 2017 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 

Item 3: Z-FY-17-43 – Hold a public hearing to discuss and recommend action on a rezoning 
from Two Family (2F) zoning district to Planned Development Temple Medical 
Educational District T5-E (PD-TMED T5-E), with a Development/Site Plan for two 
parking lots, located on the north 50 feet of Lot 7 and the south 50 feet of Lot 8, HP 
Robertson Addition, addressed as 1214 and 1218 S Main Street, Temple, TX. 

Ms. Lynn Barrett, Assistant Director of Planning, stated this request is a PD for two lots 
currently zoned 2F that face South Main Street but back up to Commercial (C) property that 
runs along West Avenue M. The lot in between the two lots is not owned by the applicant. 

This item is scheduled to go forward to City Council for first reading on October 5, 2017 and 
second reading on October 19, 2017. 

The applicant has expressed interest in adding the lot between the two subject lots; however, 
that one lot is not included in this request. The two lots would be used for customer (south lot) 
and employee (north lot) parking. There are no structures on either lot. 

The lots are adjacent to TMED and across West Avenue M from existing parking lot. 

DRC reviewed this item on August 22, 2017. 

The Future Land Use and Character Map designate both subject properties as Neighborhood 
Conservation. There were dilapidated structures that have been demolished. Surrounding 
areas include Auto Urban Commercial and TMED. The request is in partial compliance.  

Water and sewer is available to serve the property. 

Site plans are shown for both lots (1218 and 1214 South Main) for the proposed parking lots. 
These site plans are binding to the request and Ordinance. 1214 South Main lot would have a 
new privacy fence buffering the use to the south. 

Photos of both sites are shown. 

Seventeen notices were mailed in accordance with all state and local regulations with two 
notices returned in agreement and zero notices returned in disagreement. 

In accordance with UDC, Section 3.4, a Planned Development is defined as: 

A flexible overlay zoning district designed to respond to unique development proposals, 
special design considerations and land use transitions by allowing evaluation of land 
use relationships to surrounding areas through development plan approval.  



Per UDC, Sections 3.4.3 & 3.4.4, a Planned Development requires approval of a 
Development/Site plan that is binding. 

There are four recommended PD Conditions: 
1. A binding site development plan, attached as Exhibit A will govern the development; 
2. Parking lots for the adjacent business will be paved and striped per the development 

site plans; 
3. In the event of a conflict between the site development plan and the text of the Planned 

Development ordinance, the stricter, more specific standard applies; and  
4. If the lot lying between the two lots is purchased and rezoned by the applicant to match 

T-5E for non-residential use, the site plan can be amended administratively by the 
Planning Director to reflect the buffer fence removal. 

Staff recommends approval of the Old Jody’s parking lot PD request to rezone the subject 
properties to PD-TMED T-5E in accordance with the conditions as presented and with the Site 
Development Plan. 
Ms. Barrett explained the alley is not part of the PD request; only the two subject lots. 
Chair Fettig opened the public hearing. 
There being no speakers, the public hearing was closed. 

Commissioner Crisp made a motion to approve Item 3, Z-FY-17-43, as presented, and 
Commissioner Ward made a second. 

Motion passed:  (8:0) 
Commissioner Marshall absent 

 
 



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2017-4874 
(Z-FY-17-43) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A REZONING FROM TWO FAMILY ZONING 
DISTRICT TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENT TEMPLE MEDICAL 
EDUCATIONAL DISTRICT T5-E, WITH A DEVELOPMENT/SITE PLAN 
FOR TWO PARKING LOTS, LOCATED ON THE NORTH 50 FEET OF LOT 
7, AND THE SOUTH 50 FEET OF LOT 8, HP ROBERTSON ADDITION, 
ADDRESSED AS 1214 AND 1218 S MAIN STREET, TEMPLE, TEXAS; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Whereas, the Old Jody’s restaurant owner, Joey Franks, is requesting a rezoning from 
the Two Family zoning district to the Planned Development-Temple Medical Educational 
District T-5E zoning district on both lots to allow new parking lots at 1214 and 1218 South 
Main Street; 

 
Whereas, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Temple, Texas, after due 

consideration of the conditions, recommends approval of the rezoning and Site Development 
Plan from Two Family zoning district to the Planned Development-Temple Medical 
Educational District T-5E zoning district for two parking lots located on the north 50 feet of Lot 
7 and the south 50 feet of Lot 8, HP Robertson Addition, addressed as 1214 and 1218 S Main 
Street, Temple, Texas; and  

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 

THAT: 
 

 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their entirety.   

 
Part 2: The City Council approves a rezoning from Two Family zoning district to the 

Planned Development-Temple Medical Educational District T-5E zoning district for two 
parking lots located on the north 50 feet of Lot 7 and the south 50 feet of Lot 8, HP Robertson 
Addition, addressed as 1214 and 1218 S Main Street, Temple, as outlined in the site plan 
attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A,’ and made a part hereof for all purposes along with the following 
conditions: 

 
1. A binding site development plan for each lot, which includes landscaping and is 

attached as Exhibit A, will govern the development; 
2. Parking lots for the adjacent business will be paved and striped per the development 

site plans; 
3. In the event of a conflict between the site development plan and the text of the 

Planned Development Ordinance, the stricter, more specific standard applies; and 
4. If the lot lying between the two lots is purchased and rezoned by the applicant to 

match T-5E for non-residential use, the site plan can be amended administratively by 
the Planning Director to reflect the buffer fence removal. 

 



2 
 

 
 
 
Part 3: The City Council approves the Site Development Plan attached hereto as Exhibit 

‘A,’ and made a part hereof for all purposes. 
 

Part 4: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary changes 
to the City Zoning Map. 

 
Part 5: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 

paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the final 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of 
the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since the 
same would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance 
of any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 6: This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 

 
Part 7: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 5th day of 

October, 2017. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 19th day of October, 2017. 

     
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
              

____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/19/17 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva, P.E., Public Works Director 
Don Bond, P.E., CFM, City Engineer  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction contract with T 
Construction, LLC, of Houston for a lump sum price of $2,891,120 to construct the Old Town 
Wastewater and Water Replacement Project. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Public Works identified water and wastewater lines requiring replacement in the 
south half of the Original Town subdivision beginning at West Avenue D and portions of other 
subdivisions extending to West Avenue N, between South 1st Street and South 11th Street.  The project 
will replace approximately 16,300 linear feet of wastewater main with new six inch to 15-inch diameter 
PVC wastewater line, and 7,800 linear feet of eight inch water line and associated appurtenances. 
 
On October 5th, 2017, seven bids were received that ranged from $2,891,120 to $3,446,148. Per the 
attached bid tabulation, T Construction, LLC, submitted the low bid in the amount of $2,891,120. The 
opinion of probable construction cost was $3,200,000. City staff and the Engineer recommend 
construction award of this project to the low bidder, T Construction, LLC. Construction time allotted for 
the project is 300 calendar days. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Funding for the construction contract with T Construction, LLC, to construct the Old 
Town Wastewater and Water Replacement Project in the amount of $2,891,120 is appropriated in 
project 101201, as follows: 

 520-5400-535-6361  561-5400-535-6964  Total 

    
Project Budget  $              2,300,000    $              1,160,000    $         3,460,000  

Encumbered/Committed to Date                              -                      (273,229)               (273,229) 
Construction Award - T Construction, LLC               (2,004,349)                    (886,771)            (2,891,120) 

Remaining Project Funds  $                 295,651    $                            -    $            295,651  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Engineer’s Letter of Recommendation 
Bid Tabulation 
Project Map 
Resolution 
  









P
:
\
T

e
m

p
l
e

\
2

0
1

6
\
2

0
1

6
-
1

1
9

 
O

l
d

 
T

o
w

n
\
C

A
D

\
W

o
r
k
i
n

g
\
2

0
1

6
-
1

1
9

 
W

o
r
k
i
n

g
.
d

w
g
 
-
 
G

-
0

4

N

O

R

T

H

0

HORIZONTAL SCALE IN FEET

150 300

CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS

OVERALL

CONSULTING ENGINEERS

TEMPLE, TEXAS 76501

KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, LP

Firm Registration No. F-510

OLD TOWN WASTEWATER REPLACEMENT

 JUNE 2017

AutoCAD SHX Text
ATCHISON TOPEKA & SANTA FE R.R.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Parking

AutoCAD SHX Text
Playground

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
Parking

AutoCAD SHX Text
4TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4TH ST. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE K

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE K

AutoCAD SHX Text
3RD ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
9TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
11TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
13TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE. N

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE. M

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE. L

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE. K

AutoCAD SHX Text
9TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
11TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
13TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE. D

AutoCAD SHX Text
2ND ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE N

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE L

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE M

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE K

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3RD ST,

AutoCAD SHX Text
1ST ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE J

AutoCAD SHX Text
5TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2ND ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1ST ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3RD ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE I

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE H

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE G

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE F

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE E

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE D

AutoCAD SHX Text
ATCHISON TOPEKA AND SANTA FE RAILROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
5TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7TH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE D

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE C

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE B

AutoCAD SHX Text
9500

AutoCAD SHX Text
9501

AutoCAD SHX Text
9502

AutoCAD SHX Text
9503

AutoCAD SHX Text
9504

AutoCAD SHX Text
9505

AutoCAD SHX Text
9506

AutoCAD SHX Text
9507

AutoCAD SHX Text
9508

AutoCAD SHX Text
9509

AutoCAD SHX Text
9510

AutoCAD SHX Text
9511

AutoCAD SHX Text
9512

AutoCAD SHX Text
9513

AutoCAD SHX Text
9514

AutoCAD SHX Text
9515

AutoCAD SHX Text
9516

AutoCAD SHX Text
9517

AutoCAD SHX Text
9518

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
9520

AutoCAD SHX Text
9521

AutoCAD SHX Text
9522

AutoCAD SHX Text
9523

AutoCAD SHX Text
9524

AutoCAD SHX Text
9525

AutoCAD SHX Text
9526

AutoCAD SHX Text
9527

AutoCAD SHX Text
9528

AutoCAD SHX Text
9529

AutoCAD SHX Text
9590

AutoCAD SHX Text
9591

AutoCAD SHX Text
9592

AutoCAD SHX Text
- MANHOLE & DESIGNATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
- REHABILITATION BY OPEN CUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
#

AutoCAD SHX Text
- EXISTING MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
- EXISTING MANHOLE TO BE REMOVED & REPLACED

AutoCAD SHX Text
- PROPOSED MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
- EXISTING MANHOLE TO BE PRESSURE WASHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
- REHABILITATION BY PIPE BURSTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
- REHABILITATION BY CURED IN PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
- EXISTING WATER LINE TO BE REPLACED

AutoCAD SHX Text
9519

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
106

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
- FLOW DIRECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
15" WWL

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" WWL

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" WWL

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" WWL

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WWL

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" WWL

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" WWL

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" WWL

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" WWL

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" WWL

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WWL

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WWL

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" WL

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" WL

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" WL

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" WL

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" WL

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" WL



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO.     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH  T. 
CONSTRUCTION, LLC OF HOUSTON, TEXAS IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$2,891,120, TO CONSTRUCT THE OLD TOWN WASTEWATER AND 
WATER REPLACEMENT PROJECT; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the Public Works Department has identified water and wastewater lines 
requiring replacement in the south half of the Original Town subdivision beginning at West 
Avenue D and portions of other subdivisions extending to West Avenue N, between South 1st 
Street and South 11th Street; 
 

Whereas, the project will replace approximately 16,300 linear feet of wastewater main 
with new 6-inch to 15-inch diameter PVC wastewater line, and approximately 7,800 linear feet 
of 8-inch water line and associated appurtenances; 
 

Whereas, on October 5, 2017, the City received seven bids for this project, with T. 
Construction, LLC submitting the low bid in the amount of $2,891,120 - Staff and the City’s 
Engineer recommend Council authorize a construction contract with T Construction, LLC of 
Houston, Texas; 
 

Whereas, funding for this construction contact is available in Account Nos. 520-5400-
535-6361 and 561-5400-535-6964, Project No. 101201; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 
 

Part 2: The City Council authorizes the Acting City Manager, or her designee, after 
approval as to form by the City Attorney, to execute a construction contract with T Construction, 
LLC of Houston, Texas in the amount of $2,891,120, to construct the Old Town Wastewater and 
Water Replacement Project. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



2 
 

 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of October, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 

       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Charla Thomas 
City Secretary      Deputy City Attorney 
 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/19/17 
Item #8 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 1  

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
Christina Demirs, Deputy City Attorney 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services agreement 
with Stateside Right of Way Services, Inc., in an amount not to exceed $280,500, for acquisition and 
relocation services for the Poison Oak Road Expansion Project from State Highway 317 to Old Waco 
Road. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The City is in the design phase for roadway improvements to Poison Oak Road from 
State Highway 317 to Old Waco Road. Improvements include expanding the current two lane pavement 
section to a new four lane roadway, extending to connect to Old Waco Road, pedestrian facilities, 
drainage conveyance, utilities, street lighting and landscaping. 
 
At this time, Staff anticipates right of way will be needed from approximately 32 tracts of land.  
Additionally, the project could involve up to 14 relocations. Staff has received a proposal for land 
acquisition and relocation services from Stateside Right of Way Services, Inc. (Stateside). 
 
Stateside will offer multiple services during the acquisition process, including, but not limited to, project 
management, title, appraisal services, and relocation services.  
 
Staff recommends Council authorize a professional services agreement with Stateside, in an amount 
not to exceed $280,500 for land acquisition and relocation services for the Poison Oak Road Expansion 
Project. The not to exceed amount does not include all condemnation services that may be required. 
Stateside will provide such services at the request of the City.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: The professional services agreement with Stateside Right of Way Services, Inc. for 
the acquisition and relocation services for the Poison Oak Road Expansion Project in the amount of 
$280,500 is being funded with the issuance of the 2017 Certificate of Obligation Bonds. Funds will be 
appropriated in account 365-3400-531-6886, project 101715.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Stateside Proposal  
Resolution  
  













1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO.     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
WITH STATESIDE RIGHT OF WAY SERVICES, INC. OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $280,500, FOR THE ACQUISITION 
AND RELOCATION SERVICES FOR THE POISON OAK ROAD 
EXPANSION PROJECT FROM STATE HIGHWAY 317 TO OLD WACO 
ROAD; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the City is in the design phase for roadway improvements to Poison Oak Road 
from State Highway 317 to Old Waco Road which include an expansion of the current two lane 
pavement section to a new four lane roadway, an extension to Old Waco Road, pedestrian 
facilities, drainage conveyance, utilities, street lighting and landscaping; 
 
 Whereas, Staff anticipates right of way will be needed from approximately 32 tracts of 
land and may involve up to 14 relocations for this project; 
 
 Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize a professional services agreement with 
Stateside, in an amount not to exceed $280,500 for land acquisition and relocation services for 
the Poison Oak Road Expansion Project - the not to exceed amount does not include all 
condemnation services that may be required and Stateside will provide such services at the 
request of the City;  
 
 Whereas, Stateside will offer multiple services during the acquisition process, including, 
but not limited to, project management, title, appraisal services, and relocation services; 
 
 Whereas, funding is available for this agreement with the issuance of the 2017 Certificate 
of Obligation Bonds and will be appropriated in Account No. 365-3400-531-6886, Project No. 
101715; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the Acting City Manager, or her designee, after 
approval as to form by the City Attorney, to execute a professional services agreement with 
Stateside Right of Way Services, Inc. of Temple, Texas, in an amount not to exceed $280,500, 
for the acquisition and relocation services for the Poison Oak Road Expansion Project from State 
Highway 317 to Old Waco Road. 



2 
 

 
 
 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of October, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Charla Thomas 
City Secretary      Deputy City Attorney 
 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/19/17 

Item #9(A) 
Regular Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: SECOND READING – PUBLIC HEARING: Consider adopting an ordinance 
designating a tract of land consisting of approximately 143.21 acres and located at 251 Berger Road, 
Temple, Texas, as City of Temple Tax Abatement Reinvestment Zone Number 35 for 
commercial/industrial tax abatement.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Conduct a public hearing and adopt ordinance as presented in item 
description on second and final reading. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The proposed ordinance designates a tract of land consisting of approximately 
143.21 acres and located at 251 Berger Road, south of Berger Road and west of Lower Troy Road, as 
Tax Abatement Reinvestment Zone Number 35 for commercial/industrial tax abatement. 
 
The designation of a tax abatement reinvestment zone lasts for five years and is a prerequisite for 
entering into a tax abatement agreement with a future economic development prospect. We anticipate 
bringing a tax abatement agreement for proposed improvements to the property for Council’s 
consideration at the October 19, 2017 meeting. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: The designation of a tax abatement reinvestment zone lasts for five years and is a 
prerequisite for entering into a tax abatement agreement with a future economic development prospect. 
We anticipate bringing a tax abatement agreement for proposed improvements to the property for 
Council’s consideration at the October 19, 2017 meeting.   
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Map 
Ordinance 
  



U n i o n  P a c i f i c  R R

U n i o n  P a c i f i c  R R

PE
GA

SU
S D

R
PE

GA
SU

S D
R

N 
IN

TE
RS

TA
TE

 35

NE H K DODGEN LOOP (LOOP 363)

NW H K DODGEN LOOP (LOOP 363)

N 
IN

TE
RS

TA
TE

 35

N
GEN E RAL BR UC ED R

N 
3R

D 
ST

GENE ST

KEVIN REILLY LN

MOORES MILL RD

N 
GE

NE
RA

L B
RU

CE
 D

R

HART RD BERGER RD

LO
W

ER
 TR

OY
 R

D

¶

DISCLAIMER:
GIS products are for informational purposes and may not

have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.  They do not represent an on-the-

ground survey and represent only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries and other features.

Tax Abatement Reinvestment Zone No 35

PropID: 94022
Acres: 17.09

PropID: 94024
Acres: 75.03

PropID: 94023
Acres: 51.09

0 1,000 2,000500 Feet



  1 

ORDINANCE NO. 2017-4872 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, DESIGNATING A TRACT OF LAND CONSISTING OF 
APPROXIMATELY 143.21 ACRES LOCATED AT 251 BERGER ROAD, 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, AS CITY OF TEMPLE TAX ABATEMENT 
REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER THIRTY-FIVE FOR 
COMMERCIAL/INDUSTRIAL TAX ABATEMENT; ESTABLISHING 
THE BOUNDARIES THEREOF AND OTHER MATTERS RELATING 
THERETO; DECLARING FINDINGS OF FACT; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

___________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Whereas, the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas (“City”), desires to promote 
the development or redevelopment of a certain geographic area within its jurisdiction by 
creation of a reinvestment zone for commercial/industrial tax abatement, as authorized by 
Chapter 312 of the Texas Tax Code;  
 

Whereas, the City held such public hearing after publishing notice of such public 
hearing, and giving written notice to all taxing units overlapping the territory inside the 
proposed reinvestment zone;  
 

Whereas, the City at such hearing invited any interested person, or his attorney, to 
appear and contend for or against the creation of the reinvestment zone, the boundaries of the 
proposed reinvestment zone, whether all or part of the territory described in the Ordinance 
calling such public hearing should be included in such proposed reinvestment zone, and the 
concept of tax abatement; and 
 

Whereas, the proponents of the reinvestment zone offered evidence, both oral and 
documentary, in favor of all of the foregoing matters relating to the creation of the 
reinvestment zone, and opponents of the reinvestment zone appeared to contest creation of 
the reinvestment zone. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS: 
 

Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their 
entirety. 
 

Part 2: The City, after conducting such hearings and having heard such evidence and 
testimony has made the following findings and determinations based on the testimony 
presented to it: 



  2 

 
A. That a public hearing on the adoption of the reinvestment zone has been properly 

called, held and conducted and that notices of such hearings have been published as required 
by law and mailed to all taxing units overlapping the territory inside the proposed 
reinvestment zone;  

 
B. That the boundaries of the reinvestment zone (hereinafter "REINVESTMENT 

ZONE NUMBER THIRTY-FIVE") should be approximately 143.21 acres located at 251 
Berger Road. Temple, Texas, Bell County, Texas, as described in the drawing attached as 
Exhibit "A."  
 

C. That creation of REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER THIRTY-FIVE will result 
in benefits to the City and to the land included in the zone after the term of any agreement 
executed hereunder, and the improvements sought are feasible and practical. 
 

D. That REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER THIRTY-FIVE meets the criteria for 
the creation of a reinvestment zone as set forth in Section 312.202 of the Code in that it is 
"reasonably likely as a result of the designation to contribute to the retention or expansion of 
primary employment or to attract major investment in the zone that would be a benefit to the 
property and that would contribute to the economic development of the City."  
 

E. That REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER THIRTY-FIVE meets the criteria for 
the creation of a reinvestment zone as set forth in the City of Temple Guidelines and Criteria 
for granting tax abatement in reinvestment zones. 
 

Part 3: Pursuant to Section 312.201 of the Code, the City hereby creates a 
reinvestment zone for commercial/industrial tax abatement encompassing approximately 
143.21 acres located at 251 Berger Road. Temple, Texas, Bell County, Texas, described by 
the drawing in Exhibit "A," attached hereto and such REINVESTMENT ZONE is hereby 
designated and shall hereafter be officially designated as TAX ABATEMENT 
REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER THIRTY-FIVE, City of Temple, Texas. 
 

Part 4: The REINVESTMENT ZONE shall take effect on October 19, 2017. 
 

Part 5: To be considered for execution of an agreement for tax abatement the 
commercial/industrial project shall: 
 

A. Be located wholly within the Zone as established herein; 
 

B. Not include property that is owned or leased by a member of the City Council of 
the City of Temple, Texas, or by a member of the Planning and Zoning Commission; 
 

C. Conform to the requirements of the City's Zoning Ordinance, the CRITERIA 
governing tax abatement previously adopted by the City, and all other applicable laws and 
regulations; and 
 

D. Have and maintain all land located within the designated zone, appraised at market 
value for tax purposes. 
 



  3 

Part 6: Written agreements with property owners located within the zone shall 
provide identical terms regarding duration of exemption and share of taxable real property 
value exempted from taxation. 
 

Part 7: Written agreements for tax abatement as provided for by Section 312.205 of 
the Code shall include provisions for: 
 

A. Listing the kind, number and location of all proposed improvements of the 
property; 
 

B. Access to and inspection of property by municipal employees to ensure that the 
improvements or repairs are made according to the specification and conditions of the 
agreements; 
 

C. Limiting the use of the property consistent with the general purpose of 
encouraging development or redevelopment of the zone during the period that property tax 
exemptions are in effect; and 
 

D. Recapturing property tax revenue lost as a result of the agreement if the owner of 
the property fails to make the improvements as provided by the agreement. 
 

Part 8: Severance clause. If any provision of this Ordinance or the application of any 
provision to any person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other 
provisions or applications of the Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid 
provision or application, and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be 
severable. 
 

Part 9: Effective date. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after 
its passage in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, 
and it is accordingly so ordained. 
 

Part 10: Sunset provision. The designation of TAX ABATEMENT 
REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER THIRTY-FIVE shall expire five years from the 
effective date of this Ordinance. The designation of a tax abatement reinvestment zone may 
be renewed for periods not exceeding five years. The expiration of a reinvestment zone 
designation does not affect an existing tax abatement agreement authorized by the City 
Council. 
 

Part 11: Open Meeting Act. It is hereby officially found and determined that the 
meeting at which this Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that 
public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the 
Open Meeting Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading on the 5th day of October, 2017. 



  4 

 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second and Final Reading and Public Hearing on the 
19th day of October, 2017. 
 

 THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
 ____________________________________ 
 DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:           APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________    ____________________________________ 
Lacy Borgeson         Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary          City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/19/17 

Item #9(B) 
Regular Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Brynn Myers, Interim City Manager 
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an Economic Development 
Agreement with Cargill, Inc., to contribute $500,000 towards the construction of public improvements 
to Berger Road. 
 
Executive Session: Pursuant to Section 551.087 of the Government Code, the City Council may meet 
in executive session to discuss either commercial or financial information that the City has received 
from a business prospect that the City wishes to locate, stay or expand within the City limits and with 
which the City is conducting economic development negotiations, or to deliberate the offer of a financial 
or other incentive to a business prospect the public discussion of which would adversely affect ongoing 
economic development negotiations. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
BACKGROUND: Cargill currently operates a facility in Temple that manufactures and sells turkey feed 
in bulk loads. The company is in the planning stages of an expansion project to produce various 
additional types of animal feed in both bulk and packaged form. This would involve an upgrade of the 
existing mill with additional equipment and bulk loading capabilities. A new 82,000 sq. ft. warehouse 
for packaged finished goods with new packaging lines and a 5,000 sq. ft. extension of the existing 
packaged raw materials warehouse are planned. There are currently approximately 30 trucks per day 
passing through the plant with a five year projection to increase to 100 trucks per day and a 10-year 
projection to increase to 180 trucks per day. The expansion would result in an employee increase from 
10 to 33, with average annual wages at $40,455. The estimated capital expenditure for the project is 
$33,500,000.   
 
Cargill has asked for assistance in constructing improvements to Berger Road to accommodate the 
planned expansion.  
 
Staff has negotiated a proposed agreement with Cargill for the Berger Road improvements which would 
include the City covering $500,000 of the cost. The City will reimburse Cargill upon final acceptance of 
construction. 
 
Cargill would also agree to convey additional right-of-way to the City for the planned future expansion 
of Berger Road from I-35 to Lower Troy Road.  



10/19/17 
Item #9(B) 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funding is available in the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Financing and Project Plans, 
FY 2018, line 321, account 795-9600-531-6890, project 101796, East Outer Loop to fund the 
agreement in the amount of $500,000. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Resolution 
  



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO.     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING AN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
WITH CARGILL, INC. TO CONTRIBUTE $500,000 TOWARDS THE 
CONSTRUCTION OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS TO BERGER ROAD; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Whereas, Cargill, Inc. currently operates a facility in Temple that manufactures and sells 
turkey feed in bulk loads - the company is in the planning stages of an expansion project to 
produce various additional types of animal feed in both bulk and packaged form; 

 
Whereas, this expansion will involve an upgrade of the existing mill with additional 

equipment and bulk loading capabilities, a new 82,000 square foot warehouse for packaged 
finished goods with new packaging lines, and a 5,000 square foot extension of the existing 
packaged raw materials warehouse; 

 
Whereas, currently, there are approximately 30 trucks per day passing through the plant 

with a 5-year projection to increase to 100 trucks per day and a 10-year projection to increase to 
180 trucks per day; 

 
Whereas, the proposed expansion would result in an employee increase from 10 to 33 

employees with average annual wages of $40,455 - the estimated capital expenditure for the 
project is $33,500,000;   
 

Whereas, Cargill has asked for assistance in constructing improvements to Berger Road 
to accommodate the planned expansion and Staff has negotiated a proposed agreement which 
would include the City covering $500,000 of the improvement costs; 

 
Whereas, the City will reimburse Cargill upon final acceptance of construction and 

Cargill will convey additional right-of-way to the City for the planned future expansion of 
Berger Road from I-35 to Lower Troy Road; 

 
Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize an Economic Development Agreement 

between the City of Temple and Cargill, Inc. to contribute $500,000 towards the construction of 
public improvements to Berger Road; 

 
Whereas, funding is available for this agreement in the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 

Financing and Project Plans, Line 321, Account No. 795-9600-531-6890, Project No. 101796; 
and 

 
Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest 

to authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 



2 
 

 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.
  

Part 2: The City Council authorizes the Acting City Manager, or her designee, after 
approval as to form by the City Attorney, to execute an Economic Development Agreement 
with Cargill, Inc. to contribute $500,000 towards the construction of public improvements to 
Berger Road. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of October, 2017. 

 
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 

       _______________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________   _______________________________ 
Lacy Borgeson     Charla Thomas 
City Secretary      Deputy City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/19/17 

Item #9(C) 
Regular Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney  

ITEM DESCRIPTION:   Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a Tax Abatement Agreement with 
Cargill, Inc. which will cover increases in the taxable value of real property for a 143.21 acre tract of 
land located in Tax Abatement Reinvestment Zone Number 35. 
 
Executive Session: Pursuant to Section 551.087 of the Government Code, the City Council may meet 
in executive session to discuss either commercial or financial information that the City has received 
from a business prospect that the City wishes to locate, stay or expand within the City limits and with 
which the City is conducting economic development negotiations, or to deliberate the offer of a financial 
or other incentive to a business prospect the public discussion of which would adversely affect ongoing 
economic development negotiations. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
BACKGROUND: The proposed resolution authorizes an agreement with Cargill, Inc. (“Cargill”) which 
if approved, gives the company ten years of tax abatement on the increased taxable value of real 
property improvements on land consisting of approximately 143.21 acres and located at 251 Berger 
Road, Temple. 
 
The proposed agreement covers approximately 143.21 acres of land that has been designated as City 
of Temple Tax Abatement Reinvestment Zone Number 35. Cargill has an existing turkey feed 
manufacturing facility on the property, but is in the planning stages of a major expansion. The tax 
abatement applies only to new real property improvements. The agreement provides that the tax 
abatement period commences in the first full calendar year after the required improvements are 
completed. Cargill would receive 100% tax abatement in years 1-5 and 50% tax abatement in years 6-
10.  
 
Cargill timely filed an application to receive tax abatement on improvements to real property proposed 
for the site. On October 19, 2017, the City Council will consider, on second reading, an ordinance 
designating the property on which the improvements will be located as a tax abatement reinvestment 
zone. Cargill estimates that its investment will be in the neighborhood of $14,500,000 in real property 
(building and land) improvements. The actual value of the improvements, and the value of the City’s 
tax abatement, is dependent on appraisal by the Bell County Appraisal District. The new, expanded 
facility will house approximately 33 employees. 



10/19/17 
Item #9(C) 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
The City’s Economic Development Policy sets out the criteria and guidelines for granting tax abatement. 
The improvements proposed meet the minimum criteria established for tax abatement consideration 
and meet the requirements for 100% and 50% tax abatement. The proposed improvements fall within 
the definition of “eligible facilities” in the criteria.  
 
Staff has provided the other taxing entities involved with notice and a copy of the proposed agreement. 
Additionally, the agreement has all of the other terms required by Chapter 312 of the Texas Tax Code 
for tax abatement agreements, including provisions: (1) listing the kind and number of improvements; 
(2) providing for inspections of the facility by the taxing entities; (3) requiring compliance with State and 
local laws; (4) recapturing abated taxes in the event of a default under the agreement; and (5) requiring 
Cargill to annually certify to all the taxing entities that it is in compliance with all of the terms and 
conditions of the agreement. 
 
Cargill’s application meets the standards for granting tax abatement on the increase in real property 
improvements established by the City’s Criteria and Guidelines for tax abatement. The City Council has 
discretion whether to approve an application for tax abatement and to increase the percentage of tax 
abatement over the recommended percentage specified in the matrix in the City’s Criteria and 
Guidelines for tax abatement. The agreement should add to the continued development of the City’s 
commercial growth, which would not have occurred in the absence of tax abatement. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The Tax Abatement Agreement with Cargill, Inc. will have the potential of abating 
approximately $330,135 in property taxes over the life of the agreement using the City’s current tax rate 
of $0.6772 per $100 value. This amount is based on an estimated increase in the appraised value of 
real property improvements of $6,500,000. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Resolution 
  



 
 1 

RESOLUTION NO.    
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A TAX ABATEMENT 
AGREEMENT WITH CARGILL, INC. COVERING INCREASES IN THE 
TAXABLE VALUE OF REAL PROPERTY ON AN APPROXIMATELY 
143.21 ACRE TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN TAX ABATEMENT 
REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER THIRTY-FIVE; AND PROVIDING AN 
OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 

Whereas, the City adopted a Resolution dated June 15, 1989, stating that it elects to be 
eligible to participate in tax abatement; 
  

Whereas, on July 7, 2016, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 2016-4783, 
establishing a comprehensive economic development policy for the City of Temple, which policy 
includes criteria and guidelines for granting tax abatement within the City of Temple in 
accordance with Chapter 312 of the Tax Code; 
 

Whereas, Cargill, Inc. timely filed an application to receive tax abatement on 
improvements to real property currently used as an existing turkey feed manufacturing facility on 
an approximately 143.21 acre tract of land located in Tax Abatement Reinvestment Zone 
Number Thirty-Five; 

 
Whereas, the tax abatement applies only to new real property improvements and the 

agreement provides that the tax abatement period will commence in the first full calendar year 
after the required improvements are completed – at that time, Cargill will receive 100% tax 
abatement in years 1-5 and 50% tax abatement in years 6-10; 
 

Whereas, Cargill estimates that its investment will be in the neighborhood of 
$14,500,000 in real property improvements and will house approximately 33 employees - the 
actual value of the improvements, and the value of the City’s tax abatement, is dependent on the 
appraisal by the Bell County Appraisal District; 
 

Whereas, as required by law, the City will notify all taxing entities of its intent to enter 
into the agreement;  
 

Whereas, the City’s Economic Development Policy sets out the criteria and guidelines 
for granting tax abatement and the proposed improvements meet the minimum criteria 
established for tax abatement consideration; 
 

Whereas, the proposed agreement has all of the terms required by Chapter 312 of the 
Texas Tax Code for tax abatement agreements; and  

 
Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and finds that the proposed tax 

abatement with Cargill, Inc. is in compliance with State law and the City’s Guidelines and 
Criteria governing tax abatement, and that the proposed improvements by said company are 
feasible and likely to attract major investment and expand employment within the City. 

 



 
 2 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 

TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 

legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 

 
Part 2: The Mayor is authorized to execute a tax abatement agreement, after approval as 

to form by the City Attorney, with Cargill, Inc. granting the company 10 years of tax abatement 
(100% in years 1-5 and 50% in years 6-10) on the taxable value of real property improvements 
on approximately 143.21 acres of land located in Tax Abatement Reinvestment Zone Number 
Thirty-Five. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of October, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 

      
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
             
Lacy Borgeson     Charla Thomas 
City Secretary      Deputy City Attorney 
 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/19/17 
Item #10 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
 
Sandra Esqueda, Director of Human Resources 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING: Consider adopting an ordinance to 
include a language certification pay for qualified officers in the Police Department. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Conduct a public hearing and adopt ordinance as presented in item 
description on first reading, and schedule a second reading and final adoption for November 2, 2017. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Chapter 143.44(b) of the Local Government Code requires Council to establish 
certification pay by ordinance. On September 13, 2017, the Rules and Regulations of the Temple 
Fire Fighters’ and Police Officers’ Civil Service Commission were amended to include Section 44 
“Certification and Education Incentive Pay”, providing for certification pay to qualified officers upon 
completion of their probationary period. Pursuant to the FY 18 Meet and Confer Agreement, staff 
recommends including a language certification pay of $720 per year for qualified police officers.   
 
Currently, the City does not provide language certification pay.  

 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funding in the amount of $8,640 has been appropriated in the FY 2018 Operating 
Budget to fund language certification pay for officers in the Police Department. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Ordinance 
 
  



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO.     
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, ESTABLISHING CERTIFICATION PAY FOR OFFICERS IN THE 
POLICE DEPARTMENT; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Whereas, Chapter 143.044(b) of the Local Government Code requires that City Council 
establish educational pay by Ordinance; 

 
Whereas, as part of the 2018 Meet and Confer Agreement, certification pay of $720 per 

year was negotiated and Staff recommends Council authorize this certification pay for officers 
in the Police Department; 

 
Whereas, funding for this certification pay has been appropriated in the fiscal year 2018 

adopted budget; and  
 
Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 

authorize this action. 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their entirety.   

 
 Part 2: The City Council establishes certification pay in the amount of $720 per year for 
officers in the Police Department effective November 2, 2017. 
 

Part 3: All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 
Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 

 
Part 4: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 

paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance should be declared invalid by the final 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of 
the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this Ordinance, since the 
same would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this Ordinance of 
any such invalid phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 
 Part 5: This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is accordingly so 
ordained. 
 

Part 6: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
 



2 
 

 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 19th day of 
October, 2017. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 2nd day of November, 2017.   

 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
              

____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Charla Thomas 
City Secretary      Deputy City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/19/17 
Item #11 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

 
DEPT. /DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:   
Brian Chandler, Planning Director 
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-17-39: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing amendments to Article 3, Unified Development Code, to remove the requirement 
to include construction plans in final plat applications for single family subdivisions; to extend the time 
limit for recordation of plats from 120 days to 12 months; and to modify media used for filing of 
subdivision construction plans (eliminating Mylars). 
 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: At their September 18, 2017 
meeting, P&Z recommended approval as presented by staff. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval of the proposed amendments. 
 
BACKGROUND: City staff, including representatives from Legal, Engineering and Planning, met with 
Jim Howe on behalf of TABA (Temple Area Builders Association) to discuss UDC code amendments 
related to: 

1. The timing and media related to the submittal of construction plans; and 
2. Extending the expiration period related to final plats 

Staff and TABA agreed on language to address both items, which includes the following: 
3. The timing and media related to the submittal of construction plans 

a. Construction plans for public improvements related to single-family subdivisions no longer 
are required to be submitted at the platting stage 

i. The City Engineer must approve before construction can begin and before the 
Chief Building Official approves building permits 

b. Paper, rather than Mylar construction plans, is acceptable 
4. Extending the expiration period related to final plats 

a. Rather than requiring plat recordation within 120 days, the period would be extended to 
1 year 

b. Provides flexibility for developers to obtain private easements from utility companies, etc. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: The newspaper printed notice of the Planning and Zoning Commission public 
hearing on September 7, 2017, in accordance with state law and local ordinance.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: N/A 
 



10/19/17 
Item #11 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
UDC Draft Code Amendments  
Ordinance 
 

  



 DRAFT 
 

1 
 

Construction Plans and Extension of Time to Record Plat 
 
 

Sec. 3.6.   Subdivision Plat Review 
*  *  * 

3.6.3 Application Process 
 

A subdivision of land must generally proceed in accordance with the following steps: 
  
 A. Pre-Application Conference; 
 B. Preliminary Plat (where applicable per 3.6.5); 
 C. Final Plat and Construction Plans; 
 D. Construction Plans; 
 E. Construction Permit; 
 DF. Acceptance of subdivision as completeRecordation; and 
 EG. Acceptance of public improvements for ownership and maintenance. 

* * * 
3.6.3 Final Plat 

* * * 
 C. Construction Plans 
 

A Final Plat application for a subdivision that is not zoned or restricted for single -family dwellings 
may be submitted and approved without construction plans. The Final Plat application for a 
single-family subdivision must include the construction plans. The City Engineer must approve 
cConstruction plans, regardless of when filed, for public improvements must be approved or 
conditionally approved by the City Engineer before construction of the subdivision may begin 
and before the Chief Building Official approves Building Permits. 

  
 D. Expiration 
 

An approved Final Plat must be recorded within 120 daysmonths after final approval. All 
approved Final Plats must be recorded in the deed records of Bell County before the City 
accepts the completed public improvements for the subdivision or issues Building Permits for 
construction of homes, unless the following conditions are satisfied: . . .  

 * * * 
3.6.9 Procedures Following Final Plat Approval 

* * * 
 D. Acceptance of Improvements 
 

Before the City accepts the subdivision improvements the applicant must submit the following: 
 
1. One Mylar reproducible printpaper copy of the subdivision construction plans, marked 

“drawings of work as built,” and one copy of the as-built drawings in the same digital 
format required in subsection C above for the approved Final Plat”As-Built Drawings” or 
“Record Drawings.” 

2. One copy of the as-built drawings in pdf format. 
3. One copy of the base CAD file.  



 DRAFT 
 

2 
 

 
Sec. 3.7.   Replat Without Plat Vacation 

 * * * 
3.7.5. Expiration 
 

An approved Replat Without Plat Vacation must be recorded within 120 daysmonths after final 
approval. All approved Replats Without Vacation must be recorded in the deed records of Bell 
County before the City accepts the completed public improvements for the subdivision or issues 
Building Permits for construction of homes, unless the following conditions are satisfied: . . .  
 

Sec. 3.8.   Minor or Amending Plat 
 * * * 

An approved Minor or Amending Plat must be recorded within 120 days months after final 
approval. All approved Minor or Amending Plats must be recorded in the deed records of Bell 
County before the City accepts the completed public improvements for the subdivision or issues 
Building Permits. 

* * * 
Sec. 3.13.   Building Permit 
 
3.13.1 Applicability 
 

A Building Permit may not be issued for any property until one of the following events has 
occurred. 

 
 A. Approved Plat 
 
  The lot appears on an approved plat of record filed in the plat records of Bell County.  
 

* * * 
3.13.15   Construction Plans 
 

The City Engineer must approve or conditionally approve cConstruction plans for a subdivision, 
regardless of when filed, public improvements must be approved or conditionally approved by 
the City Engineer before construction of the subdivision may begin or before the Chief Building 
Official may approve a Building Permit. 
 



  1 

ORDINANCE NO.    
 

(PLANNING NO. Z-FY-17-39) 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AMENDING TEMPLE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE 
ARTICLE 3, TO REMOVE THE REQUIREMENT TO INCLUDE 
CONSTRUCTION PLANS IN FINAL PLAT APPLICATIONS FOR 
SINGLE FAMILY SUBDIVISIONS; TO EXTEND THE TIME LIMIT FOR 
RECORDATION OF PLATS; TO MODIFY MEDIA USAGE FOR FILING 
OF SUBDIVISION CONSTRUCTION PLANS; PROVIDING A 
REPEALER; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 

Whereas, Staff, along with representatives from the Legal, Engineering and Planning 
Departments, met with Jim Howe on behalf of the Temple Area Builders Association 
(TABA) to discuss amendments to the Unified Development Code related to the following: 

 
1. The timing and media related to the submittal of construction plans;  
2. Extending the expiration period related to final plats; 

 
Whereas, Staff and TABA agreed on language to address both items, which includes 

the following: 
1. The timing and media related to the submittal of construction plans: 

a. Construction plans for public improvements related to single-family 
subdivisions no longer are required to be submitted at the platting stage. 

i. The City Engineer must approve before construction can begin and 
before the Chief Building Official approves building permits. 

b. Paper, rather than Mylar construction plans, are acceptable. 
2. Extending the expiration period related to final plats: 

a. Rather than requiring plat recordation within 120 days, the period would be 
extended to 1 year. 

b. Provides flexibility for developers to obtain private easements from utility 
companies, etc.; and 

 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to approve this action. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their 
entirety. 



  2 

 
   

 Part 2: The City Council amends Article 3, Unified Development Code, to remove 
the requirement to include construction plans in final plat applications for single family 
subdivisions; to extend the time limit for recordation of plats from 120 days to 12 months; 
and to modify media used for filing of subdivision construction plans (eliminating Mylars), 
as set forth more fully in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes. 

 
Part 3: All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 

Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 
 

Part 4: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance should be declared invalid by the 
final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not 
affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this 
Ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council without the 
incorporation in this Ordinance of any such invalid phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or 
section. 
 

Part 5: This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 
 

Part 6: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 19th day of 
October, 2017. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 2nd day of November, 2017. 

 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
 

              
       DANIEL A. DUNN, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
 

              
Lacy Borgeson     Charla Thomas 
City Secretary      Deputy City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/19/17 
Item #12 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 5 

 
DEPT.: / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:   
 
Mark Baker, Senior Planner 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: FIRST READING - PUBLIC HEARING – Z-FY-17-46: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing rezoning of five tracts of land totaling approximately 168 + acres: 
 

(A) 114.5 ± acres located at the southwest corner of NE H.K. Dodgen Loop and MKT railroad—from 
PD-C, C, MF-2, and 2F zoning districts to LI zoning district; 

(B) The following properties within the Industrial sub-district of the I-35 Corridor Overlay: 
1. 7.9 ± acres located west of I-35, east of Pegasus Drive, and north of Industrial 

Boulevard—from 2F and GR zoning districts to LI zoning district; 
2. 7 ± acres located west of I-35, east of Pegasus Drive, and north of Industrial Boulevard—

from 2F and GR zoning districts to LI zoning district; 
3. 1 ± acre tract abutting the southeast corner of the 29.6 + acre tract owned by Buc-ee’s—

from PD-C zoning district to LI zoning district;  
(C) The following properties within the Gateway sub-district of the I-35 Corridor Overlay: 

a. 11.3 ± acres located at the northeast corner of NE H.K. Dodgen Loop and North General 
Bruce Drive—from AG zoning district to C zoning district; and 

b. 27.1 ± acres located at the northwest corner of NE H.K. Dodgen Loop and MKT railroad—
from AG zoning district to LI zoning district. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the following: 

• Commercial (C) for 53.5 + acres as described by #2 & #3 in the Item Description; and 
• Planned Development-Commercial (PD-C) on 114. 537 + acres to allow a distribution center 

with the condition that a binding site plan would require future Planning & Zoning Commission & 
City Council approval for that use only.    

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: At their October 2, 2017 meeting, the 
Planning & Zoning Commission voted nine to zero to recommend approval of the proposed rezoning 
for Light Industrial (LI) zoning on the 114.537 + acres as requested by the applicant and as depicted 
by Exhibit A with the remaining 53.5 + acres to Commercial (C) zoning district. 
 
 
 

 
 



10/19/17 
Item #12 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 5 

 
During the Planning & Zoning Commission meeting, the following was discussed:  

• Applicant’s desire to clean-up and simplify existing zoning for future marketability; 
• Land use differences between the Commercial & Industrial zoning districts; 
• Future marketability for retail/ service & industrial uses, including accommodations for a 

distribution center on the 114.537 + acre tract; 
• Consideration for Planned Development-Commercial allowing a distribution center 

     
ITEM SUMMARY: Aldrich-Thomas Group, on behalf of the property owner, Frank Mayborn Enterprises, 
is requesting rezoning of 168.041 + acres, comprised of five separately zoned tracts per the above Item 
Description. Initially requested for 229.056 + acres, which included a 61.015 + acre portion proposed 
for Single Family Three (SF-3) zoning. The SF-3 portion was withdrawn by the applicant (email 
attached), prior to consideration by the Planning & Zoning Commission. While the 61.015 + acres was 
no longer part of the request, residents of the Bellaire North subdivision attended and spoke at the 
Planning & Zoning Commission meeting with concerns about why the 61 acres was withdrawn from 
consideration. 
 
Moving forward, this requested rezoning is partially within Industrial and Gateway sub-districts of the I-
35 Corridor Overlay. Per UDC Section 4.3.28, the purpose of the I-35 Corridor Overlay zoning district 
is to exercise greater control over the aesthetic, functional and safety characteristics of development 
and redevelopment along Interstate 35 with the City where higher development standards can 
effectively enhance the City’s image as a desirable place to live, work and shop. This overlay zoning 
district is limited to specified areas encompassing land that has already been assigned conventional 
base zoning district classifications. It supplements the standards of the base zoning districts with new 
or different standards that are more restrictive. 
 
114.537 + ACRE TRACT:  Opportunities for additional commercial and retail development along the 
Loop 363 frontage, next to Buc-ee’s could benefit the existing and any future single family uses to the 
south of the 114.537 + acre tract, which Light Industrial (LI) zoning would preclude. Noteworthy with 
similar circumstances is the area surrounding the Buc-ee’s in New Braunfels, Texas, see attachment 
for aerial of the area. However, C would also allow office warehouse at this location, among other 
similar uses, as well as single family and two family uses for the interior of that tract, which LI would 
otherwise prohibit. 
 
Since a distribution center is considered within the 114.537 + acres that is not permitted in the C district, 
the Planned Development concept may be used to allow the distribution center without rezoning the 
entire tract to LI.  
 
I-35 CORRIDOR OVERLAY: Approximately 54.584 + acres of the total 168.041 + acres of the 
requested rezoning within the I-35 Corridor Overlay. Additional acreage from that within the Overlay 
may be included but is dependent upon how it is used and managed. (If developed, used, managed or 
marketed with the 11.3  + acre tract referenced in Item 3.a.). A generalized acreage breakdown by sub-
district with the current and proposed zoning is as follows: 
 
 
 
 



10/19/17 
Item #12 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 5 

 
Gateway Sub-District 

• 11.332 + Acres from Agricultural (AG) to Commercial (C)  
• 27.158 + Acres from AG to Light Industrial (LI) (If developed, used, managed or marketed 

with the 11.3 + acre tract listed above). 
 
Industrial Sub-District 

• 7.035 + Acres from Two Family (2F) & General Retail (GR) to LI 
• 7.979 + Acres from 2F & GR to LI 
• 1.080 + Acres from C to LI (out of the 114.537 + acres) 

Both the Industrial and Gateway sub-district, UDC Sections 6.7.10 7 6.7.12 respectively, place 
additional restrictions on land use as well as enhanced site design, building and architectural standards 
that apply to new and existing development within the corridor.  
 
It should be noted that the Industrial sub-district of the I-35 Corridor Overlay either prohibits industrial 
uses or requires a conditional use permit for industrial uses.  These conditional uses are more closely 
commercial in nature than industrial. At this time, the Industrial sub-district lends itself better to a sub-
district that allows retail and service as well as commercial uses. Due to stakeholder concerns about 
allowing more intense uses within the corridor, the land use discussion was deferred to a future phase 
of the I-35 Corridor Overlay code amendments.  
 
Expansion of the Northwest Industrial Park: Proposed for rezoning of approximately 15.014 + acres, 
on two separate tracts, west of I-35 along Pegasus Drive, expands the current boundaries of the 
Northwest Industrial Park. Currently, both LI and C zoning have been established east of Pegasus 
Drive. Per UDC Section 8.2.3D, Pegasus Drive, a collector street, is recognized as the eastern 
boundary of the Northwest Industrial Park. Industrial zoning, as proposed, would effectively result in 
expansion of the park boundaries to abut I-35. A suitable alternative for LI is C zoning, which provides 
opportunity for many of the same uses, particularly since all Industrial uses are either prohibited or 
require the review of the conditional use permit. 
 
The Temple Economic Development Corporation (TEDC) confirmed in an email that that approximately 
670 acres of the park is either owned by TEDC or available for economic development projects 
partnered with City of Temple ownership. This does not take into account private ownership within the 
park that is still available for industrial development. There is still significant opportunity for future 
development within the industrial park. 
 
SUBDIVISION PLAT:  Subdivision platting would be required, which would address lot layout, 
circulation, parkland, needed ROW as well as other subdivision-related infrastructure requirements. 
The Development Review Committee (DRC) would be responsible for review of the future plat(s) and 
will be forwarded to the Planning & Zoning Commission or City Council for final approval as needed.  
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN (CP) COMPLIANCE: Compliance to goals, objectives or maps of the 
Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan are summarized by the attached Comprehensive 
Plan Compliance table but further described below: 
 
 
 



10/19/17 
Item #12 

Regular Agenda 
Page 4 of 5 

 
Future Land Use Map (CP Map 3.1) 
The subject property, as a whole, is within the Suburban Commercial Future Land Use Map (FLUM) 
designation. The Suburban Commercial designation is appropriate for office, retail and service uses 
adjacent to and abutting residential neighborhoods and in other areas there the community’s  image 
and aesthetic value are to be promoted, such as in ‘gateways” and high-profile corridor locations. The 
Suburban Commercial designation is generally supported by office (O-1 & O-2) and Neighborhood 
Service (NS) zoning, while General Retail (GR) and Commercial (C) would be considered on a case by 
case basis. LI zoning is not supported by the FLUM. Therefore, the request to industrial is not 
consistent with the Future Land Use Map. 
 
Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) 
Access for the two tracts comprised of approximately 15.014 + acre of land, proposed for industrial 
zoning, front along Pegasus Drive, a collector and N. General Bruce Drive. On the other hand, access 
to the remainder of the subject property is from Loop 363, an Expressway and the 114.537 + acre-
portion may be from both Loop 363 and/or Lower Troy Road, a minor arterial.  Any connection to Lower 
Troy Road would require crossing the existing railroad lines. 
 
Internal circulation and any needed right-of-way overall would be addressed with the anticipated 
subdivision plat. Impacts to TxDOT interests are on-going but will be addressed during the subdivision 
plat review.  
 
Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
Sewer is available through an eight inch sewer line in Pegasus Drive, a 12-inch sewer line that crosses 
NE H.K. Dodgen Loop and a six inch available in Burns Ave within the existing Bellaire North 
subdivision. Water is available through a 14-inch waterline in Pegasus Drive, a 12-inch waterline in NE 
H.K. Dodgen Loop and a six inch waterline in Burns Ave. Any needed utility line extensions will be 
addressed during the review of the future subdivision plat. It should be noted that existing sewer is 
comprised of clay pipe and likely need upgrading.  This will be addressed at the time the property is 
developed. 
 
Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance 
No trails have been identified within the subject property. No sidewalks are required along expressways 
or within the industrial parks. Any other sidewalk requirements would be addressed during the review 
of the subdivision plat.  
 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: The attached tables provide, the proposed development standards 
as provided for in UDC Sections 4.2, 4.5 and 4.5.1 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Eighty notices to property owners within 200-feet of the subject property were sent 
notice of  the public hearing as required by State law and City Ordinance.  As of Tuesday October 10, 
2017 at 9:00 AM, 22 notices in disagreement, one notice in agreement and one notice with no response, 
representing 10 properties, owned by Mayborn Enterprises, have been received. It should be noted 
that notices received were distributed based on the original boundaries of the request. Since the 61.015 
+ acre-portion for SF-3 zoning has been withdrawn, all of the ownership in opposition are outside of the 
revised 200-foot notification boundary by a distance of approximately 1,114 feet.  
 
 



10/19/17 
Item #12 

Regular Agenda 
Page 5 of 5 

 
The newspaper printed notice of the public hearing on September 21, 2017, in accordance with state 
law and local ordinance. 
 
SCHOOL DISTRICT: Temple Independent School District (TISD) 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Applicant Email to withdraw SF-3-portion from consideration (Sept 28, 2017) 
Boundary Map (Exhibit A) 
Photos 
Tables 
Maps 
Buc-ee’s & Vicinity Aerial Map (New Braunfels, Texas)  
Returned Property Notices 
Draft P&Z Excerpts (Oct 2, 2017) 
Ordinance  
  



From: A. Lloyd Thomas
To: Brian Chandler
Cc: Mark Baker
Subject: Re: Mayborn Rezoning
Date: Friday, September 29, 2017 2:02:57 PM

Please pull it from the request.

Lloyd Thomas, ALC, SIOR, CCIM, CRE
18 North 3rd Street
Temple, TX 76501

From: Brian Chandler <bchandler@templetx.gov>
Sent: Friday, September 29, 2017 1:52:02 PM
To: A. Lloyd Thomas
Cc: Mark Baker
Subject: RE: Mayborn Rezoning
 
Hi Lloyd,
I wanted to follow up with you about this request and see how Ms. Mayborn would like to
proceed.  Keep in mind that a request to withdraw that portion of the rezoning request would
still need to be heard by P&Z since the notice was posted and sent to neighbors with that
information.  With that in mind, we do continue to receive neighbor opposition responses and
I would expect based on what Mark has heard that many of those folks are likely to attend the
Monday meeting, regardless of whether you request withdrawal of the SF-3 part of the
request. 
 
Please let us know at your earliest opportunity how you want to proceed.  Thanks.
 
Brian
 

From: Brian Chandler 
Sent: Thursday, September 28, 2017 10:14 AM
To: 'A. Lloyd Thomas' <althomas@aldrich-thomas.com>; Mark Baker <mbaker@templetx.gov>
Subject: RE: Mayborn Rezoning
 
Lloyd,
I just left a message with Courtney at your office.  I would like to discuss this aspect of the case
with you.  Thanks.
 
Brian
 

From: A. Lloyd Thomas [mailto:althomas@aldrich-thomas.com] 
Sent: Thursday, September 28, 2017 10:08 AM
To: Mark Baker <mbaker@templetx.gov>

mailto:althomas@aldrich-thomas.com
mailto:bchandler@templetx.gov
mailto:mbaker@templetx.gov
mailto:althomas@aldrich-thomas.com
mailto:mbaker@templetx.gov
mbaker
Typewritten Text
Request to Withdraw SF-3 Portion



Cc: Brian Chandler <bchandler@templetx.gov>
Subject: RE: Mayborn Rezoning
 
That is correct.  We were willing to restrict the 61.015 acres to SF-3 or higher.  But, there is no
point in doing so, if the neighborhood cannot understand the intent.  Besides, the 2F zoning
allows a residential developer to provide wide range of housing product, including SF-3.
 
A. Lloyd Thomas, ALC, SIOR, CCIM, CRE
althomas@aldrich-thomas.com
 
NAI Aldrich Thomas Group
Office +1 254 773 4901
 
 

From: Mark Baker [mailto:mbaker@templetx.gov] 
Sent: Thursday, September 28, 2017 9:44 AM
To: A. Lloyd Thomas <althomas@aldrich-thomas.com>
Cc: Brian Chandler <bchandler@templetx.gov>
Subject: RE: Mayborn Rezoning
 
Lloyd:
 
Thank you for your email response.  Just so I am clear and can proceed accordingly with our analysis
and response to the neighbors, the entire 61.015 +/- acres  being considered for the SF-3 zoning
would be taken off the table and the request would proceed with the remaining 168.041 +/- acres.
 
Please confirm.
 
Thanks again,
Mark
 

From: A. Lloyd Thomas [mailto:althomas@aldrich-thomas.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, September 27, 2017 3:04 PM
To: Mark Baker <mbaker@templetx.gov>
Cc: Brian Chandler <bchandler@templetx.gov>
Subject: Re: Mayborn Rezoning
 
The tract having identified as Property ID 25187 is the property which will be removed from the re-
zoning application.
 
A. Lloyd Thomas, ALC, SIOR, CCIM, CRE
Aldrich-Thomas Group, Realtors®
18 North 3rd Street
Temple, TX 76501
254-773-4901

mailto:bchandler@templetx.gov
mailto:althomas@aldrich-thomas.com
mailto:mbaker@templetx.gov
mailto:althomas@aldrich-thomas.com
mailto:bchandler@templetx.gov
mailto:althomas@aldrich-thomas.com
mailto:mbaker@templetx.gov
mailto:bchandler@templetx.gov


From: A. Lloyd Thomas
Sent: Wednesday, September 27, 2017 2:59:11 PM
To: Mark Baker
Cc: Brian Chandler
Subject: Re: Mayborn Rezoning
 
Thank you, Mark, for contacting me about this matter.  Under the circumstance, we will agree to
remove from re-zoning consideration that portion of the 2F zoned acreage south of the ONCOR
transmission line easement as is; thus, leaving it with its current classification.  However, all other
zoning requests will remain as stated in the application.
 
A. Lloyd Thomas, ALC, SIOR, CCIM, CRE
Aldrich-Thomas Group, Realtors®
18 North 3rd Street
Temple, TX 76501
254-773-4901
_____________________________
From: Mark Baker <mbaker@templetx.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, September 27, 2017 12:08 PM
Subject: Mayborn Rezoning
To: A. Lloyd Thomas <althomas@aldrich-thomas.com>
Cc: Brian Chandler <bchandler@templetx.gov>

Lloyd:
 
Good afternoon - Just a update, we will be finalizing our staff report and forwarding a copy of the
draft staff report to you in the next day or two for your review.
 
In the meantime, I had a question, we have been inundated with residents within the Bellaire North
subdivision with concerns over single family uses including the requested SF-3 designation with a
minimum 4,000 square foot lot size.  If it were to come up during discussion, would you client be
open to considering SF-2 or SF-1 as an alternative.
 
I have been mentioning to the residents that the property is currently 2F which allows duplexes and
attached SF homes by right and the SF-3 is more restrictive but I am gathering they are opposed to
any residential development.
 
Anyway, just a wanted to pass that by you.
 
Thanks,
Mark   
 
Mark Baker, Senior Planner
 
City of Temple – Planning Department

mailto:mbaker@templetx.gov
mailto:althomas@aldrich-thomas.com
mailto:bchandler@templetx.gov


mbaker
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A

mbaker
Polygonal Line

mbaker
Typewritten Text
Withdrawn



Site & Surrounding Property Photos 
 

 
 

Aerial Site Map 
(Numbered Legend for Photo Viewpoint Locations) 

 

1 

2 

Withdrawn 
 

3 

Pegasus Dr 

Loop 363 

Buc-ee’s 

I-35 

Quarry 

Lower Troy Road 

UP Railroad 

CAC 

Mayborn Convention 
Center 



 
 

Site Location #1: Looking south from Loop 363 
Undeveloped but contains existing quarry activities (not visible in photo) 

(PD-C, c, MF-2 & 2F) 
 

 
 

Looking West from Site Location #1 (Buc-ee’s Travel Center)  
(PD-C, C, MF-2 & 2F) 

 



 
 

Site Location #2: Looking West across LP 363 (Undeveloped)  
(AG) 

 

 
 

Site Location #2: Looking East across Loop 363 (Undeveloped)  
(AG) 

 



 
 

Site Location #2: Looking North from within the property (Undeveloped)  
(AG) 

   

 
 

Site Location #3: Looking South-East from Pegasus Drive (Undeveloped)  
(2F & GR) 



 
 

Site Location #3: Looking West across Pegasus Drive  
(Existing Industrial Uses) Northwest Industrial Park  

(LI) 
 

 
 

Site Location #3: Looking West across Pegasus Drive  
(Existing Industrial Uses) Northwest Industrial Park  

(LI) 



Industrial, Commercial Zoning District - I-35 Corridor Overlay: Compiled Land Use Table

Applicant Request Staff 
Recommendation

Use Light Industrial 
Zoning District

Commercial Zoning 
District

I-35 Overlay 
Industrial               

Sub District

I-35 Overlay 
Gateway                       

Sub District

All Residential Uses listed in the use table in Sec. 5.1 except as follows: Prohibited YES CUP Prohibited
Multiple-family dwelling (apartment) Prohibited Prohibited CUP CUP 
Recreational vehicle park CUP Prohibited Prohibited Prohibited

Animal feed lot Prohibited Prohibited Prohibited Prohibited
Animal shelter (public or private) YES CUP CUP Prohibited
Auto storage or auto auction YES CUP Prohibited Prohibited
Boat sales or repair YES YES CUP Prohibited
Body Piercing Studio YES YES Prohibited Prohibited
Bottling works YES Prohibited CUP Prohibited
Building material sales (indoor or to the rear with screening) YES YES CUP Prohibited
Car wash YES YES CUP CUP 
Child care facility YES YES Prohibited CUP
Contractor storage and equipment yard YES YES CUP Prohibited
Correctional facility CUP Prohibited Prohibited Prohibited
Day camp for children CUP CUP Prohibited Prohibited
Drag strip or commercial racing CUP CUP Prohibited Prohibited
Flea market (outdoors) YES Prohibited Prohibited Prohibited
Greenhouse or nursery (retail) YES YES CUP CUP
Hatchery, fish or shrimp, fish farm CUP CUP Prohibited Prohibited
Hatchery, poultry YES CUP Prohibited Prohibited
Heavy machinery sales, storage and repair YES YES CUP Prohibited
Hotel or Motel YES YES YES YES
Kennel YES YES CUP Prohibited
Light Manufacturing YES Prohibited CUP Prohibited
Livestock auction CUP YES Prohibited Prohibited
Major vehicle repair YES YES CUP Prohibited
Milk depot, dairy or ice cream plant YES YES CUP Prohibited
Minor vehicle servicing YES YES CUP CUP
Motorcycle or scooter sales and repair YES YES CUP CUP
Office Uses (As listed in UDC Sec. 5.1) YES YES YES YES
Open/outdoor storage of lawn/garden furniture, appliances or machinery YES YES Prohibited Prohibited
Paint shop YES YES CUP CUP
Restaurant Uses (As listed in UDC Sec. 5.1) YES YES YES YES
Retail & Service Uses (As listed in UDC Sec. 5.1) YES YES YES YES
Sexually oriented business Prohibited Prohibited Prohibited Prohibited
Shooting range (outdoor) CUP Prohibited Prohibited Prohibited
Stable, residential or noncommercial YES YES Prohibited Prohibited
Tattoo Studio YES YES Prohibited Prohibited
Trailer, RV, portable bldg. or HUD code manufactured home sales or rental YES YES CUP Prohibited
Transitional or emergency shelter CUP CUP Prohibited Prohibited
Upholstery shop YES YES CUP Prohibited
Veterinarian hospital (kennels) YES YES CUP Prohibited
Wrecking or salvage yard CUP Prohibited Prohibited Prohibited

Nonresidential



Comparison Table: Commercial vs. Industrial
Use C (Commercial) LI (Light Industrial)
Heavy machinery sales, storage and repair Yes Yes
Building material sales Yes Yes
Mini-storage warehouse Yes Yes
Office Warehouse Yes Yes
Open storage of furniture, appliances or machinery Yes Yes
Laboratory Manufacturing Yes Yes
Wholesale Storage and Sales Yes Yes
Parking lot, trucks, trailers and moving vans or trucks Yes Yes
Vehicle repair, major Yes Yes
Truck stop Yes Yes
Trailer, recreational vehicle, portable building or manufactured home sales or rentals Yes Yes
Hotel or motel Yes Yes
Light manufacturing No Yes
Single Family Residential (Detached & Attached) Yes No
Multi-Family Residential (Apartments) No No
Duplex Yes No



 
Surrounding Property Uses 

 
 Generalized Surrounding Property & Uses 

Direction FLUP Zoning Current Land Use 

Site 
229.056 +/- Acres 

Suburban Commercial  
&  

Suburban Residential 

 
AG, PD-C, C, MF-2, 

2F & GR 

 
Undeveloped 

North Suburban Commercial  LI & AG Undeveloped 

South Suburban Residential  
&  

Neighborhood Conservation 

 
2F & SF-1 

Scattered Non-
Residential & SF Uses 
(Bellaire North Subd.)  

East Suburban Commercial 
&  

Industrial 

 
AG 

 
Undeveloped  

 
West 

 
Industrial  

(Northwest Industrial Park) 

 
LI 

 
Non Residential Uses 

 
 
 
 
 

Comprehensive Plan Compliance 
 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Compliance? 
CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use Map NO 

CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  YES 

CP Goal 4.1 - Growth and development 
patterns should be consistent with 
the City’s infrastructure and public 
service capacities 

YES 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and 
Sidewalks Ordinance 

YES 

CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Maps 
 
 

 
 

Aerial Map 
 

 
 

Location Map 
 



 
 

Vicinity Zoning Map 
 

 
 

Zoning Map (Current & Proposed for Requested Properties) 



 
 

I-35 Corridor Overlay Map (Showing Applicable Sub-districts) 
 



 
 

Future Land Use Map 
 

 
 

Thoroughfare & Trails Map 



 
 

Utility Map 
 

 
 

Notification Map 



Buc-ee’s & Vicinity New Braunfels 
Aerial Map 

 

 
 

Aerial Map (Google Maps) 































From
:

D
on Pasha

To:
M

ark Baker
Subject:

Rezoning Request
D

ate:
Thursday, Septem

ber 28, 2017 6:21:57 PM

Sent from
 m

y iPhone

mailto:pacdr@aol.com
mailto:mbaker@templetx.gov


















 

EXCERPTS FROM THE 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

MONDAY, OCTOBER 2, 2017 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
Item 3: Item 3: Z-FY-17-46 – Hold a public hearing to discuss and recommend action on 

rezoning of six tracts of land totaling approximately 229.056 acres: 
1. 61.015 ± acres located west of MKT railroad and north of Ottoway Drive and Killen 
Lane (Bellaire North)—from C & 2F zoning district to SF-3 zoning district; 
2. The following properties within the Industrial sub-district of the I-35 Corridor 
Overlay: 

a. 7.797 ± acres located west of I 35, east of Pegasus Drive, and north of 
Industrial Boulevard—from 2F and GR zoning districts to LI zoning district; 
b. 7.035 ± acres located west of I 35, east of Pegasus Drive, and north of 
Industrial Boulevard—from 2F and GR zoning districts to LI zoning district; 
c. 114.537 ± acres located at the southwest corner of NE H.K. Dodgen Loop and 
MKT railroad—from PD C, MF-2, and 2F zoning districts to LI zoning district; 

3. The following properties within the Gateway sub-district of the I-35 Corridor 
Overlay: 

a. 11.332 ± acres located at the northeast corner of NE H.K. Dodgen Loop and 
North 3rd Street—from AG zoning district to C zoning district; and 
b. 27.158 ± acres located at the northwest corner of NE H.K. Dodgen Loop and 
MKT railroad—from AG zoning district to C zoning district. 

Mr. Mark Baker, Senior Planner, stated this item is scheduled to go to City Council for first 
reading on October 19, 2017 and second reading on November 2, 2017. 

Mr. Baker explains the item description above is for the entire 229 acres and that has been 
has been reduced to the 168 acres and the applicant has formerly withdrawn the SF-3 portion 
(61 +/- acres). The remaining portions are still included in the request. 

Of the 168.041 +/- acres, approximately 11.332 +/- acres are being requested for Commercial 
(C) and 156.709 +/- acres are being requested for Light Industrial (LI). No specific use(s) or 
development(s) have been identified. 

On the north side of the Loop, one tract (LI) for 27.158 +/- acres and the other parcel is 11.332 
+/- acres is proposed for C. The largest piece on the south side of the Loop, bordered by the 
Railroad, and bordered by Buc-ee’s on the back side (along the Convention Center) is the 
largest portion of approximately 114.537 +/- acres of proposed LI. Approximately 14-15 +/- 
acres are located the east side of Pegasus Drive, north of Industrial Boulevard, and west of I-
35. 



 

Approximately 54 of the 168 +/- acres are within the I-35 Corridor Overlay. Within the 
Gateway Sub-District approximately 11.3 +/- acres is proposed from AG to C and 
approximately 27 +/- acres proposed from AG to LI.  

Within the Industrial Sub-District, approximately 7 +/- acres are proposed from 2F and GR to 
LI, approximately 7.9 +/- acres proposed from 2F and GR to LI, and approximately 1.080 +/- 
acres from C to LI which is a sliver out of the 114 +/- acres portion. 

Per the Unified Development Code (UDC) Sec. 4.3.28:  

Overlay Zoning district is limited to specific areas encompassing land that has 
already been assigned conventional base zoning district classifications.  
Supplements the standards of the base zoning districts with new or different 
standards that are more restrictive 

Both Industrial and Gateway sub-districts place additional restrictions on land use and design 
for new and existing uses. The Industrial sub-district either prohibits industrial uses or requires 
a conditional use permit (CUP). 

Despite a number of existing industrial uses, the intent of the Overlay encourages 
retail/service and commercial uses rather than industrial including those within the Industrial 
sub-district. 

Commercial zoning outside of the I-35 Corridor allows a number of industrial uses by-right and 
without a CUP. 

Pegasus Drive is typically recognized as the eastern boundary of the Northwest Industrial 
Park. 

A significant percentage of the approximately 670 +/- acres is either owned by the TEDC or 
the City of Temple and largely undeveloped and this provides availability of industrially-zoned 
land without having to provide additional land industrially-zoned to the east. 

Table of I-35 uses are compared in the LI zoning, C zoning, Industrial Sub-District, and 
Gateway Sub-District. 

Overall C versus LI uses comparison table shown. 

The existing Buc-ee’s (not part of this request) does provide a presence for future growth of 
both retail and service uses as well as commercial development. It does support the existing 
Bellaire North subdivision and any future proposed residential development. 

As a similar situation, the Buc-ee’s in New Braunfels provided opportunity for commercial and 
retail development. Aerial shown. 

Current and proposed zoning map shown.  

Non-residential (commercial and industrial) presents challenges posed by I-35 Corridor 
restrictions and C is the recommended substitute for the Industrial zoning and compliance 
would be met. 



 

The Future Land Use and Character Map designates the subject property as Suburban 
Commercial which is intended for retail/ service uses and supports office (O-1, O-2) and 
Neighborhood Service (NS) zoning. GR and C zoning is considered on a case by case basis 
and does not support Industrial zoning. 

The Industrial designation is intended for the community’s manufacturing, 
warehousing/distribution, and light industrial uses and supports LI and HI zoning. Even with C 
zoning the request would only be in partial compliance. 

Both water and sewer are available to serve the property. The sewer lines are older clay pipe 
and would need to be upgraded which is addressed during the development stage. 

The Thoroughfare Plan designates Loop 363 and I-35 as Expressways, Lower Troy Road as 
an Arterial, and Pegasus Drive as a Collector. Any future right-of-way and required sidewalks 
would be discussed during the platting stage. 

Surrounding properties and on-site photos shown. 

Surrounding properties include Buc-ee’s Travel Center and Northwest Industrial Park to the 
west, undeveloped property and Loop 363 to the north, and a quarry to the south. 

Eighty notices were mailed in accordance with all state and local regulations with one notice 
returned in agreement and 22 notices returned in disagreement.  

This request is in compliance with the Thoroughfare Plan, is compatible with I-35 Corridor 
overlay and surrounding uses and zoning, and public facilities are available to serve the 
property. 

The request is in partial compliance with the Future Land Use and Character Map. 

Staff recommends approval of the rezoning from PD-C, C, 2F, MF-2, GR and AG districts to C 
district for 168.041 +/- acres. The 61.015 +/- acres from C and 2F zoning to SF-3 zoning has 
been withdrawn. 

Chair Fettig explains the hearing process and three minute rule then confirms that the 61.015 
+/- acres has been withdrawn and will remain as 2F. Chair Fettig then opened the public 
hearing. 

Ms. Lois Rolston, 106 Ottoway Drive, Temple, Texas, stated she understood the 61 +/- acres 
for SF-3 zoning had been withdrawn; however, she was concerned that with the withdrawal of 
the SF-3 portion, would duplexes, triplexes, and mobile homes be placed in that 61 +/- acre 
portion. 

Mr. Baker could not confirm when the 2F zoning of the 61 +/- acre potion was put in place, but 
did clarity that mobile homes are prohibited in 2F zoning. 

Ms. Rolston stated the Bellaire residents was never made aware of this information. 

Mr. Lloyd Thomas, Aldrich-Thomas Group Realtors, 18 North 3rd Street, Temple, Texas, 
explains he represents the owner of the property which developed the Bellaire North area 
down to Zenith.  



 

Mr. Thomas stated the zoning of the 61 +/- acre portion for 2F was done back in the early 
1970s. The applicant is trying to clean up the zoning and put it into zoning classifications that 
work for the type of property located there.  

The idea of SF-3 zoning for the 61 +/- acre portion was to make it more restrictive than 2F; 
however, with the opposition to SF-3 zoning expressed from the returned notices, the 
applicant has chosen to withdraw the 61 +/- acres from being rezoned and it will remain as 2F.  

Mr. Baker clarified that triplexes were permitted through a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 
process which is a separate application and goes through P&Z and City Council. 

Mr. Thomas stated the Staff recommendation of substituting C for LI is not something that fits 
for the property. There is no connectivity with the current zoning request and the Buc-ee’s 
property/development. A drainage ditch surrounds Buc-ee’s and no right of ingress/egress 
with Buc-ee’s exists. 

The two smaller tracts on the east side of Pegasus and west of I-35 has had more activity for 
the industrial use as well as the larger tract of 114 +/- acres. It is not well suited for C uses. 
The only portion suitable for C is the 11 +/- acres that fronts I-35 and Loop 363 at the 
northeast corner. 

Mr. Thomas does not see the subject area being developed as a retail type of development 
since the land is not well suited for C. There are not enough rooftops to support 
retail/commercial development at this intersection other than the 11 +/- acres. 

The 114 +/- acres is best suited for LI and distribution. 

Mr. Thomas stated the property owner wishes to maintain his position for industrial zoning 
request for the 114 +/- acres as well as the 27 +/- acres and the two smaller tracts between I-
35 and Pegasus. 

Chair Fettig asked Mr. Thomas if there was a specific use in mind for the property and Mr. 
Thomas responded the owner’s intent for the zoning request was to clean up the area/zoning 
and get a zoning classification that would work.  

As far as a difference in utilities between C and LI, LI would have a lighter use and not as 
much demand as a C development. However, water and sewer are now available on the east 
side of the interstate. 

Mr. Thomas explained the two parcels on the east side of I-35 are only visible from the 
frontage road, not the interstate, which hinders C viability.  

Mr. Thomas commented that distribution centers are currently the primary request for this 
property which also provides accessibility to railroad and I-35. 

Mr. Brian Chandler, Planning Director, followed up with clarification on uses. Buc-ee’s 
reference, allowed under C and LI, was not to suggest that is what the area would be. If 
additional manufacturing were located there it may limit the possibility of having additional 
retail if the market allows for it. 



 

The additional uses that are not traditional retail that are allowed in C, essentially everything 
other than light manufacturing, includes office warehouse; a distribution center does require 
LI. But office warehouse, storage, heavy machinery sales, etc., are appropriate for those 
locations and would be allowed there as C.  

Light industrial also allows barbed wire, razor wire and is not allowed in C.  

If the market allowed and supported duplexes or additional residential on the larger tract (114 
+/- acres) except right along the Loop, LI would not allow that use. 

Mr. Chandler explained some of the subject property lies within the Overlay and is protected 
by additional standards and some does not. 

Mr. Thomas stated he has been doing real estate for 40 years and has been involved with 
several large development projects located in Temple and Waco and knows retail and how to 
do a retail development. This property does not fit the criteria for C even if more homes were 
added on the 61 +/- acres. 

Mr. Allan Rubino, 301 East Killen, Temple, Texas, asked about possible development of the 
61 +/- acres and if proper infrastructure would be put in, where would the traffic go? 

Chair Fettig explained the buildings need to be in place first before addressing streets. 
Planning and Zoning is unable to address this question and deferred Mr. Rubino to Staff for a 
possible response. 

Mr. Chandler explained the interior roads within a subdivision are built prior to the housing; it 
is the perimeter streets surrounding the area that are more challenging and often require a 
Capital Improvement Program (CIP) and takes more time. Some of the developments Mr. 
Rubino is referring to may predate the current standards for the City.  

Mr. Rubino stated all improvements seem to be going west and/or north  

Ms. Marie Pavelka, 115 Ottoway Drive, Temple, Texas, asked when the ditch would be 
cleaned out and what is being done about the Zika virus. 

Commissioner Ward suggested Ms. Pavelka contact Code Enforcement about these issues. 

Mr. Chandler asked Ms. Pavelka to give Staff her contact information so he can research and 
confirm the information with Public Works and attempt to provide answers for her. 

Mr. Chandler explained which properties were located in the I-35 Overlay and the standards 
that would apply.   

Unless the applicant came forward with a Planned Development District for a distribution 
center use, they could come in and request that zoning and bring in a site plan and then 
everyone would know exactly what it would look like. For a base zoning request, it is wide 
open and the standards related to that zoning district are the only limitations and no conditions 
could be added. Thus, the Staff recommendation for C. 

Buc-ee’s was a PD since it required several exceptions to the overlay. 



 

Brief discussion regarding possible PD and options available. 

Mr. Lloyd Thomas returned and responded that the reason for the zoning request is to clean 
up the existing zoning and simplify the zoning. There is a need for office warehouse but not a 
114 +/- acre warehouse. 

The site is best suited for a distribution facility which requires LI classification. The property is 
outside of the Gateway Sub-District so the overlay would not apply. 

Mr. Thomas would like to get the zoning in place so they do not have to come back and would 
like to have the site zoned and ready to go. This has been the biggest hindrance in bringing 
businesses into town; Temple is not prepared. Not every industrial business wants to be 
located in the Industrial Parks. 

Mr. Chandler suggested if the use is for a distribution center, with the 114 +/- acres perhaps 
P&Z could add a PD to that portion only with future site plan approval just for that use, pulling 
that use down from LI. Anything else under C can move forward by right. Ultimately the 
applicant gets what they need to market the property. 

Mr. Thomas responded if they go with a PD it will involve more time to go through Staff, P&Z 
and City Council all over again and the zoning might as well stay the same. Mr. Thomas will 
like to make it where the applicant does not have to come back multiple times for a lengthy 
process. 

If the conditions suggested by Mr. Chandler were put on it, then the applicant is back to 
square one; they could need to come back through the process. All the applicant is asking for 
is the zoning to be in place and LI is not an unreasonable request. 

Mr. Chandler explained the P&Z Commission have no authority to make conditions unless it is 
tied to a CUP, which it is not. A PD-C may be added with conditions which is Staff’s amended 
recommendation for a distribution center and a site plan for that use. 

Ms. Marie Pavelka returned and asked why the Commission why they worried about industrial 
uses when the streets were more important and needed to be fixed. 

Mr. Allan Rubino returned and asked if the 114 +/- acres was sold to a distribution center, 
would there be 1,000 trucks parked there within walking distance from residential areas. 

There being no further speakers, the public hearing was closed. 

Vice-Chair Langley made a motion to remove/withdraw No. 1. for 61.015 +/- acres, 
recommended Light Industrial (LI) zoning district on No. 2.c. for 114.537 +/- acres, and 
recommended Commercial (C) zoning on the remainder of Nos. 2. a. and b. and 3. a. and b. 
(listed in the item description) for Item 3, Z-FY-17-46, and Commissioner Armstrong made a 
second. 

Motion passed: (9:0) 

 
 



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO.    
(Z-FY-17-46) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A REZONING OF FIVE TRACTS OF LAND 
TOTALING APPROXIMATELY 168 ACRES LOCATED WITHIN THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Whereas, Aldrich-Thomas Group, on behalf of the property owner, Frank Mayborn 
Enterprises, is requesting a rezoning of approximately 168.041 acres which is comprised of the 
following five separately zoned tracts: 

 
1. Approximately 114.5 acres located generally at the southeast corner of Northeast 

H.K. Dodgen Loop and MKT railroad from Planned Development-Commercial, 
Commercial, Multi-Family Two, and Two-Family zoning districts to Light Industrial 
zoning district; 

2. Approximately 11.3 acres located north of Northeast H.K. Dodgen Loop and east of 
North General Bruce Drive from Agricultural zoning district to Commercial zoning 
district; 

3.  Approximately 27.1 acres located north of Northeast H.K. Dodgen Loop and west of 
the MKT railroad from Agricultural zoning district to Light Industrial district; and 

4. Approximately 7.9 acres and 7.0 acres respectively, located west of I-35, east of 
Pegasus Drive and generally north of Industrial Boulevard from Two-Family and 
General Retail zoning districts to Light Industrial zoning district; 

 
Whereas, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Temple, Texas, after due 

consideration of the conditions, recommends approval of the rezoning of five tracts of land 
totaling approximately 168 acres, as outlined above and further shown by the Surveyor Sketch 
and field notes attached as Exhibit A,  located within the City of  Temple, Texas; and  

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 

THAT: 
 

 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their entirety. 
 

Part 2: The City Council approves the rezoning of the following five tracts of land 
totaling approximately 168 acres, and  located within the City of  Temple, Texas, as outlined in 
the Surveyor Sketch and Field Notes attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A,’ and made a part hereof for 
all purposes. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



2 
 

 
 

Part 3: The City Council approves the Surveyor Sketch and field notes attached hereto 
as Exhibit ‘A,’ and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 
Part 4: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary changes 

to the City Zoning Map. 
 
Part 5: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 

paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the final 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of 
the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since the 
same would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance 
of any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 6: This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 

 
Part 7: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 19th day of 

October, 2017. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 2nd day of November, 2017. 

     
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
              

____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Charla Thomas 
City Secretary      Deputy City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/19/17 
Item #13 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 3 

 
DEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:    

Lynn Barrett, Assistant Planning 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING   Z-FY-17-47:  Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing an amendment to Ordinance No. 2016-4812 to allow utility trailer sales/rentals 
on Lot 2, Block 1, Tranum Subdivision Phase VIII, addressed as 5806 South General Bruce Drive and 
zoned I-35-Retail-PD-C. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval with conditions for amending the current 
PD for the following reasons: 
1. That the amendment adds an additional similar use for utility trailer sales/rental to the current 

PD on the property permitting RV rentals and sales, and which continues to demonstrate 
compliance with the provisions of the Planned Development Criteria as required by UDC 
Section 3.4.5; 

2. The Planned Development-Commercial (PD-C) zoning remains compatible with the Future 
Land Use Map; 

3. The PD-C zoning remains compatible with surrounding zoning, and existing and anticipated 
uses; 

4. The zoning complies with the Thoroughfare Plan; 
5. Public and on-site facilities are available to serve the subject property; and 
6. The required previous condition of a decorative metal fence has been installed on site. 
 
PD Conditions: 
1. A binding site development plan, attached as Exhibit A will govern the amendment 
2. Previous PD condition requiring inventory vehicles to be stored only on a paved surface behind the 

landscape and fence will be followed with no storage outside of the project area 
3. The utility trailer rentals and/or sales use is planned and will be in addition to the RV rentals/sales 

allowed under the current zoning PD district 
4. Drought tolerant shrubs will be planted in front of the decorative metal fence. Installation of drought 

tolerant red yucca, agave, fountain grass, rosemary or similar species is required prior to display of 
trailers on site 

5. The current sign columns will be re-rocked to a professional appearance in matching stone as per 
the previous PD requirement prior to occupancy, with an approved sign permit 

6. Portable buildings or HUD-Code manufactured home sales or rentals shall continue to be prohibited 
on this site due to its location within the I-35 Overlay 

7. In the event of a conflict between the site development plan and the text of the Planned 
Development ordinance, the stricter, more specific standard applies 



10/19/17 
Item #13 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 3 

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At their October 2, 2017 meeting, the 
Planning & Zoning Commission voted nine to zero to recommend approval of PD Amendment allowing 
utility trailer sales with conditions at the subject property.    
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  This request is to amend an existing PD which was approved last year for RV sales 
and rentals at an existing business in the overlay district. That tenant only partially complied with the 
PD conditions before vacating the property.  Mr. Muehler is seeking to sell and possibly rent utility 
trailers at the subject property. He has already installed the decorative metal fence in the front required 
of the current PD in place of the dilapidated chain link that was previously on-site. 
 
Per UDC, Section 3.4.3 & 3.4.4, a Planned Development requires approval of a Development/Site plan 
that is binding.  On September 18, 2017, the DRC discussed the proposal and conditions.  
 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: The following table provides the direction from the property, 
Future Land Use Plan (FLUP) designation, existing zoning and current land uses: 
 

 

Surrounding Property & Uses 

Direction FLUP Zoning Current Land Use 

Site Auto-Urban Commercial       C Commercial 

North Auto-Urban Commercial       C Commercial 

South Auto-Urban Commercial       C Commercial 

East Auto-Urban Commercial       LI and GR Commercial 

West Auto-Urban Commercial       C Vacant 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 
 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map 

 

Compliant? 

CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use and Character (FLUP) Yes 

CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  Yes 

CP 
Goal 4.1 - Growth and development patterns should be 
consistent with the City’s infrastructure and public service 
capacities 

Yes 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance Yes 

CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 



10/19/17 
Item #13 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 3 

 
Future Land Use Map (CP Map 3.1) 
The entire area is shown as Auto-Urban Commercial. According to the Comprehensive Plan, Auto-
Urban Commercial is for the majority of the areas identified for commercial use, generally concentrated 
at intersections versus strip development along the major roads. 
Thoroughfare and Trails Master Plan (CP Map 5.2) 
The site is located along an Expressway (IH-35) and does not front any trails.  
Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
An 8” water line and 8” sewer line are available at the front of the property along the Access Road and 
along Profit Place at the rear of the property.   
UDC, Section 3.4 Planned Development  
A Planned Development is defined as: 

“A flexible overlay zoning district designed to respond to unique development proposals, special 
design considerations and land use transitions by allowing evaluation of land use relationships 
to surrounding areas through development plan approval.”  

 
PUBLIC NOTICE:  Nine notices of the public hearing were sent out to property owners within 200-feet 
of the subject property.  As of Thursday October 6, 2017, two notices had been returned, in favor of the 
proposal, both from the property owner. Zero notices had been returned in opposition. The newspaper 
printed notice of the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing on September 21, 2017, in 
accordance with state law and local ordinance. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Site Development Plan  
Location Map 
Zoning Map 
Future Land Use Map 
Thoroughfare and Trails Map 
Site and Surrounding Property Photos 
Examples of Utility Trailers 
Utility Map 
Notification Map 
Returned Notices 
Ordinance 

 
 

 



5806 South General Bruce Drive
Temple, TX 76502

’’

’

Site Development Plan

Project limit 
for PD 

SITE IMPROVEMENTS
1. Decorative metal 

fence with gate 
across front of 
inventory storage 
area

2. Drought tolerant 
landscape bed in 
front of fence

3. Inventory placed 
only on paved 
surface behind 
fence (paved area 
determines 
number)

4. Sign with masonry 
columns along 
fence after 
permitting

Paved area (chip seal asphalt is
acceptable per staff analysis)
required for any unit display or
storage. All inventory MUST be on
paved area within the fence.

Parking 
space 

for Tint 
business

Decorative 
metal fence

Landscape bed 
with drought 

tolerant plants



3319

3209

BN
 &

 S
F 

RR

BN
 &

 S
F 

RR

SH
AL
LO
W
FO
RD

W
ES
TR
D

S 
IN
TE
RS
TA
TE
 3
5 
(U
S 
19
0)

S 
IN
TE
RS
TA
TE
 3
5 
(U
S 
19
0)

PR
O
FI
T
PL

SG
EN
ER
AL
BR
UC
ED
R

S 
GE
NE
RA
L B

RU
CE
 D
R

CH
AR

TE
R O

AK
 DR

 (F
M 81

7)

SHALLOW FORD WEST RD

3701

5625

3570

3516

6090

6006

5710

3315

5806

5817

3301

3515

5812

5906

5920

3606

5805

5925

Ü

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-17-47

AMEND PD-C

Address :
5806 S General Bruce

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

LOCATION MAP

 lrbarrett
Date: 9/15/2017

Streets

EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Railroad

Temple Municipal Boundary

Parcels

ETJ Parcels

CaseArea



ZONING MAP 

 



Date: 9/15/2017
5906

5806

3301

5625

5710

5920

5805

5812

6006

3701

3570

3515

5817

3315

3516

3606

6090

CH
AR

TE
R O

AK
 DR

 (F
M 81

7)

S 
GE
NE
RA
L 
BR
UC
E 
DR

S 
GE
NE
RA
L 
BR
UC
E 
DR

P
R
O
FI
T 
P
L

P
R
O
FIT

P
L

S 
IN
TE
RS
TA
TE
 3
5 
(U
S 
19
0)

SH
AL
LO

W
FO
RD

W
ES
TR

D

BN
 &

 S
F 

RR

BN
 &

 S
F 

RR

Ü
Zoning Case :
Z-FY-17-47

AMEND PD-C

Address :
5806 S General Bruce Dr

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

Date: 9/15/2017
 lrbarrett

FUTURE LAND
USE MAP

EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Parcels

Future LUP

Agricultural/Rural

Auto-Urban Commercial

Auto-Urban Mixed Use

Auto-Urban Multi-Family

Auto-Urban Residential

Business Park

Estate Residential

Industrial

Neighborhood Conservation

Parks & Open Space

Public Institutional

Suburban Commercial

Suburban Residential

Temple Medical Education District

Urban Center

CaseArea



Date: 9/15/2017
5906

5806

3301

5625

5710

5920

5805

5812

6006

3701

3570

3515

5817

3315

3516

3606

6090

CH
AR

TE
R O

AK
 DR

 (F
M 81

7)

S 
GE
NE
RA
L 
BR
UC
E 
DR

S 
GE
NE
RA
L 
BR
UC
E 
DR

P
R
O
FI
T 
P
L

P
R
O
FIT

P
L

S 
IN
TE
RS
TA
TE
 3
5 
(U
S 
19
0)

SH
AL
LO

W
FO
RD

W
ES
TR

D

BN
 &

 S
F 

RR

BN
 &

 S
F 

RR

Ü
Zoning Case :
Z-FY-17-47

AMEND PD-C

Address :
5806 S General Bruce Dr

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

Date: 9/15/2017
 lrbarrett

Parcels

Thoroughfare Plan

Expressway

Major Arterial

Proposed Major
Arterial

Minor Arterial

Proposed Minor
Arterial

Collector

Proposed
Collector

Trails Master Plan

[ EXISTING, CITY
WIDE SPINE

! EXISTING,
COMMUNITY
WIDE
CONNECTOR

EXISTING,
LOCAL
CONNECTOR

[ PROPOSED,
CITY WIDE
SPINE

! PROPOSED,
COMMUNITY
WIDE
CONNECTOR

PROPOSED,
LOCAL
CONNECTOR

CaseArea

THOROUGHFARE
AND TRAILS MAP



Site Photos 

 

 

 



View to South 

 
View to East 

 

View to North 

 



Utility Trailer Examples 

   



Utility Map 



5806
PropID:
454578

3315
PropID:
115310

3516
PropID:
35789

5906
PropID:
150162

3301
PropID:
115311

5625
PropID:
455358

5710
PropID:
454577

5920
PropID:
150159

5805
PropID:
106128

5925
PropID:
77363

5812
PropID:
150163

6006
PropID:
117951

3701
PropID:
8671

3570
PropID:
117949

3515
PropID:
454579

5817
PropID:
106125

3606
PropID:
133028

6090
PropID:
14630

484-B

484-H

CH
AR

TE
R O

AK
 DR

 (F
M 81

7)

S
GE
NE
RA
L
BR
UC
E
DR

S
GE
NE
RA
L
BR
UC
E
DR

PR
O
FIT

PL

PR
O
FI
T 
PL

S 
IN
TE
RS
TA
TE
 3
5 
(U
S 
19
0)

SH
A
LL
O
W

FO
R
D
W
ES
T
RD

BN
 &

 S
F 

RR

BN
 &

 S
F 

RR

HI

GR

C

LI

C

C

Ü

Date: 9/15/2017
 lrbarrett

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-17-47

AMEND PD-C

Address :
5806 S General Bruce

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

200'
NOTIFICATION MAP

CurrentZoning

HI - CUP

UE

UE - PD

SF-1

SF-1 - CUP

SF-1 - PD

SF-2

SF-2 - PD

SF-3

SF-3 - PD

SF-3 - CUP, PD

SFA

SFA-2

SFA-2 - PD

SFA-3

SFA-3 - PD

2F

2F - CUP

2F - PD

MF-1

MF-1 - CUP

MF-1 - PD

MF-2

MF-2 - CUP

MF-2 - PD

MF-3 - PD

O-1

O-1 - CUP

O-1 - PD

O-2

O-2 - CUP

O-2 - PD

NS

NS - CUP

NS - PD

GR

GR - CUP

GR - PD

GR - CUP, PD

CA

CA - CUP

CA - PD

C

C - CUP

C - PD

C - CUP, PD

LI

LI - CUP

LI - PD

LI - CUP, PD

HI

HI - PD

AG

AG - CUP

MH

MH - CUP

MH - PD

MU

MU - CUP

SD-C

SD-C - CUP

SD-H

SD-H - CUP

SD-T

SD-V

T4

T4 - PD

T4 - CUP

T5-C

T5-C - CUP

T5-C - PD

T5-E

T5-E - CUP

T5-E - PD

NO BASE

CUP

PD

CaseArea

Buffer







1 
 

ORDINANCE NO.    
(Z-FY-17-47) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO ORDINANCE NO. 2016-
4812 TO ALLOW UTILITY TRAILER SALES/RENTALS ON LOT 2, BLOCK 
1, TRANUM SUBDIVISION PHASE VIII, ADDRESSED AS 5806 SOUTH 
GENERAL BRUCE DRIVE AND ZONED I-35 RETAIL PLANNED 
DEVELOPMENT COMMERCIAL; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Whereas, an existing planned development for this site was approved last year for RV 

sales and rentals at an existing business in the overlay district - the tenant at that time, only 
partially complied with the required conditions before vacating the property; 

 
Whereas, the current lessee, Mr. Muehler, would like to sell and possibly rent utility 

trailers at the subject property and has already installed a decorative metal fence in the front 
required of the current Planned Development zoning; 

 
Whereas, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Temple, Texas, after due 

consideration of the conditions, recommends approval of the requested amendment to 
Ordinance No. 2016-4812, to allow utility trailer sales/rentals on lot 2, block 1, Tranum 
Subdivision Phase VIII, addressed as 5806 South General Bruce Drive and currently zoned as I-
35-Retail-Planned Development-Commercial; and  

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 

THAT: 
 

 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their entirety.   

 
Part 2: The City Council amends Ordinance No. 2016-4812, to allow utility trailer 

sales/rentals on lot 2, block 1, Tranum Subdivision Phase VIII, addressed as 5806 South 
General Bruce Drive and currently zoned as I-35-Retail-Planned Development-Commercial, 
depicted by the site plan attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A,’ and made a part hereof for all purposes 
along with the following conditions: 

 
1. A binding site development plan (Exhibit A) will govern the amendment; 
2. Previous PD conditions requiring inventory vehicles to be stored only on a paved 

surface behind the landscape and fence will be followed with no storage outside of 
the project area; 

3. The utility trailer rentals and/or sales use will be in addition to the RV rentals/sales 
allowed under the current zoning PD district; 
 
 
 
 
 



2 
 

 
 

4. Drought tolerant shrubs will be planted in front of the decorative metal fence. 
Installation of drought tolerant red yucca, agave, fountain grass, rosemary or similar 
species is required prior to display of trailers on site; 

5. The current sign columns will be re-rocked to a professional appearance in matching 
stone as per the previous PD requirement prior to occupancy, with an approved sign 
permit; 

6. Portable buildings or HUD-Code manufactured home sales or rentals shall continue to 
be prohibited on this site due to its location within the I-35 Overlay; 

7. In the event of a conflict between the site development plan and the text of the Planned 
Development ordinance, the stricter, more specific standard applies. 

 
Part 3: The City Council approves the Site Development Plan attached hereto as Exhibit 

‘A,’ and made a part hereof for all purposes. 
 

Part 4: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary changes 
to the City Zoning Map. 

 
Part 5: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 

paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the final 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of 
the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since the 
same would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance 
of any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 6: This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 

 
Part 7: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 19th day of 

October, 2017. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 2nd day of November, 2017. 

     
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

           
____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Charla Thomas 
City Secretary      Deputy City Attorney 


	7. 2017-8924-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction contract with T  Construction, LLC, of Houston for a lump sum price of $2,891,120 to construct the Old Town  Wastewater and Water Replacement Project.
	8. 2017-8925-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services agreement  with Stateside Right of Way Services, Inc., in an amount not to exceed $280,500, for acquisition  and relocation services for the Poison Oak Road Expansion P...
	9. (A) 2017-4872: SECOND READING – PUBLIC HEARING: Consider adopting an ordinance  designating a tract of land consisting of approximately 143.21 acres and located at 251  Berger Road, Temple, Texas, as City of Temple Tax Abatement Reinvestment Zone  ...
	(B) 2017-8926-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an Economic Development   Agreement with Cargill, Inc., to contribute $500,000 towards the construction of public  improvements to Berger Road.
	(C) 2017-8927-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a Tax Abatement Agreement  with Cargill, Inc. which will cover increases in the taxable value of real property for a  143.21 acre tract of land located in Tax Abatement Reinvestment Zone Numb...
	Traci L. Barnard, Director of Finance
	UITEM DESCRIPTION:U Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP, in the amount of $118,860 for developing a concept design for a new Airport general aviation terminal building and...
	UITEM DESCRIPTION:U SECOND READING: Consider adopting an ordinance authorizing an amendment to the Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Financing and Project Plans to align with the 2022 Master Plan which includes appropriating bond proceed...
	Item #6(W)
	Consent Agenda
	Page 1 of 4
	DEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:
	Mark Baker, Senior Planner
	Item #6(W)
	Consent Agenda
	Page 2 of 4
	Item #6(W)
	Consent Agenda
	Page 3 of 4
	COMPREHENSIVE PLAN (CP) COMPLIANCE: Compliance to goals, objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan are summarized by the attached Comprehensive Plan Compliance table but further described below:
	SCHOOL DISTRICT:  Belton Independent School District (BISD)
	Item #6(W)
	Consent Agenda
	Page 4 of 4
	FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable
	Item #6(X)
	Consent Agenda
	Page 1 of 3
	10/19/17
	Item #6(X)
	Consent Agenda
	Page 2 of 3
	10/19/17
	Item #6(X)
	Consent Agenda
	Page 3 of 3
	FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable
	ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an Economic Development Agreement with Cargill, Inc., to contribute $500,000 towards the construction of public improvements to Berger Road.
	ITEM DESCRIPTION:   Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a Tax Abatement Agreement with Cargill, Inc. which will cover increases in the taxable value of real property for a 143.21 acre tract of land located in Tax Abatement Reinvestment Zone Num...
	DEPT.: / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:
	COMPREHENSIVE PLAN (CP) COMPLIANCE: Compliance to goals, objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan are summarized by the attached Comprehensive Plan Compliance table but further described below:
	SCHOOL DISTRICT: Temple Independent School District (TISD)
	FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable
	FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable
	S. 31st St & Ave. R Enhancements (10-19-17 City Council).pdf
	S. 31st Street Map.pdf
	Slide Number 1


	Outer Loop Ph4 Final Design - Project Map.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	South (iv)


	Outer Loop PH 4 #101714.pdf
	Budget Adjustment Form

	Kegley PH 3  4 KPA Agreement # 101607.pdf
	Budget Adjustment Form

	RZ -Budget Adjustment -Zone FP amendment 10.19.17.pdf
	Budget Adjustment  Oct 2017

	Old Town Const Award - Project  Map.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	04 G (2)


	Z-FY-17-46 Staff Report Attachments.pdf
	Overlay & All Permitted Uses (09212017).pdf
	Table 1

	Overlay & LI & C Permitted Uses (09272017) LE.pdf
	Table 1

	Overlay & LI & C Permitted Uses (09272017) LE.pdf
	Table 1

	Overlay & LI & C Permitted Uses (09272017) LE.pdf
	Table 1

	C vs LI uses.pdf
	Sheet1


	Z-FY-17-46 Staff Report Attachments.pdf
	Overlay & All Permitted Uses (09212017).pdf
	Table 1

	Overlay & LI & C Permitted Uses (09272017) LE.pdf
	Table 1

	Overlay & LI & C Permitted Uses (09272017) LE.pdf
	Table 1

	Overlay & LI & C Permitted Uses (09272017) LE.pdf
	Table 1

	C vs LI uses.pdf
	Sheet1


	Z-FY-17-47 Attachments.pdf
	1 Site Development Plan print version
	2 LocationMap
	3 ZONING MAP
	4 Future Land Use Map
	5 Thoroughfare and Trails Map
	6 SIte and Area Photos, Trailer Examples
	7 Utility Map
	8 Notification Map
	9 McGregor1
	9 McGregor2




